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China Metal Resources Utilization Limited (the "Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted company with
limited liability on 22 February 2013. The Company and its subsidiaries
(the "Group”) are a fast-growing manufacturer of recycled copper
products, also known as copper semis, in Southwest China. The shares
of the Company were listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the "Stock Exchange”) on 21 February 2014 (the
“Listing Date").

We process recycled scrap copper and, to a lesser extent, electrolytic
copper, to manufacture a range of copper products, including copper
wirerods, copper wires, copper plates and copper granules. Beginning
in 2013, we have also sold a range of communication cables and power
transmission and distribution cables using copper wirerods that we
produce as the principal raw material. We are increasing our production
capacity and plan to broaden our product range and pursue
opportunities for further vertical integration. Beginning in 2015, we have
also extended our product range to aluminium products. In light of
favourable development trends in China and our advantages in raw
material supply, facility location and preferential governmental policies,
we believe we are well positioned to become a leading integrated
recycled copper product supplier in China covering the key value-
creating activities in the industry chain.

We currently own and operate four production facilities for recycled
copper products. The facilities of our subsidiaries Mianyang Jinxin
Copper Co., Ltd. ("Jinxin"), Mianyang Tongxin Copper Co., Ltd.
("Tongxin"), Sichuan Baohe Xinshiji Cable Co., Ltd. (“Baohe Xinshiji") and
Mianyang Baohe Taiyue Communications Cable Co., Ltd. (“Baohe
Taiyue") are located in Mianyang, Sichuan Province and the facility of
our subsidiary Hunan Yinlian Xiangbei Copper Co., Ltd. ("Xiangbei”) is
located in Miluo, Hunan Province. We are also operating our trading
business of aluminium products in Mianyang, Sichuan Province.

This annual report, in both English and Chinese versions, is available on
the Company’s website at http://www.cmru.com.cn/.

Shareholders may at any time change their choice of language(s) (either
English only or Chinese only or both languages) of Corporate
communications.

Shareholders may send their request to change their choice of
language(s) of Corporate Communications by notice in writing to the
Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar of the Company with Computershare
Hong Kong Investor Services Ltd. at 17M Floor Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Wan Chai, Hong Kong.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”) of China Metal
Resources Utilization Limited ("CMRU” or the “Company”), | hereby
present the audited consolidated annual results of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the twelve months ended 31
December 2015.

In 2015, the Group encountered a number of tough challenges amidst
an uncertain global economy. The slowdown in the growth of the
Chinese economy to its lowest level in the past 25 years, together with
the fluctuation of copper prices during the year contributed to a decline
in the overall demand for copper products in the market, presenting
heavy pressure on the Group's sales and profit. However, despite the
difficult business environment, the Company nonetheless enhanced its
competitiveness during the year under review in order to mitigate the
impact of the economy downturn.

During the year, in order to reduce costs and ensure a stable supply of
raw materials, we completed the issuance of warrants to 10 suppliers
of scrap copper so as to obtain a targeted volume of copper scrap raw
materials at discount prices. This measure has helped to stabilise our
business and maintain good cooperative relationships in the long run.
Meanwhile, in order to raise funds for working capital and to finance
future development and expansion, the Group has completed the
issuance of convertible bonds equivalent to approximately RMB200
million to Huarong (HK) International Holdings Limited (“Huarong”).

To facilitate growth and diversification of our business aimed at
broadening our revenue stream, we have completed the acquisition of
30% interest in Sichuan Baohe Fushan Resources Recycling
Development Co., Ltd. (“Baohe Fushan”) and Mianyang Xinhuan
Aluminium Company Limited (“Xinhuan Aluminium”) respectively during
the year. Both acquisitions can provide the Group a platform for
potential vertical expansion into the upstream scrap metal business in
the future. The Group has also entered into an equity transfer
agreement to purchase an additional 70% equity interest in Xinhuan
Aluminium. We believe that actively expanding into the aluminium
product business can help boost the Group's sales volume, provide a
wider product portfolio to further penetrate existing customers and
attract potential new customers. Such expansion could also achieve
synergies by more efficiently utilising our existing sources of raw
materials, logistic systems and technical expertise.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ERHE

As the first year of the Thirteenth Five-year Plan commences, the
environmental protection industry has been accorded priority as one of
the nation’s five major development principles. The Chinese
government has stated clearly its emphasis on implementing energy-
saving and environmental protection measures and fostering the
energy-conservation and environmental protection industry to become
a major pillar industry to support China’s growth. Given these
favourable factors, the Company will actively lay the business
foundation in the coming year on which to realise its potential when
market conditions stabilise and will continue expanding its share in the
recycled scrap metal market.

In the government working report, the State Council of China
emphasizes the promotion of the “One Belt, One Road” strategic
direction, an important part of the regional coordinated development
under China’s Thirteenth Five-year Plan. The Group intends to capture
the opportunities presented by the “One Road, One Belt” initiative and
actively strive to participate in the related infrastructure projects where
the scrap metal industry can contribute. The Group will closely monitor
the demand for recycled copper and copper products and adjust its
product mix according to market demand and the operating
environment. We are confident that the Group can further consolidate
its position as a leading recycled copper product manufacturer,
maintain its business development momentum and sustain its revenue
and profit growth so as to generate satisfactory returns for its
shareholders.

Thanks to the outstanding leadership skills of our management team as
well as our proven track record over the years, the Group is glad to
have been selected as a constituent of five stock indexes managed by
the Hang Seng Indexes Company Limited (“Hang Seng Indexes”) in
March 2016: the Hang Seng Global Composite Index and the Hang Seng
Composite Index Series including the Hang Seng Composite Index, Hang
Seng Composite Index — Materials, Hang Seng Composite MidCap &
SmallCap Index and Hang Seng Composite SmallCap Index. We believe
that having a constituent status in these indexes can further enhance
our reputation and position in the international capital market and
ultimately improve our investors’ confidence in the Group's outlook.

Last but not least, on behalf of the Board and the management, | would
like to thank our entire staff for their dedication and contribution to the
Group during the year. | would also like to thank our shareholders,
investors, customers, suppliers and business partners for their strong
support.

Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director
Mr. Yu Jiangiu

31 March 2016
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group during the year, a discussion on
the Group's future business development, and the description of
possible risks and uncertainties that the Group may be facing are set
out in the Management Discussion and Analysis of this Annual Report.
The financial risk management objectives and policies of the Group are
set out in note 2 to the consolidated financial statements. An analysis of
the Group’s performance during the year using financial key
performance indicators is set out on page 14 of this Annual Report. In
addition, discussions on the Group’s environmental policies,
relationships with its key stakeholders, compliance with relevant laws
and regulations which have a significant impact on the Group are set
out in the Director’s Report.

In 2015, the continued slowdown in China’s economic growth has
resulted in a drop in demand of copper products. In addition, there have
been several instances of sharp movements in copper prices during this
period which resulted in some of our customers shrinking their
purchase order sizes. Furthermore, the weakened liquidity of our
customers resulted in several cases of overdue trades balances,
conseqguently we had to reduce sales to certain of our customers in
order to minimise credit risks. As a result of these factors, the Group
recorded a decrease in sales volume in 2015 as compared to 2014,
which translated into a decrease in revenue by 53.6% as compared to
2014. Effective from July 2015, the Ministry of Finance and the State
Administration of Taxation adjusted down the VAT refunds from 50% to
30% under the Comprehensive Utilisation of Resources Policy, adversely
affecting the Company’s profitability. Also taking into account a
significant increase in finance costs, an impairment loss of trade
debtors and bills receivable, an impairment loss of goodwill and an
impairment loss of property, plant and equipment, the Company
incurred a net loss attributable to shareholders of the Company of
RMB499.0 million for 2015.

Notwithstanding the challenging operating environment, we continued
to strive to build our business to meet our long term growth objectives.
In April 2015, in order to raise funds to strengthen its working capital
and to finance the Group's future development and expansion, the
Company completed the issuance of convertible bonds equivalent to
approximately RMB200 million to Huarong.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

THEMRES

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

In May 2015, the Company completed an acquisition of 30% equity
interest in Baohe Fushan. The Company expects the acquisition to
provide a platform for potential vertical expansion of the Group into the
upstream scrap metal business in the future. The acquisition of Baohe
Fushan, which operates the industrial park that accommodates the
Group's key subsidiaries, is expected to benefit the Group by securing
land in the industrial park for future expansion and diversifying its
business to broaden its revenue sources.

In November 2015, the Company completed an acquisition of 30%
equity interest in Xinhuan Aluminium. In December 2015, the Company
entered into an equity transfer agreement to further acquire the 70%
equity interest in Xinhuan Aluminium. By expanding into the aluminium
business, the Company expects to enlarge its sales volume, provide a
wider product portfolio to the existing and potential customers and
leverage the synergies by making use of the Company’ s existing
sources of raw materials, logistics system and technical know-how. As
at the date of this report, the transaction has not been completed and
is subject to the approval from Ministry of Commerce of the People’ s
Republic of China.

RECENT DEVELOPMENTS

On 22 January 2016, the Company and Jizhong Hongyuan International
Trading Company Limited (E f Z 2 El R 8 5 B R 2 7)) ("the
Purchaser”) entered into the subscription agreement, pursuant to
which the Purchaser conditionally agreed to subscribe for, and the
Company conditionally agreed to allot and issue 73,250,735 subscription
shares to the Purchaser. The subscription price is HK$2.41 per
subscription share and the aggregate consideration for the subscription
is approximately HK$176,534,000. In view of the current market
conditions at the time, the Directors considered that the subscription
represents a good opportunity to raise funds for the Company for its
operations. The subscription would provide immediate cash inflow into
the Group without any interest burden. The proceed of the subscription
will be used as general working capital of the Company. On the same
day, the Purchaser also entered into a share sale agreement with Mr.
Huang Weiping, a Director and a substantial shareholder of the
Company pursuant to which Mr. Huang Weiping conditionally agreed to
sell and the Purchaser conditionally agreed to further purchase
82,790,366 ordinary shares. If both transactions are completed, the
Purchaser will hold approximately 7.16% of the Company’ s enlarged
share capital. As at the date of this Report, the aforementioned
transactions have not been completed. Please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 22 January 2016 for further
details.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

RECENT DEVELOPMENTS (continued)

Further, the Company has been selected by Hang Seng Indexes
Company Limited as a constituent of the following indexes, with effect
from 14 March 2016: (1) Hang Seng Global Composite Index; (2) Hang
Seng Composite Index; (3) Hang Seng Composite Industry Index —
Materials; (4) Hang Seng Composite MidCap & SmallCap Index; and (5)
Hang Seng Composite SmallCap Index.

FUTURE PROSPECTS/OUTLOOK

Despite the various measures taken by the PRC Government to
stimulate the Chinese economy over the past year, including the
reduction of interest rates and bank reserve requirements and the
increase in fiscal investments, the Chinese economy has not yet turned
the corner. Demand for recycled copper and aluminium products
remained sluggish and market liquidity continued to be tight. Under
such present environment, we shall be operating cautiously in order to
minimize business risks. However, in recent months, the housing
market in major cities in China have started to improve and its activities
have increased significantly. We are therefore hopeful that the housing
market recovery will soon translate to improvements in demand of
basic materials like copper and aluminium which will help improve our
business. Meanwhile, we will be preparing ourselves to take full
advantage of any improvements in the market environment to
strengthen our business and increase profitability in that we will be
preserving our financial strength and will continue to seek suitable
acquisition opportunities which we believe are more available in the
current environment.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

Our revenue represents the fair value of consideration received or
receivable for sales of goods and services in the ordinary course of
business. Revenue is shown net-of-VAT and other taxes, returns and
discounts after eliminating sales within our Group.

BRI R BR o

ITHARRR (®)

IESh - RN TIER AEEIREAER AR TE
WG K - B2016F3A148BER : (1B
EIRBIEAIEE  QEEFAIER Q) EEL
BITHERE — EMBE: QEBEEREFR/NE
REFEER « R (5)BAELRA N RARTESR -

Bl

HEAF BRI £ 6 B RBUE iR B
B BERENRRRTHEEBESER - WL
BRE  EPEKERRARER - HBE
i R SR m AV BRI RIR TS I LTS REME
RS o AL B AR - RS FER
2 UREBRARBESRE - AW LAPE
ABTHEEMSMIGNRE - BEB T ARE
me RARMEELEETHHRE - HRR
BERERRAFERRBNTR  HEEHRM
HIRTSIE R o BRI - TP 6 - 1
EWISRBENEMNE - R MANES - I
ReME ERMATREFRESN  E&DE
ERWERE  AARMBREERMRRAE

ZUEHE

g JC1)

Wz
BAWKRSEENEEXGERTHEEEN R
R 2 MR B A TE - W (BIE
BERIEMKIE  RERFHN) FEHEE
WS S EHETTEDE -

Annual Report 2015 ¢ —E—h 53R 07



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS ) /
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)
Revenue (Continued)
The following table sets forth an analysis of our revenue:

N .c‘; Y,
N :j NS/ 77
- Y [~ .
) \I,} e =5 b
BB B (4)
Y5 ()

TRFINBMAW YRR D -

2015 2014

2015 £ 2014 £

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR® T ARBT T

Sales of recycled copper products P B RE M 1,662,987 3,548,268
Sales of power transmission and distribution HEXES

cables 70,616 181,490

Sales of communication cables HEMEEE 29,398 104,037

Sales of scrap materials SHERFEM K 15,755 22,524

Sales of aluminium products HEIRE W 10,834 -

Contract manufacturing income & REERA 1,160 2,624

1,790,750 3,858,943

Revenue for the year ended 31 December 2015 amounted to
RMB1,790.8 million, representing a decrease of 53.6% from RMB3,858.9
million for the year ended 31 December 2014. The decrease in sales
volume was principally due to the slowdown in economic growth in
China, which resulted in a drop in the demand for the Group”s copper
products.

Revenue from recycled copper products amounted to RMB1,663.0
million for the year ended 31 December 2015, representing a decrease
of 53.1% from RMB3,548.3 million for the year ended 31 December
2014, mainly reflecting a decrease of 44.2% in the sales volume of
recycled copper products from 84,776 metric tons for the year ended
31 December 2014 to 47,283 metric tons for the year ended 31
December 2015. The overall average selling price of our recycled
copper products decreased by 16.0% from RMB41,885 per metric ton
for the year ended 31 December 2014 to RMB35,171 per metric ton for
the year ended 31 December 2015.

Revenue from sales of power transmission and distribution cables
amounted to RMB70.6 million for the year ended 31 December 2015,
representing a decrease of 61.1% from RMB181.5 million for the year
ended 31 December 2014, this reflected a decrease of 66.0% in sales
volume from 5,276 metric tons for the year ended 31 December 2014 to
1,795 metric tons for the year ended 31 December 2015, and an
increase of 14.3% in the average selling price of RMB34,401 per metric
ton for the year ended 31 December 2014 to RMB39,334 per metric ton
for the year ended 31 December 2015. The increase in the average
selling price was primarily caused by changes in product mix.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Revenue (Continued)

Revenue from sales of communication cables amounted to RMB29.4
million for the year ended 31 December 2015, representing a decrease
of 71.7% from RMB104.0 million for the year ended 31 December 2014.
This decrease was a result of a decrease of 42.9% in sales volume from
2,452 metric tons for the year ended 31 December 2014 to 1,400 metric
tons for the year ended 31 December 2015, and a decrease of 50.5% in
average selling price of RMB42,435 per metric ton for the year ended 31
December 2014 to RMB20,994 per metric ton for the year ended 31
December 2015. The decrease in the average selling price was primarily
caused by changes in product mix.

Cost of sales

Cost of sales for the year ended 31 December 2015 totaled RMB1,930.2
million, representing a decrease of 49.4% from RMB3,817.2 million for
the year ended 31 December 2014. The decrease was mainly due to the
decrease of 44.2% in the sales volume of recycled copper products, the
decrease of 66.0% in the sales volume of power transmission and
distribution cables and 42.9% in the sales volume of communication
cables.

The cost of raw materials decreased by 49.4% from RMB3,639.4 million
for the year ended 31 December 2014 to RMB1,841.4 million for the
year ended 31 December 2015. Direct materials cost was the largest
component of the Company’s cost of sales, accounting for
approximately 95.4% and 95.4% of the total cost of sales for the years
ended 31 December 2014 and 2015, respectively.

Cost of sales, other than raw materials and finished goods purchased,
was RMB88.8 million for the year ended 31 December 2015,
representing a decrease of 50.1% from RMB177.8 million for the year
ended 31 December 2014. The decrease was mainly attributable to a
decrease in VAT-surtax from RMB73.2 million to RMB22.6 million. The
VAT-surtax is calculated with reference to the amounts of net VAT paid
to the tax authorities and the net VAT amount was directly related to
the revenue from sales of our products. Furthermore, certain
production staff cost and depreciation and amortization totaling
RMB23.7 million were reclassified to administrative expenses under IAS
2, Inventories as certain plants were operating at an abnormally low
utilization rate.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

THEMRES

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Gross (loss)/profit and gross (loss)/profit margin

Our gross loss was RMB139.4 million for the year ended 31 December
2015, as compared to a gross profit of RMB41.8 million for the year
ended 31 December 2014. Our gross loss margin for the year ended 31
December 2015 was 7.8%, as compared to a gross profit margin of 1.1%
for the year ended 31 December 2014. The deterioration in gross
margin was mainly due to the decrease in average selling price of
recycled copper products by 16.0% with a smaller decrease in average
raw materials costs. Furthermore, the decrease in the Group’ s gross
margin was also partly due to the decrease in the relative size of cable
segments, as both communications cable segments and power cable
segments command higher gross profit margin than those of recycled
copper products.

Other revenue

Other revenue decreased significantly to RMB137.0 million for the year
ended 31 December 2015 from RMB439.9 million for the year ended 31
December 2014. The decrease was mainly due to a decrease in VAT
refunds under the Comprehensive Utilization of Resources Policy, the
amount of which was directly related to the revenue from sales of our
recycled copper products.

Other net loss

Our other net loss for the year ended 31 December 2015 was RMB254.9
million as compared to a net loss of RMB1.5 million for the year ended
31 December 2014. Our other net loss for the year ended 31 December
2015 mainly comprised a loss of RMB77.1 million as a result of change
in fair value of the derivative component of convertible bonds, an
impairment loss of goodwill amounting to RMB16.1 million, an
impairment loss of property, plant and equipment amounting to
RMB54.3 million and an impairment loss of trade debtors and bills
receivable amounting to RMB112.8 million.

Selling and distribution expenses

Our selling and distribution expenses for the year ended 31 December
2015 were RMB8.2 million, representing a decrease of 63.7% from
RMB22.6 million for the year ended 31 December 2014. The decrease
was primarily due to the decrease in delivery expenses incurred, the
amount of which was directly related to the revenue from sales of our
products.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Administrative expenses

Our administrative expenses for the year ended 31 December 2015
were RMB161.1 million, representing an increase of 57.7% from
RMB102.2 million for the year ended 31 December 2014. The increase
was primarily due to, among other reasons, an increase in share-based
compensation by RMB18.7 million as a result of more share options
granted in 2015, an increase of salaries, wages and other benefits by
RMB13.7 million and an increase in depreciation by RMB18.8 million,
both primarily as a result of reclassification from certain cost of
production under IAS 2, Inventories as certain plants were operating at
an abnormally low utilization rate, and an increase in professional fees
by RMB10.1 million.

Capital structure

As at 31 December 2015, the capital structure of the Group mainly
consisted of shareholders’ equity, bank and other borrowings and
finance leases and convertible bonds. There is no material seasonality
of borrowing requirements for the Group.

On 13 April 2015, the Company completed the issuance of convertible
bonds to Huarong in an aggregate principal amount of USD32,610,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB200 million). The convertible bonds
bear a fixed interest rate of 10% with interest to be paid on a quarterly
basis. The convertible bonds will expire at the second anniversary of
the issue date and are convertible into ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each
in the issued share capital of the Company at an initial conversion price
of HK$1.40 per share (subject to adjustment). The terms and conditions
of the convertible bonds restrict the exercise of conversion right up to
an aggregate principal amount of the convertible bonds of
USD16,300,000, which is convertible to approximately 90,555,555
ordinary shares of the Company (based on a condition in the terms and
conditions which provides that based on the agreed exchange rate, the
principle amount of the convertible bond shall be deducted by USD0.18
upon the issue of one conversion share).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued) Bt 3 BB ()

Capital structure (Continued) EXRGEE(E)
The following table sets forth the interest rate profile of the Group’s  T&R&EFIAEEF EEBENFTR B B R =48
interest-bearing borrowings at the dates indicated: A

As at 31 December 2015
M2015512H31H

As at 31 December 2014
72014912 A318

Weighted Weighted
average average
effective effective
interest rate Amount interest rate Amount
InREFEY Nk
BERF= =8 ERR A= TF
%  RMB'000 % RMB'000
ARBT T ARETT
Fixed rate borrowings: TEEME:
Bank loans and other borrowings RITERREMER 9.40 661,510 9.49 690,670
Obligations under finance leases BMEMETEM 6.88 38,282 7.06 52,498
Liability component of AR ESHE &
convertible bonds 34.35 166,488 B -
Loan from a related party BT ER 5.00 83,780 - -
Total fixed rate borrowings BB R4AEE 950,060 743,168
The following table sets forth the maturity profile of the Group's ~ N&RBIIAKEF EEER PR B HH 2B
interest-bearing borrowings at the dates indicated: A

As at 31 December 2015 As at 31 December 2014

®2015%12831R R2014%12A31R
Liability
Obligations component Loan Obligations
Bank and under of from Bank and under
other finance convertible  arelated other finance
borrowings leases bonds party Total  borrowings leases Total
TR
®ITR  WEHE EEadi] BEn Tk  HENE
S TEfR EfEH2 g% @it Hffem T&fE &
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT AR¥TT AR%Tn AR%®TR AR®TR AREBTT ARETT AR®TxR
Within one year or repayable  —ERHEER
on demand Eg 661,510 15,192 = 83,780 760,482 390,670 16,471 407141
After one year but within —FEHLAME
two years DA = 12,462 166,488 - 178,950 300,000 14,309 314,309
After two year but within MENLERE
five years DA = 10,628 - - 10,628 - 21,718 21,718
More than five years BERF = = = = = - - -
661,510 38,282 166,488 83,780 950,060 690,670 52,498 743,168
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Capital structure (Continued)

On 19 January 2015, the Company issued 133,650,000 warrants to
seven subscribers at an issue price of HK$0.001 per warrant. Each
warrant entitles its holder to subscribe for one share of the Company at
a subscription price of HK$1.30 per share. The warrants are to be
vested in phases according to the vesting conditions. The vesting
condition is that the suppliers shall carry out the transactions under
their respective annual procurement agreements, pursuant to which
the suppliers, in aggregate, agree to supply 49,500 tons of copper scrap
raw materials to the Group in 2015 at a fixed discount of RMB1,000 per
ton. For the year ended 31 December 2015, the suppliers have delivered
an aggregate of 7,180 tons of copper scrap raw materials to the Group,
resulting in the vesting of 19,385,878 warrants accordingly.

On 24 February 2015, the Company issued 102,000,000 warrants to
three subscribers at an issue price of HK$0.001 per warrant. Each
warrant entitles its holder to subscribe for one share of the Company at
a subscription price of HK$1.50 per share. The warrants are to be
vested in phases according to the vesting conditions. The vesting
condition is that the suppliers shall carry out the transactions under
their respective annual procurement agreements, pursuant to which
the suppliers, in aggregate, agree to supply 30,000 tons of copper scrap
raw materials to the Group from 1 February 2015 to 31 January 2016 at
a fixed discount of RMB2,000 per ton. For the year ended 31 December
2015, the suppliers have delivered an aggregate of 2,449 tons of copper
scrap raw materials to the Group, resulting in the vesting of 8,328,072
warrants accordingly.

Liquidity and financial resources

As at 31 December 2015, the Group's bank and cash balances
(excluding pledged deposits of RMB53.9 million) amounted to RMB82.6
million (as at 31 December 2014: RMB145.8 million).

The Group's inventories decreased by RMB212.7 million to RMB249.0
million as at 31 December 2015 (as at 31 December 2014. RMB461.7
million). The inventory turnover days were 67.2 days as compared to
28.8 days in 2014. The increase in inventory turnover days was mainly
due to a decrease in the Group's revenue during the year. The decrease
in the revenue was primarily attributable to a drop in demand for
copper products as a result of the continued slowdown in China’s
economic growth and the deferral and contraction of customers’ sales
orders as a result of several sharp fluctuations in copper prices in 2015.

TEEFRRSH

B35 B ()

EXREE(E)

R2015F 1198 » ARG ETEE—HR
A% #E 000178 T M+ & R B H 1T
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RIRE E R RM B T AREE - FH 19,385,878 1
RIEFZ I ERE o
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MANAGEMENT PISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)
Liquidity and financial resources (Continued)
Trade debtors and bills receivable decreased by RMB294.2 million to
RMB452.9 million as at 31 December 2015 (as at 31 December 2014:
RMB747.1 million). Trade debtors and bills receivable turnover days
increased to 122.3 days as compared to 67.4 days in 2014. The increase
in receivable turnover days reflected the fact that the liquidity in the
banking and financial markets continued to be tight in 2015 which
weakened the ability of our customers to settle trades balances within
their credit periods.

Trade and bills payable increased by RMB24.7 million to RMB61.0 million
as at 31 December 2015 (as at 31 December 2014: RMB36.3 million), the
payable turnover days were 9.2 days, compared to 11.0 days in 2014.
We endeavor to keep our trade and bills payable turnover days
relatively low mainly because our prompt payment pattern enhances
our suppliers” willingness to supply raw materials to us and therefore
helps us secure raw materials.

The Group' s total interest-bearing borrowings increased by RMB206.9
million to RMB950.1 million as at 31 December 2015 (as at 31 December
2014: RMB743.2 million). The increase was mainly due to the issuance
of convertible bonds, its initial fair value of loan portion amounted to
approximately RMB137.2 million. In respect of the Group” s borrowings,
the Group has to comply with certain restrictive financial covenants and
certain assets were pledged as security. The covenants had not been
breached as at 31 December 2015.

The following table sets forth certain financial ratios of our Group as of
the dates indicated:

Bt 3% Bl B ()

RBESRUBEER (&)

R2015F 12 A318 » & 5 EIKGRIA K ERE
B E R > A R 294,200,000 &2 A R
452,900,0007C ( 201412 A31H : AR
747,100,0007T) + B 5 M B RIE R E IR R IR R
TEEERBIEE1223K 0 M2014F 8 5674
K o FEUIFRIA E 8 K BUE O = BR7E 2015 F
RIRTTREMBRANNTRBESEERL &
BHSRPIERPANBFEERNET -

R2015F12A318  BESEMNRBEREMNE
B 3R E 1 A R 24,700,000 B A R #
61,000,000 C( 2014512 831H : A R
36,300,0007T)  ERF RIEEAE R A9.2K -
M2014F BB 11.0K « BRI EFEENE
SEMFEREMEEFERESERE  FE/H
REMBBRRMAZ SHEFELEREM
HERME - EifmABEMEGRERME -

R2015F12A31H » AEBMFTEEEEAR
0 A R ¥ 206,900,000 7T &= A KR # 950,100,000
TT(R2014F12 A31H « A R #743,200,000
JL) c MRFEMRMNEIT T AIRRES - HAE
o Ua A x EEKXNLS A AR 137,200,000
T AKBAREBHRETE T Y HRHHERK
MERETEEERER - 1R20154F 12 H 31
H - REEWEEREBIENK -

TREFINFR BB REOE THBLE

As at 31 December

R12A31H
2015 2014
2015 2014
Current ratio BN & 1.1 2.2
Quick ratio RELL K 0.9 1.6
Debt to equity ratio* EIE T L & 126.0% 58.4%
Net debt to equity ratio* SRETARERR L R # 115.0% 46.9%
* Total interest-bearing debts/Total equity. * FHEEIBMRRE, Wi
# (Total interest-bearing debts less cash and cash equivalents)/Total equity. # (GteEreEnReRESSEEE) B -
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Liquidity and financial resources (Continued)

The deterioration of current ratio and quick ratio as at 31 December
2015 compared to 31 December 2014 were primarily attributable to (i)
certain 2-year bank loans coming to be due within one year; (ii) the
increase in VAT payable as a result of deferral payments of VAT by
certain subsidiaries and (iii) the increase in bills payable following
greater amount of available facilities granted by banks.

&\L
. 5

The increase in debt to equity ratio and net debt to equity ratio as at 31
December 2015 compared to 31 December 2014 were mainly because
of (i) the increase in debt level as a result of the issuance of convertible
bonds by the Company and the increase of loan from a related party
during the period; and (i) the net loss for the year ended 31 December
2015.

Charge on assets

The following table sets forth the net book value of assets under pledge
for certain banking facilities, bills payable facilities, obligations under
finance leases and outstanding futures contracts as at the dates
indicated:

Bt 3% Bl B ()

RBESRUBEER (&)

M20156F 12 A31H - BN & KRS L AT
LE2014F 12 ANMBEFRENEEZERAA)
AETMEHRMETERER—FAEE : ()E
BETFRAREESMGET - FTARMIEE
MeBEEAR LA Ri)EARITIMAAAEE
TR TUENZIESBENLEH -

MR2015F 12 A31H - EIEERL R RFEER
RS R 201412 A3MB AR AT
TR A A () B A AR B3 1T Al R R (E 55 K 2R
BB ER - EBEEEAKF A (i) #E
Z2015F 12 A3 B IEFEAR N BISISFEHE -

BEERN
TREJRAARASRAEENEEREFED
RETRITEER BNRERE BREMEET
RMEER AT N AT S LEHEIR -

As at 31 December

M®12H31H
2015 2014
2015 £ 2014 4
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR%T T ARETT
Property, plant and equipment M - BE K& 214,270 176,328
Lease prepayments HEEMNK 53,390 38,269
Inventories FE 53,063 57,011
Bills receivable eI =& = 4,000
Government grants receivable FEUBUS 476 B 8,550 35,015
Deposits with guarantee companies RERARNGFR 30,900 27,100
Deposits with banks RIRTTHTF R 22,982 13,022
Deposit with lessor of finance leases REEREQRNGFER 5,320 5,320
Deposits with securities broker REBEH LT 4 10,663
388,479 366,728
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

THEMRES

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Commodity risk

The major raw materials used in the production of our recycled copper
products are scrap copper. We are exposed to fluctuations in the prices
of raw materials as well as finished goods which are influenced by
global as well as regional supply and demand conditions. Fluctuations
in the copper prices could adversely affect our financial performance.
The Group uses copper futures contracts to mitigate part of its exposure
against price fluctuations of copper. The market value of futures
contracts is based on the quoted market price as at the date of
consolidated statement of financial position. The Group did not have
outstanding copper futures contracts as at 31 December 2015 (notional
contract value of outstanding copper future contracts as at 31
December 2014: RMB62.0 million). Net gain of RMB6.1 million were
recognized for the year ended 31 December 2015 (2014: net loss of
RMB1.2 million).

Foreign currency risk

The functional currency of a majority of the entities within our Group is
RMB and most of the transactions are settled in RMB. However, we are
exposed to currency risk primarily related to the cash and cash
equivalents and loans from a related party, both of which are
denominated in HKD and the convertible bonds that are denominated in
USD. The balance of cash and cash equivalents as at 31 December 2015
included HK$36.5 million and USD105,000 (in total equivalent to
approximately RMB31.3 million) were held in banks in Hong Kong.

As at 31 December 2015, the Group " s bank loans and other borrowings
and obligations under finance leases were denominated in RMB but the
loan from a related party was denominated in HKD with a principal
amount of HK$100 million (equivalent to approximately RMB83.8 million)
and the convertible bonds were denominated in USD, with an aggregate
principal amount of USD32.6 million (equivalent to approximately
RMB200 million). The Group did not commit to any financial instruments
to hedge its foreign exchange exposure during the year ended 31
December 2015. During the year ended 31 December 2015, the
Company incurred an exchange difference on translation of financial
statements of non-PRC entities equivalent to RMB13.3 million, part of
which was resulted from translating the convertible bonds from USD to
RMB.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Significant investments held

Except for investments in subsidiaries and associates, the Group did not
hold any significant investment in equity interest in any other company
during the year ended 31 December 2015.

Material acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries and
affiliated companies

On 27 May 2015, the Company completed an acquisition of 30% interest
in Baohe Fushan. The total consideration for the acquisition was
approximately RMB135 million. Please refer to the announcement of the
Company dated 22 April 2015 for further details.

On 12 November 2015, the Company completed an acquisition of 30%
equity interest in Xinhuan Aluminium. The total consideration for the
acquisition was approximately RMB1.5 million. Please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 5 August 2015 for further details.

On 31 December 2015, the Company entered into an equity transfer
agreement to further acquire the 70% equity interest in Xinhuan
Aluminium. The total consideration for the acquisition was
approximately RMB3.1 million. Please refer to the announcement of the
Company dated 31 December 2015 for further details.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, save as disclosed above, the
Group did not have any material acquisitions and disposals of
subsidiaries and affiliated companies.

Capital expenditures

For the year ended 31 December 2015, our capital expenditures
represent additions to property, plant and equipment (including
construction in progress) and lease prepayments on lands of
approximately RMB125.1 million for the year ended 31 December 2015
(2014: RMB184.0 million). The capital expenditures were partly paid out
of the net proceeds from the listing (“Listing").

Capital commitments

As at 31 December 2015, the capital commitments in respect of the
acquisition of property, plant and equipment and lease prepayments on
lands contracted for but not provided in the consolidated financial
statements amounted to RMB76.0 million (2014: RMB133.4 million). In
addition, the Group had other capital commitment of approximately
RMB3.1 million in respect of the acquisition of 70% equity interest in
Xinhuan Aluminium. Please refer to the announcement of the Company
dated 31 December 2015 for further details.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

THEMRES

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Contingent liabilities

The Group had no material contingent liabilities as at 31 December
2015.

Use of proceeds from the listing

The Company was listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange on
the Listing Date and issued 531,825,600 new shares (including issue of
new shares upon the exercise of over- allotment option) at HK$1.13 per
share. The net proceeds from the Listing received by the Company
were approximately RMB420.0 million (after taking into account of
provisions for professional fees in relation to the Listing) as at 31
December 2015. These proceeds were intended to be applied in
accordance with the business plan set out in the Prospectus. The
business plan and schedule of use of proceeds disclosed in the
Prospectus were based on the best estimate of future market
conditions made by the Group at the time of preparing the Prospectus,
while the proceeds were applied in accordance with the actual
development of the market.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, a total of RMB297.6 million
of the net proceeds from the Listing were applied for repaying loans
from related parties, funding our planned capital expenditure in relation
to additions to property, plant and equipment, land use rights, and
research and development projects and repaying certain working
capital loans.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, a total of RMB122.4 million
of the net proceeds from the Listing were applied for funding our
planned capital expenditure in relation to additions to property, plant
and equipment, land use rights, and research and development
projects.

Up to 31 December 2015, the net proceeds of the global offering had
been fully used for the purposes described in the Prospectus.

Events after the Reporting Period

Save as disclosed in note 39 to the financial statements, there is no
material subsequent event undertaken by the Company or by the Group
after 31 December 2015 and up to the date of this annual report.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Yu Jianqiu (812 %), age 51, is the founder of the Group and the
Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and an executive director of the
Ccompany. Mr. Yu is primarily responsible for the overall business and
strategy of the Group. He also serves as a director in all of the
subsidiaries of the Company except Fanmay Limited (“Fanmay”) and
China Recycling Aluminium Limited (“Recycling Aluminium®). Through
his personal interests and holdings in Epoch Keen Limited ("Epoch
Keen"), Mr. Yu is a major controlling shareholder of the Company. Mr.
Yu has over 20 years of experience in corporate operations and
management in the petrochemical, automobile and renewable energy
sectors. He was the chairman and principal executive officer of Gushan
Environmental Energy Limited (“Gushan”), a company whose American
depositary shares were listed on the New York Stock Exchange from
December 2007 to October 2012. Mr. Yu also founded a number of
subsidiaries of the Gushan group between 1996 and 2008. Mr. Yu
received his degree of Executive Master of Business Administration
(EMBA) from Hautes Etudes Commerciales de Paris on 13 December,
2010. In 2002, he was elected as a member of the Fuzhou Committee of
the 10th Chinese People’s Political Consultative Committee and a
member of the Santai County Committee of the 11th Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Committee. He was appointed as a director of the
Company on 22 February 2013 and redesignated as an executive
director on 16 August 2013.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EFREREEHRE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR (continued)

Mr. Kwong Wai Sun, Wilson (B{&18), age 50, is an executive
director of the Company. He is in charge of the corporate and strategic
development of the Company. Mr. Kwong is also a director of our
subsidiaries: Engen Investments Limited, Fanmay, True Excel Holdings
Limited, Alpha Legend Holdings Limited, Alpha Business Investments
Limited, Alpha Universe Group Limited and Recycling Aluminium, and a
director of our associates companies: Deda Holdings Limited and
Hongkong Fujian Investments Limited. Mr. Kwong was the president of
Gushan. He is also an independent non-executive director of C.banner
International Holdings Limited, the principal business of which is the
manufacture and sale of branded fashion footwear, since 26 August
2011, China Outfitters Holdings Limited, the principal business of which
is the design, manufacture, marketing and sale of apparel products and
accessories in China with a focus on menswear, since 8 June 2011, and
Shunfeng International Clean Energy Limited, the principal business of
which is the manufacture and sale of solar wafers, solar cells, solar
modules and related products as well as developing and operating solar
power plants, since 16 July 2014, which are listed on the Stock
Exchange since 23 September 2011 , 9 December 2011 and 13 July
2011, respectively. Mr. Kwong has 12 years of experience in corporate
finance and equity capital markets in Asia, having previously worked at
a number of investment banks in Hong Kong. Prior to joining Gushan in
2006, he was the managing director of investment banking and he held
the position as the head of Hong Kong and China equity capital markets
at CLSA Equity Capital Markets Limited since March 2004. From 2002 to
2003, Mr. Kwong was a director and the head of equity capital markets
for Cazenove Asia Limited, an investment bank. After graduating from
University of Cambridge, England with a bachelor’s degree in Arts in
1987, he qualified as a chartered accountant in the United Kingdom in
1991. Mr. Kwong is currently an associate member of the Institute of
Chartered Accountant in England and Wales, the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered
Secretaries. Mr. Kwong was appointed as an executive director of the
Company on 16 August 2013.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR (continued)

Mr. Huang Weiping (E{&5¥), age 55, is an executive director of the
Ccompany. Mr. Huang co-founded Xiangbei in 2010 and is currently a
director and the general manager of Xiangbei, Jinxin, Tongxin, Baohe
Xinshiji and Baohe Taiyue. Mr. Huang is in charge of the overall
operation, production technology and engineering of the Group. Mr.
Huang has more than 10 years of experience in the PRC metal material
industry. Prior to the establishment of Xiangbei, Mr. Huang was a
manager at Fujian Lingzhi Environmental Technology Co., Ltd. (f8i&5
RREHEABR A7), the principal business of which is the design and
construction of environmental projects, from 2009 to 2011, Fuzhou Kebi
Chemical Materials Co., Limited (@M &L THM BB R A A, the
principal business of which is the manufacture and sale of synthetic
wax, from 2006 to 2009 and Tricon Chemicals Inc., the principal
business of which is the trade of chemicals and metal materials, from
2001 to 2005. He is a fellow member of the Investment Casting Institute
and an executive member of China Precision Casting Branch
Association of China Foundry Association (fF BliZiE R S8 EED ).
Mr. Huang also serves as an executive member of the Chinese and
Foreign Entrepreneurs’ Club of Fujian Province (f&&4& oM 2K E R
@) and the Association of Entrepreneurs of Private Companies of
Fuzhou City (@M AL E D EZRHE). Mr. Huang received his degree of
Executive Master of Business Administration (EMBA) from Hautes
Etudes Commerciales de Paris on 6 July 2015. Mr. Huang was appointed
as an executive director of the Company on 16 August 2013.

Ms. Zhu Yufen (%R E%), age 53, is an executive director of the
Company. Ms. Zhu has over 20 years of experience in accounting and
financial management. She is primarily responsible for the financial
reporting and accounting affairs of the Company. Ms. Zhu is also the
vice president in charge of the finance of Jinxin, since July 2009. Prior to
joining Jinxin, she was a vice general manager and the head of finance
department of Mianyang Santai Vise Co., Ltd. (35 =& % &HARA
7)), the principal business of which is the manufacture and sale of
vises, from 1978 to 2009. Ms. Zhu was appointed as an executive
director of the Company on 16 August 2013.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EFREREEHRE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR (continued)

Mr. Liu Hanjiu (207£), age 51, is an executive director of the
Company. He co-founded Jinxin in February 2009 and currently serves
as a director and the general manager of Jinxin and Tongxin. Mr. Liu is
also a director of Mianyang Jin Xunhuan Metal Materials Co., Ltd.
(B EREBMEIER2AE) (“in Xunhuan”). Mr. Liu is primarily
responsible for the overall operation of the Group. Mr. Liu has over 30
years of experience in the metal recycling sector in Mianyang City,
Sichuan Province. In addition to Jinxin, he also founded Mianyang
Changjiu Metal Processing Co., Ltd. (#2fsmER BN T AR A F)), the
principal business of which is the manufacture of copper granules, in
2003 and served as its general manager between 2003 and 2008.
Between 2000 and 2003, Mr. Liu held the position as the general
manager of Mianyang Longjiu Metal Recycling Co., Ltd. (43[5 T EA &8
EU AR A ), the principal business of which is the manufacture of
copper granules, which was also established by him in 2000. Prior to
establishing his own companies which specialized in scrap metal
recycling and process, Mr. Liu was the factory chief of Mianyang
Mianzhong Metal Processing and Smelting Factory (4854 < & I
TOR1RRR), the principal business of which is the refining of copper slag,
from 1990 to 2000 and Mianyang Fucheng District Jinfeng Smelting
Factory (A2f5 TS E £ 18)A R ER), the principal business of which is
the refining of copper slag, from 1986 to 1990. Mr. Liu was a sole
proprietor engaged in the recycling of waste and scrap materials
between 1983 and 1986, after he had acquired the techniques for
processing and smelting non-ferrous metal through his apprenticeship
between 1979 and 1983. Mr. Liu currently serves as a people’s
representative to the People’s Congress of Mianyang Nongke District
Songya Town Committee. He was also elected as a people’s
representative to the People’s Congress of Shitang Town, Fucheng
District, Mianyang City in 2002 and 2005, respectively. Mr. Liu studied in
middle school. Mr. Liu was appointed as an executive director of the
Company on 16 August 2013. Mr. Liu resigned as an executive director
of the Company on 30 November 2015 due to health reasons.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Lee Ting Bun Denny (2= % i&), age 48, is an independent non-
executive director of the Company. He was an independent director of
Gushan. He was the chief financial officer of NetEase.com, Inc., one of
the China’s leading internet and online game service providers from
2002 to 2007. Prior to joining NetEase.com, Inc., Mr. Lee worked in the
Hong Kong office of KPMG for more than ten years specializing in
auditing international clients. Mr. Lee currently serves as a director on
the board of NetEase.com, Inc., which is listed on the NASDAQ Global
Select Market. He also serves as an independent non-executive director
of New Oriental Education & Technology Group Inc., the provider of
private educational services in China, and Concord Medical Services
Holdings Ltd., the principal business of which is the operation of a
network of radiotherapy and diagnostic imaging centers in China, both
of which are listed on the New York Stock Exchange. Mr. Lee was also
an independent non-executive director and the chairman of the audit
committee of Qunar Cayman Islands Limited, a Chinese search-based
online travel company, which is listed on NASDAQ Global Market,
between June 2012 and January 2016. Mr. Lee graduated from Hong
Kong Polytechnic University and was awarded the Professional Diploma
in Accounting in November 1990. He is a fellow of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants and an associate member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Lee was appointed
as an independent non-executive director of the Company on 16 August
2013.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EFREREEHRE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

(Continued)

Mr. Pan Liansheng (&), age 51, is an independent non-executive
director of the Company. Mr. Pan is engaged in non-ferrous metal and
carbon fiber composite materials research and possesses rich
knowledge on the non-ferrous metal industry. Mr. Pan also worked for
the Third Research Institute of the then Ministry of Astronautics of the
PRC (P B R T2 205 = 98B%), which is involved in the research of
aerospace metals and carbon fibre composite materials, between 1990
and 1993, focusing on research relating to non-ferrous metal and
carbon fiber composite materials. From 1993 to 1994, Mr. Pan was
seconded to Sanwa Machinery Trading Co., Ltd., the principal business
of which is the design and manufacture of electrical machinery. From
1996 to 1998, Mr. Pan worked as an assistant professor at Waseda
University. From 1998 to 2008, Mr. Pan worked as a chief researcher in
the research and development center of Toshiba Ceramics Co., Ltd. (5
2 AR & 4t), the principal business of which is the research and
production of high-end electronic ceramic and silicon semi-conductors.
From 2008 to April 2013, Mr. Pan worked as the general manager at
Toshiba Ceramics Co., Ltd. Currently, Mr. Pan is the Chairman of
Thinkon Semiconductor Technology (Shanghai) Corporation (5 g 3 &
BERHE (LE/8) AR 2 A)), the principal business of which is the supply
of semiconductor material technology, a position which he has held
since April 2013. Mr. Pan graduated with a bachelor’s degree from
Beijing University of Aeronautics and Astronautics where he focused on
research relating to non-ferrous metal and carbon fiber reinforced
composite in 1985. He further obtained his doctorate degree from
Waseda University in 1998. Mr. Pan was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of the Company on 16 August 2013.

Ms. Ren Ruxian ({E 3% #), age 40, is an independent non-executive
director of the Company. Ms. Ren is currently the senior finance
director of Letv Holding Limited, an internet company based in Beijing
China. Ms. Ren has over 15 years working experience in finance
management and financial reporting, including in 2 international audit
professional firms and in the internet industry, during which she acted
as the acting chief financial officer of Changyou.com Limited, a NASDAQ
listed company, in 2014. Ms. Ren was awarded a Master in Economics
and Bachelor in Economics from the Finance School of Renmin
University in 2001 and 1998, respectively. Ms. Ren is currently a
member of each of The Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and The Institute of Certified Management Accountants. Ms. Ren was
appointed as an independent non-executive director of the Company
on 30 November 2015.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

(Continued)

Ms. Liu Rong (ZI%), age 51, is an independent non-executive director
of the Company. Ms. Liu is currently dean of the School of Public
Finance and Taxation of Southwest University of Finance and Economics
in China, a position she has held since 2008. Ms. Liu devoted almost her
entire 25-year career to the teaching and research on taxation and
fiscal science at the School of Public Finance and Taxation of Southwest
University of Finance and Economics. Ms. Liu has authored or co-
authored more than 10 taxation textbooks and has published a number
of articles and thesis regarding taxation policy and taxation system on
various nation-wide journals and publications such as Economic
Perspective (£ £ 8hae)) and Public Finance Research ({81 XA T)).
Her academic achievement has won her the Outstanding Research
Achievement Award (Band Il) handed down by the State Administration
of Taxation of the PRC and the Chinese Tax Institute (B RFS4EE -
% 2gESRBHKSR =S 8)in 2003. In recognition of her
contribution, she was also selected as an academic and technical
leader (reserve candidate) of Sichuan Province (PT)1|%& Z1r 5 flr 758 A
% 5 A 12) in 2004. She has also received the accolade as a Famous
Teacher of Sichuan Province (P91 #2244 f) and as an Expert With
Extraordinary Contribution of Sichuan Province (79114 &%= H BRI ER).
Ms. Liu is currently a chartered PRC tax accountant and a fellow
member of the China Public Finance Society (f B B I 2 &), the
Chinese Tax Institute (4 B % 2 &) and Sichuan Association of
Chartered Tax Accountants (P89)1| 375 E0 1= ). She also serves as
vice president of the International Taxation Association of Sichuan
Province (P0)11%& BB Fi U 1% € ) and the International Taxation Institute
of Chengdu City (B & BIER iUk 22 ). Ms. Liu obtained her doctorate
degree in fiscal science from Southwest University of Finance and
Economics in 1999. Ms. Liu was appointed as an independent non-
executive director of the Company on 16 August, 2013. Ms. Liu resigned
as an independent non-executive director of the Company on 30
November 2015 in order to devote more time on her work at the
Southwest University of Finance and Economics in China.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EFREREEHRE

CHANGE IN DIRECTORS' BIOGRAPHIES
Pursuant to Rule 13.51B of the Listing Rules, the Company set out the
changes in information about Directors during the year 2015.

1. Mr. Kwong Wai Sun Wilson is also a director of our associates
companies: Deda Holdings Limited and Hongkong Fujian
Investments Limited.

2. Mr. Huang Weiping received his degree of Executive Master of
Business Administration (EMBA) from Hautes Etudes
Commerciales de Paris on 6 July 2015.

3. Mr. Lee Ting Bun resigned as an independent non-executive
director and the chairman of the audit committee of Qunar
Cayman Islands Limited on 4 January 2016.

4. Mr. Liu Hanjiu has tendered his resignation as an executive
director of the Company with effect from 30 November 2015 due
to health reasons. Mr. Liu has confirmed that he has no
disagreement with the Board and there is ho matter relating to his
resignation that needs to be brought to the attention of the
shareholders of the Company or the Stock Exchange.

5. Ms. Liu Rong has tendered her resignation as an independent
non-executive director, the chairman of the Nomination
Committee and a member of each of the Audit and Corporate
Governance Committee and the Remuneration Committee with
effect from 30 November 2015 in order to devote more time on
her work at the Southwest University of Finance and Economics in
China. Ms. Liu confirmed that she has no disagreement with the
Board and there are no other matters with respect to her
resignation that needs to be brought to the attention of the
shareholders of the Company or the Stock Exchange.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Chan Ngai Chi (BRZR5t), age 44, is the Chief Financial Officer of
our Company since September 2013. Mr. Chan is responsible for our
financial management. Mr. Chan has over 20 years of experience in
financial management, compliance and auditing. Since August 2007,
Mr. Chan was the principal financial officer and principal accounting
officer of Gushan. Prior to joining Gushan, Mr. Chan worked in the audit
division of PricewaterhouseCoopers Hong Kong from 1994 to 1999. He
also served as financial controller and company secretary of Tong Ren
Tang Technologies Co. Ltd., a company in the production and
distribution of Chinese medicine, from 2004 to 2007 and TopSearch
International (Holdings) Limited, a manufacturer of printed circuit
boards, from 2000 to 2003, both of which are companies listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange since 9 July 2010 and 21 June 2002,
respectively. He has served as an independent non-executive director
of Beijing Tong Ren Tang Chinese Medicine Company Limited, a
company in the retail and wholesale of China medicine products, since
15 April 2013, which is listed on the Growth Enterprise Market of the
Stock Exchange since 7 May 2013. Mr. Chan graduated from The Hong
Kong University of Science and Technologies with a bachelor’s degree
in business administration in 1994 and The Chinese University of Hong
Kong with a master’s degree in economics in 2003. Mr. Chan is a fellow
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and
the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EFREREEHRE

SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continued)

Mr. Chen Wei (BR1&), age 36, is the Vice General Manager of our
Company and a director of Tongxin, Jinxin, Xiangbei, Baohe Xinshiji,
Baohe Taiyue and Jin Xunhuan, Xinhuan Aluminium and Shanghai
Bujiang Metal Material Limited and the General Manager of Shanghai
Epoch Keen Metal Trading Limited. Mr. Chen is in charge of business
risk management. Mr. Chen has over 10 years of management
experience in automobile, renewable energy and environmental
protection sectors. Mr. Chen joined Gushan in 2008 and served as
assistant to the chairman of the board and head of the group office
from 2009 to 2012. Since January 2013, he has been the vice president
of Gushan. Prior to joining Gushan in 2008, Mr. Chen worked for Handan
Gushan Bio-sources Energy Co. Ltd., the principal business of which is
the production and sale of bio-diesel products in China, as assistant to
general manager from 2005 to 2008 and as acting general manager
from 2008 to 2009. Between 2002 and 2005, he was a sales executive at
Fuzhou CTE Co., Ltd (@M imE2EH R A R]), the principal business of
which is the production and sale of wire and harness and electronic
parts of vehicles in China. Mr. Chen graduated with a bachelor’s degree
in management from Zhengzhou Institute of Technology (currently
known as Henan University of Technology) in June 2002. He further
obtained the qualification of assistant economist from the Fuzhou City
Human Resources Bureau (f& /M A% &) in January 2009.

Ms. Luo Guidi (A1), age 41, is the controller of our Company. She
is mainly responsible for financial risk management. She has also been
appointed as the risk management officer of Company and is
responsible for overseeing the Group’s compliance with bank loan
covenants. Ms. Luo has over 15 years of experience in accounting and
internal audit. Since January 2013, Ms. Luo was the manager of the
audit department of Gushan from 2008 to 2012 and has been a director
of the risk management unit at Gushan. Prior to joining Gushan in 2008,
she worked as an audit manager at Fujian Jianyou Certified Public
Accountants Limited (18 2 & & & & B = % F1 & R 2 7)) from
2007 to 2008. Ms. Luo was an audit assistant and audit project manager
at Fujian Lixin Mindu Certified Public Accountants Limited ({827 1=
# e 5t B0 E % BT A R 2 7)) from 2003 to 2007. From 1997 to 2002,
she worked as a cashier and accountant at Fuzhou Yaolong Chemical
Group Co., Ltd (@M #BZ1t T £ B2 7)), a manufacture of chemicals.
Ms. Luo obtained an undergraduate qualification in accounting from
Fuzhou University through self-study in June 2009. Ms. Luo is a member
of the Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants and China
Institute of Internal Audit. She is also qualified as a land valuer and a
Registered Real Estate Appraiser in the PRC.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continued)

Mr. Fan Dunxian (G8%8), age 47, is the general manager of Baohe
Taiyue, a subsidiary of our Company since November 2011. Mr. Fan is
responsible for formulating, overseeing and executing the day-to-day
management of the operation of Baohe Taiyue. Mr. Fan has over 5
years of experience in the cable industry. He currently serves as a
director, the general manager and the legal representative of Baohe
Taiyue. Mr. Fan was a founder of Guangzhou Taiyue, the principal
business of which is the manufacture and sales of communication
cables in China, and has been a director and the general manager of
Guangzhou Taiyue since its establishment in 2007. Mr. Fan completed
his junior college education with Fujian Agriculture University (currently
known as Fujian Agriculture and Forestry University) in July 1996,
majoring in phytomedicine and medical science.

Mr. Zhang Huayi (5R%), age 41, is the vice manager of Xiangbei
since 2011. Mr. Zhang is responsible for daily operation of Xiangbei. Mr.
Zhang has over 20 years of experience in the logistics management and
copper products manufacturing industries. Prior to joining Xiangbei, he
worked as a general manager at Fuging Nan Feng Logistics (Hunan)
Company(fE/smBRMR CHrE) 2R).

Ms. Cai Jin, ((8£), age 38, is the assistant to Chairman of the
Company since September 2013. Ms. Cai is mainly responsible for the
daily administrative management. Ms. Cai has over 15 years of
experience in administrative management. Ms. Cai joined Gushan in
2001 and served as assistant to the Chairman of the board from 2001 to
2012. Ms. Cai graduated with a bachelor’s degree in foreign language
from University of Fuzhou in July 2001.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Cheung Ying Kwan, age 56, is the company secretary of the
Company. Mr. Cheung has over 21 years of experience in financial
management. Mr. Cheung was the financial controller of Gushan since
March 2006. Mr. Cheung also served from April 2001 to March 2006 as
the qualified accountant and company secretary of Goldigit Atomtech
Holdings Limited (currently known as Jinchuan Group International
Resources Co. Ltd), a developer and producer of pesticides in China
which is listed on the Stock Exchange since 23 October 2003. Mr.
Cheung was an independent non-executive director of Auto Italia
Holdings Limited, a company which has been listed on the Stock
Exchange since 16 July 1991 and whose principal business is the import,
marketing, distribution and after-sales services of high quality, branded
products in Asia including cars, electronic appliances, fashion apparels
and accessories, from November 2005 to May 2013, and has been an
independent non-executive director of Tian Shan Development (Holding)
Limited, a property developer in China, since 16 June 2010, Beijing
Chunlizhengda Medical Instruments Co., Ltd., the principal business of
which is the research and development, production and sales of
implantable orthopedic medical devices, since 11 March 2015, Gold-
Finance Holdings Limited (& # %= AR AR 2~ 7, formerly known as Nga
Chun Holdings Company Limited (% B # i% & R A 7)), the principal
business of which is the provision of building services in Hong Kong as
a subcontractor, since 3 February 2016, which are listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange since 15 July 2010, 11 March 2015 and 16
October 2014. He is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants and an associate member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Cheung obtained a diploma
in fabric manufacturing from the Hong Kong Polytechnic in 1981. He
was appointed as the company secretary on 8 March 2013.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The Board is pleased to present the audited consolidated results of the
Company and the Group for the year ended 31 December 2015. Further
discussion and analysis of these activities as required by Schedule 5 to
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, including a description of the
principle risks and uncertainties facing the Group and an indication of
likely future development in the Group's business, can be found in the
Management Discussion and Analysis section. The discussions forms
part of this directors’ report.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Group is a manufacturer of recycled copper products, also known
as copper semis, in Southwest China. Beginning in 2013, the Group
started to sell a range of communication cables and power transmission
and distribution cables using copper wirerods produced by the Group
as the principal raw material. Beginning in 2015, the Group also
extended its product range to aluminium products.

DIRECTORS
During the year and up to the date of this annual report, the directors of
the Company were as follows:

Executive Directors Appointed on
Mr. Yu Jiangiu (Chairman and 22 February 2013 and
chief executive officer) redesignated as an executive director on

16 August 2013 and reelected on
6 June 2014

Mr. Liu Hanjiu 16 August 2013, reelected on
6 June 2014 and resigned on
30 November 2015

Mr. Kwong Wai Sun Wilson 16 August 2013 and reelected on
6 June 2014

Mr. Huang Weiping 16 August 2013 and reelected on
9 June 2015

Ms. Zhu Yufen 16 August 2013 and reelected on
9 June 2015

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Pan Liansheng 16 August 2013 and reelected on

9 June 2015

Mr. Lee Ting Bun Denny 16 August 2013

Ms. Liu Rong 16 August 2013 and resigned on
30 November 2015

Ms. Ren Ruxian 30 November 2015
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DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the directors and senior management of the
Group are set out in the section headed “Directors and Senior
Management” in this annual report.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE OF
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Each of the independent non-executive directors has confirmed his/her
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company
considers all of the independent non-executive directors to be
independent in accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in notes 17, 24, 34 and 36 respectively to the financial
statements and in this annual report, no director had a material interest
in any transaction, arrangement or contract of significance to the
business of the Group to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries
was a party during the year.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has a service contract with the Company or any
of its subsidiaries which is not determinable within one year without
payment of compensation other than statutory compensation.

CHANGES IN DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Directors and Senior
Management”, there was no change to any of the information required
to be disclosed in relation to any director pursuant to paragraphs (a) to
(e) and (g) of Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules since the Listing Date.
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DIRECTORS' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES' INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY AND
ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2015, the interests and short positions of the
directors and the chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were (i)
recorded in the register required to be kept under section 352 of the
SFO, or (i) otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Issuers set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (the “Model
Code") were as follows:

(1) Long position in the shares of the Company
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Approximate

S

4 “Jj ?_,u ~b

Number of percentage of

Name of Director Capacity/Nature of interest shares held shareholding
EEnE B3 REEME PR R & H BAKRBE D
Mr. Yu Jiangiu Directly held interest 6,204,000 0.29%
AT LA BEEREFE O ER

Interest in a controlled corporation® 993,570,400 47 .20%

REGEEER
Mr. Huang Weiping Interest in controlled corporations® 413,522,200 19.64%
\mEFRE i EE s O
Mr. Kwong Wai Sun Wilson Beneficial owner 4,772,600 0.23%
BME(S R 4E EmliE A

Notes: MaE

(1) The percentage represents the number of ordinary shares divided by the
number of the Company’s issued shares as at 31 December 2015.

2) The shares were held by Epoch Keen, a company wholly-owned by Mr. Yu
Jiangiu.

3) 102,963,000 shares were held by Gold Wide Enterprises Limited, 167,952,400
shares were held by First Harvest Global Limited, 103,205,200 shares were
held by Silver Harvest Holdings Limited and 39,401,600 shares were held by
Ocean Through Limited. All these companies are wholly-owned by Mr. Huang
Weiping.
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DIRECTORS' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES' INTERESTS

AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND

UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY AND

ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS (continued)

(2) Long Position in the underlying shares of the
Company

BEERTETHAERARATRAE
HEEENR O RAERAHOES
KRB #)

(2) REXTHEERGHEFR
Approximate

Number of percentage of
shares held shareholding™

Name of Director Capacity/Nature of interest
EEME B3 REEME
Mr. Huang Weiping Beneficial owner®
"L BEREAAY
Ms. Zhu Yufen Beneficial owner®
KEF&Z+ EmlaA®
Mr. Kwong Wai Sun Wilson Beneficial owner®
BME(S S E EmlaA®
Mr. Pan Liansheng Beneficial owner?”
EERTE EmBaA?
Mr. Lee Ting Bun Denny Beneficial owner®
A ENR S A4 BEREAAN®

FEROEE BMOUFREILED

2,000,000 0.10%
10,000,000 0.48%
5,000,000 0.24%
1,000,000 0.05%
1,000,000 0.05%

(4) These equity derivatives were share options granted to Mr. Huang Weiping
under the Share Option Scheme of the Company on 2 July 2014. Please see
the section headed “Share Option Scheme” for further details.

(5) These equity derivatives were share options granted to Ms. Zhu Yufen under
the Share Option Scheme of the Company on 2 July 2014. Please see the
section headed “Share Option Scheme” for further details.

6) These equity derivatives were share options granted to Mr. Kwong Wai Sun
Wilson under the Share Option Scheme of the Company on 7 May 2015.
Please see the section headed “Share Option Scheme” for further details.

(7) These equity derivatives were share options granted to Mr. Pan Liansheng
under the Share Option Scheme of the Company on 7 May 2015. Please see
the section headed “Share Option Scheme” for further details.

(8) These equity derivatives were share options granted to Mr. Lee Ting Bun
Denny under the Share Option Scheme of the Company on 7 May 2015.
Please see the section headed “Share Option Scheme” for further details.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2015, so far as is known to
any director or the chief executive of the Company, none of the
directors or the chief executive of the Company had any interests or
short positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV
of the SFO) which were (i) recorded in the register required to be kept
under section 352 of the SFO, or (i) otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Saved as otherwise disclosed in this annual report, no rights to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the
Company were granted to any director or their respective spouse or
children under 18 years of age, nor were any such rights exercised by
them, nor was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any
arrangement to enable the directors, or their respective spouse or
children under 18 years of age, to acquire such rights in any other body
corporate during the year ended 31 December 2015.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2015, the following persons (not being a director or
chief executive of the Company) had 5% or more interests or short
positions in the shares or underlying shares of the Company as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant
to section 336 of the SFO:

Long position in the shares of the Company

EEREROIEFZNER

BRI AFEREAMEY WEES  REE2015F
12A3NBELEFE  HEXTENEFIESS
B Z BB AW 185 M F2EBE AR DA
M REFFH T A ME SN K B R FTTEE
AR EEN - TEAR AR HETAMNEAF
FHRHACEZTREEE A ZRBIAM18
BRE T ZNMEE MR A RESZFER -

FERRRAEQIRREG R AERER G
HERRRE

R2015F 12 A3 LA RRREESLBE
1B ZE 336 5B TR EMERMATAEE: - AT
AL (WIEARBESERESTHRAB)REAR
Wxﬁﬂﬁfaﬁﬂxfﬁqﬂ%ﬁﬁS%&utmffg 53K,

KA

RAEATRGWER

Capacity in which Number of No. of share Underlying Percentage of
interests are held shares held option held shares
BHEBRE
EURREENS G FERY #A HER G
Mr. Zhang Huayi 2 Legaland beneficial owner 102,590,600 7,500,000 - 110,090,600 5.23%
REZRE BEREHHEEA
China Huarong Asset Management 3()  Persons having a security interests - - 362,000,000 362,000,000 17.19%
Co., Ltd. in shares
TEEREEEERNERAR HEHEEAERZAL
3(i)  Interestsina controlled - - 180,519,643 180,519,643 8.58%
corporations
REHEERER
Mianyang Science Technology City 4 Persons having a security interests - - 310,317,000 310,317,000 14.74%
Development Investment (Group) in shares
Co,, Ltd. HEHEEAERZAL
REMBHERRE (RB)BRAF
Sichuan Changhong Electric Co., Ltd. 5 Persons having a security interests - - 147,000,000 147,000,000 6.98%

M RIEEBENERAT

in shares
HRhAEMER AL
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES OF THE COMPANY (continued)

Long position in the shares of the Company (Continued)

Notes:

(1) The percentage represents the number of ordinary shares divided by the number of
the Company'’s issued shares as at 31 December 2015.

FERRRA D TR0 & AHE R 5
HEZRARE (&)

RARTRG TR ()
Fig -

Q) B HRERR2015F 12 A31 AR T EREE KRR
ARBETRNHEE -

2 Interests in shares Note
Name of shareholder BRESE S8 RiRERE  HiE

Mr. Zhang Huayi REF KA 54,076,000

Silvery Boom Limited Silvery Boom Limited 48,514,600
Interests in underlying shares Note

Mr. Zhang Huayi 5k 3% REHR KL

(3)())  On 30 March 2015, Epoch Keen entered into a share charge with Huarong pursuant
to which Epoch Keen agreed to charge by way of first fixed charge all its rights, title,
interest and benefit in 362,000,000 ordinary shares in the Company in favour of
Huarong as the secured party. Huarong is wholly controlled by China Huarong Asset
Management Co., Ltd.

Chargor BERA

Epoch Keen iE3E

36 China Metal Resources Utilization Limited e B¢ B & RHMA AR A 7

HRROER

4,500,000 Share options granted on
July, 2014, with exercise
price at HK$1.13

D FERIER 201497 B
B - TEER1I3ET

Share options granted on
7 May 2015 exercise price
at HK$1.68

HERIER 201565 A7 8
B TEER1.68E T

3,000,000

Q@) M20154F3H30H @ BEMAERGT Y —BRMH AL -
Fit > BEABUE -BEML D VERERARR
362,000,000 % & @A 2 Fr BRI - B - R
i WER—TOEREATEA - ERmhEE
RMAEEEROARAREZES

Share charged
BRRG

362,000,000
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES OF THE COMPANY (continued)

Long position in the shares of the Company (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(3)ii)  Assuming full conversion of the convertible bonds at an initial conversion price of
HK$1.4 per share, the convertible bonds will be convertible into approximately
180,519,643 new shares (subject to adjustment).

According to the disclosure forms filed by China Huarong Asset Management Co.,
Ltd. on 27 March 2015, the following interests in shares of the Company were held
as follows:

Name of controlling

‘\\\

REPORT OF THE PIRECT R\S_-/

C  EEgEs
; .:‘_J‘f |~ =y &5

FERERARRQTRG R HER G
HNEZRAKE &)
RAERBRDOTFE (&)

Wi ()

(3)i) R AT EBRERE ALY IR E N 1.408 T RE
B AT E SR N 549 180,519,643 BT R 5 (AT
A
BEFHEREEEERMDBR ARNR2015F3 A
ERHFBEERR  BAAQAREROT ¢

Direct interest

Name of controlled corporation shareholder % control (Y/N) Number of shares
HEER

ERERROEERER BHEIE% (B/&) ROEE
Huarong Real Estate Co., Ltd. China Huarong Asset 100 N Long position 180,519,643
EREXAREELT Management Co., Ltd. S e

TEHEREEEERY

BRAA
Huarong Zhiyuan Investment & China Huarong Asset 100 N Long position 180,519,643
Management Co., Ltd. Management Co., Ltd. = HE

ERICEREEREREELNA TEEREEEERNHERAR
Huarong (HK) International Holdings Limited Huarong Real Estate Co., Ltd. 88.1 Y Long position 180,519,643
(B8 BRIERERAR FREXFREMERA = e
Huarong (HK) International Holdings Limited Huarong Zhiyuan Investment 1.9 Y Long position 180,519,643
EE (BB R ERER A & Management Co., Ltd. = jS95)

ERBEREEEAREIAA

4) On 15 August 2014, Silver Harvest Holdings Limited, Ocean Through Limited, First
Harvest Global Limited and Gold Wide Enterprises Limited, shareholders of the
Company, has each entered into share charges in respect of their respective
shareholding of 103,205,200, 39,401,600, 167,952,400 and 102,963,000 shares in the
Company in favour of Mianyang Science Technology City Development Investment
(Group) Co., Ltd. ("Mianyang Development Group”) as the secured party. On 10
November 2014, Epoch Keen entered into a share charge with Mianyang
Development Group, pursuant to which Epoch Keen agreed to charge by way of first
fixed charge all its rights, title, interest and benefit in 200,000,000 ordinary shares in
the Company in favour of Mianyang Development Group as the secured party. On 31
December 2015, share charges were released for Silver Harvest Holdings Limited and
Epoch Keen Limited in respect of 103,205,200 and 200,000,000 shares in the

company.
Chargor BEHA
Ocean Through Limited FEBRAR
First Harvest Global Limited EQRARAA
Gold Wide Enterprises Limited SHENEARAA

(4) M201468 A15H - BRIEBR AR QA - FEBR
AR BYRKERA Tﬁé%@m%ﬁ(ﬁ AR
RARRR) & BREZFRAAFZ 103,205,200 %
39,401,600 /% * 167,952,400 B% % 102,963,000 i % 15
2B LER-FREER BN EREE (RE)E
RAR([43 R EEE ] EAZE AT RH LD -
R2014F 11 A108 @ HREGS RSB RGO
Wi Bt BERBEUE —ETHh VEEER
N A 7] 200,000,000 % & 3@ ik 2 Fr B 42 7 - FrA 4% -
kA R — GRS EREEAZEA
M2015F 12 A318 + IRIERBR AR REESD B
Bt A8 A &2 103,205,200 % K 200,000,000 A% 7] 37 9 %
DT ERER -

Share charged
B iR G

39,401,600
167,952,400
102,963,000
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES OF THE COMPANY (continued)

Long position in the shares of the Company (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(5) On 29 June 2015, Epoch Keen entered into a share charge with Changhong (Hong
Kong) Trading Limited pursuant to which Epoch Keen agreed to charge by way of first
fixed charge all its rights, title, interest and benefit in 147,000,000 ordinary shares in
the Company in favour of Changhong (Hong Kong) Trading Limited as the secured
party. Changhong (Hong Kong) Trading Limited is wholly controlled by Sichuan
Changhong Electric Co., Ltd.

Chargor BEHA

Epoch Keen B 72

Other than as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2015, the directors
have not been notified by any person (not being the directors or chief
executive of the Company) who had 5% or more interests or short
positions in the shares or underlying shares of the Company as
recorded in the register required to be kept pursuant to Section 336 of
the SFO.

WARRANTS

Details of the warrants of the Company which were issued on 19
January 2015 and 24 February 2015 are set out in Management
Discussion & Analysis, Equity Linked Agreements under this report and
note 31(d)(vi) to the financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

As at 31 December 2015, none of the directors or their respective
associates had any business or interests in businesses which compete
or are likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the businesses
of the Group.

38 China Metal Resources Utilization Limited e B¢ B &R A AR A 7

FERERARRQTRG R HER G
HEZRARE (&)

RAERBRG TR ()
s - (48)

(6)  R2015F6A29R  KERRU(FE)EZFERLD
BRI MDD - Bt - BERBUE —BERLT
LR E A AN 2 B 147,000,000 8% % 5@ A% 2 FRA #EF -
Bt BakAE  WEAR-STHRI(FE)ES
BRARRFEGA - RIL(BB)ESERAFHM)I
RIERBRHERAR 2 EEZS -

Share charged
=t 8

147,000,000

Br EXFTiEEEE SN B E2015F 128318 ¢
MEAM AT (TIFEARFEETIZSITHA
B)NeEZHREB 5L EEENE3361EE
F 17 E R & o BT g 80 AN A &1 %D S AR B A%
DR 5% A ERER AR ©

R REE

AR E R2015%1 8198 M20159F2 A24 H
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(vi) °
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HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had a total of 832 employees (2014:
864). The Group’s staff costs for the year ended 31 December 2015
were approximately RMB79.4 million (2014: RMB57.0 million). The Group
offers its staff competitive remuneration packages. In addition,
discretionary bonuses and share options may also be granted to eligible
staff based on individual and Group's performance. The Group is
committed to nurturing a learning and sharing culture in the
organization. Heavy emphasis is placed on the training and
development of individual staff and team building, as the Group's
success is dependent on the contribution of all functional divisions
comprising skilled and motivated professionals. The Group is also
committed to social responsibility as seen in its employment of disabled
staff and providing appropriate working conditions and protection to
them.

DIVIDENDS

The Board does not recommend the payment of final dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2015 (for the year ended 31 December 2014:
HK3.0 cents per ordinary share).

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed from 2 June
2016 to 6 June 2016, both days inclusive, during which no transfer of
shares can be registered. To qualify for the attendance and voting at
the AGM, shareholders must ensure that all transfer documents
accompanied by the relevant share certificates be lodged with the
Company’s share registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor
Services Limited at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’ s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on 1
June 2016.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the articles of
association of the Company (the “Articles of Association”), or the laws
of the Cayman Islands, which would oblige the Company to offer new
shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2015 is set
out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and comprehensive income on pages 81 and
82 respectively of this annual report.

isqﬁﬁ

Y
=

ANER

R2015F 12 A31H8  AEBE T4 #8324
(20144 : 8644 ) - B E£2015%F 12 A318 1k
FE AEENEIRAKROAEARE
79,400,000 (2014 4F : AR ¥ 57,000,0007T) °
AEERESTREAHF HIOMSE - 1
Sh BERBINAREEARAERNEKER
BERMBIEANERE - RSB ONREZA
BUBERDZ L - AEERKINEBARK
DEARETREENEEABARSHES
FY ML AEESHEE THEASIIRER
RELEEK - AEERB DR EELEE
£ A RREERREAL - WAt FREE
EHTEREMRE -

R E
EEETEFRBEE2015F12 A31H IEF
B RERE (B E2014FE 12831 B ILFE -
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TEREROBEER
RAFHBRMHBEELEGN2016F6 A2H
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Details of the property, plant and equipment of the Group are set out in
note 13 to the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL
Movements of the share capital of the Company are set out in note 31
to the financial statements.

BANK LOANS
Bank Loans and other borrowings of the Company and the Group as at
31 December 2015 are set out in note 28 to the financial statements.

DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE HIGHEST
PAID INDIVIDUALS

The directors’ emoluments are determined by the Board with reference
to their duties, responsibilities and performance and the results of the
Group. Details of the directors’ emoluments and the five highest paid
individuals are set out in notes 9 and 10 to the financial statements
respectively.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

A remuneration committee was set up to develop the Group’s
emolument policy and structure for remuneration of the directors and
senior management of the Group, having regard to the Group's
operating results, individual performance of the directors and senior
management and comparable market practices.

PENSION SCHEMES

Pursuant to the relevant labour rules and regulations in the PRC, the
Group's subsidiaries in the PRC participate in defined contribution
retirement benefit schemes (the “PRC Schemes”) organized by the local
authorities whereby the subsidiaries are required to make contributions
to the PRC Schemes based on a percentage of the eligible employees’
salaries. Contributions to the PRC Schemes vest immediately. Under the
PRC Scheme, retirement benefits of existing and retired employees are
payable by the relevant scheme administrators and the Group has no
further obligations beyond the annual contributions.

40 Cchina Metal Resources Utilization Limited e #r Bl 4 B & EF AR A7)
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PENSION SCHEMES (continued)

The Group enrolled all employees in Hong Kong in the Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme ("MPF") (together with the PRC Schemes, the
"Retirement Benefit Schemes”), which is a defined contribution
retirement benefit scheme. Contributions are made based on a
percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and are charged to the
consolidated income statement as they become payable in accordance
with the rules of the MPF. The Group contributes 5% of the relevant
payroll costs to the MPF subject to a cap of monthly relevant income of
HK$25,000, and which contribution is matched by the employees. The
assets of the MPF are held separately from those of the Group, in funds
under the control of trustees. Contributions from the employer are
100% vested in the employees as soon as they are paid to the MPF and
subject to certain conditions being met, all benefits derived from the
mandatory contributions must be preserved until the employee either
reaches the normal retirement age of 65 or meets certain specified
conditions whichever is earlier.

The Group's contributions to Retirement Benefit Schemes charged to
the consolidated income statement for the year ended 31 December
2015 were RMB6,280,000 (2014: RMB3,289,000).

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract for the management and administration of the whole or
any substantial part of the business of the Company was entered into
or existed during the year.

RESERVES AND DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2015 are set out in note 31 to the
financial statements and the consolidated statement of changes in
equity respectively.

As at 31 December 2015, the Company’s distributable reserves
available for distribution amounted to RMB355,217,000, calculated in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Law (2012 Revision)
of the Cayman Islands.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

Suppliers

The percentages of purchases and sales for the year attributable to the
Group” s major suppliers and customers are as follows:

Purchases
—  the largest supplier: 6% of cost of sales

—  five largest suppliers combined: 23% of cost of sales

Sales
— the largest customer: 28% of revenue

— five largest customers combined: 63% of revenue

The scrap copper that we process comes from a variety of sources,
including used household appliances, electrical equipment and
transportation equipment, used cables and wires and scrap materials
from certain industrial manufacturing processes. We purchase our
scrap copper mainly from domestic suppliers located near our
production facilities and elsewhere in other provinces of China. We
conduct rigorous quality control tests at different stages of our
production processes, including rigorous quality tests of our raw
materials. Before entering into a business relationship with a new
supplier, we conduct diligence on the supplier’ s background and
reputation in the market to assess its suitability. In addition, we
physically inspect each delivery of raw materials to ensure its
compliance with contract specifications, including purity and copper
content.

Maintaining strong relationships with our customers is important to us
and we believe that our customers” willingness to work with us reflects,
among others, our record of producing high quality products that meet
industry standards and customer requirements.

None of the Directors of the Company or any of their associates or any
shareholders (which to the best knowledge of the Directors, own more
than 5% of the Company’ s issued share capital) had any interest in the
Group’ s five largest customers and five largest suppliers.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Group conducted the following transactions with
certain connected persons of the Company which constitute connected
transactions. There were no continuing connected transactions during
the year ended 31 December 2015.

Connected transaction exempted from the independent
shareholders’ approval requirements

Acquisition of Baohe Fushan

On 22 April 2015, the Company agreed to enter into agreements to
acquire a 30% interest in Baohe Fushan from Ms. Yu Yan Yan and Yu Jia
Jia (the “Xijiulong Vendors”) and certain independent third parties (the
“Baohe Development Vendors”) for a total consideration of
approximately RMB 135.0 million (the “Bache Fushan Agreements”).

Pursuant to the Baohe Fushan Agreements, the Xijiulong Vendors and
the Baohe Development Vendors will transfer 49% and 51%,
respectively, of the equity interest of Baohe Fushan to Hong Kong Fujian
Investments Limited ("HK Fujian Investments”), a company wholly-
owned by Deda Holdings Limited (“Deda”), which is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company. Upon such equity transfer taking effect,
Deda will issue to the Xijiulong Vendors and the Baohe Development
Vendors (or their respective designated entities), who will subscribe for,
343 and 357 new shares, respectively, representing 34.3% and 35.7% of
its issued share capital after the issue of the new shares in Deda.

The Company expects that the acquisition would provide a platform for
potential vertical expansion of the Group into the upstream scrap metal
business in the future. The acquisition of Baohe Fushan which operates
the industrial park that accommodates the Company’s key subsidiaries,
is expected to benefit the Group by securing land in the industrial park
for future expansion and diversifying the Group’s business to broaden
its revenue sources.

On 27 May 2015, the Company completed the acquisition of 30% equity
interest in Baohe Fushan through the holding of 30% of Deda which in
turns hold the entire issued shares in HK Fujian Investments and Baohe
Fushan. Deda ceased to be a subsidiary of the Company.

Ms. Yu Yanyan and Ms. Yu lJiajia, being the Xijiulong Vendors, are
daughters and associates of Mr. Yu Jiangiu, our chairman, director and
controlling shareholder, and are therefore connected persons of the
Company. Under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, the acquisition
constituted connected transaction of the Company.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Connected transaction exempted from the independent
shareholders’ approval requirements (Continued)
Acquisition of Baohe Fushan (Continued)

As the applicable percentage ratios (as defined in the Listing Rules) in
respect of the acquisition is more than 0.1% but less than 5%, the
acquisition was subject to the reporting and announcement
requirements, but was exempt from the circular and shareholders’
approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Please
refer to the announcement of the Company dated 22 April 2015 for
further details.

Acquisition of Xinhuan Aluminium

On 5 August 2015, Recycling Aluminium, an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into an equity transfer agreement
with Sichuan Jin Xunhuan E-commerce Trading Co., Ltd. (FQ)I| & &R E
FEEAR AT, previously known as Mianyang Jin Xunhuan Electronic
Trading Co., Ltd. (435 £ EIREF B AR A7) ("JX E-commerce”) for
an acquisition of 30% equity interest in Xinhuan Aluminium, for a cash
consideration of RMB1,500,000 (the “April Xinhuan Aluminum
Agreement”).

According to Xinhuan Aluminium’s Articles of Association, its registered
capital has to be fully paid up by 30 July 2016. Recycling Aluminium and
JX E-commerce, as equity holders of Xinhuan Aluminium, have agreed
to inject an additional RMB25,000,000 as paid up capital to Xinhuan
Aluminium before such date, of which Recycling Aluminium and JX
E-commerce are required to contribute RMB7,500,000 and
RMB17,500,000 respectively. Recycling Aluminium is also entitled to
appoint two out of the three members of the board of directors of
Xinhuan Aluminium.

The 30% acquisition of Xinhuan Aluminium was completed on 12
November 2015.

On 31 December 2015, Recycling Aluminum entered into an agreement
with JX E-commerce to acquire the remaining 70% equity interest in
Xinhuan Aluminum, for a cash consideration of RMB3,100,000 (the
“December Xinhuan Aluminum Agreement”). In addition, Recycling
Aluminum has an obligation, as the holder of the entire equity interest
in Xinhuan Aluminum after completion, to inject an additional
RMB25,000,000 as paid up capital to Xinhuan Aluminum before 31 July
2016.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Connected transaction exempted from the independent
shareholders’ approval requirements (Continued)
Acquisition of Xinhuan Aluminium (Continued)

After completion, Xinhuan Aluminium will become an indirect non-
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company. Xinhuan Aluminium will focus
on the sales and production of standardized aluminium ingots from
scrap aluminium as raw materials and trading standardized aluminium
ingots. The Group plans to sell such products in the Shanghai Futures
Exchange and other professional e-commerce platforms. By expanding
into the aluminium business, the Company expects to (1) enlarge its
sales volume; (2) provide a wider product portfolio to the existing and
potential customers; and (3) capitalize the synergy effect by making use
of the Company’s existing sources of raw materials, logistic system and
technical know-how.

JX E-commerce is an entity which is 90% and 10% held by Xijiulong and
Baohe Fushan respectively. Xijiulong is an investment holding company
incorporated in the PRC which is 95% and 5% controlled by Ms. Yu
Yanyan and Ms. Yu Jiagjia, respectively. Ms. Yu Yanyan and Ms. Yu Jigjia
are daughters and associates of Mr. Yu Jiangiu, Chairman, director and
controlling shareholder of the Company, and are therefore connected
persons of the Company. Baohe Fushan is an associate company of the
Ccompany. It is an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of Deda Holdings
Limited, which is 35.7%, 34.3% and 30% held by Power Route Limited,
Runwise Global Limited (which is 95% and 5% held by Ms. Yu Yanyan
and Ms. Yu Jigjia respectively) and the Company respectively.

According to Rule 14A.81 of the Listing Rules, a series of connected
transactions will be aggregated and treated as if they were one
transaction if they were all completed within a 12-month period or were
otherwise related. As the transactions under the Baohe Fushan
Agreements, the April Xinhuan Aluminum Agreement and December
Xinhuan Aluminum Agreement involved, directly or indirectly, the same
subject matter, namely the equity interest in Xinhuan Aluminum, such
transactions shall be aggregated in accordance with Rule 14A.81 of the
Listing Rules.

As the highest applicable percentage ratios upon aggregation are all
more than 0.1% but less than 5%, the transactions thereunder shall be
subject to the reporting and announcement requirements but exempt
from the independent shareholders’ approval requirement as set out in
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Please refer to the announcements of the Company dated 5 August
2015 and 31 December 2015 for further details.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Connected transaction exempted from the independent
shareholders’ approval requirements (Continued)
Acquisition of Xinhuan Aluminium (Continued)

A summary of the significant related party transactions entered into by
the Group during the year ended 31 December 2015 is contained in
note 34 to the financial statements. None constitutes a nonexempt
connected transaction under the Listing Rules. The Company has
complied with the disclosure requirements set out in Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules relating to related party transactions.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”) to provide incentive and/or reward to eligible persons for
their contribution to, and continuing efforts to promote the interests of,
our Company. The Share Option Scheme was conditionally approved by
a written resolution of the then shareholders of the Company on 28
January 2014 and has came into effect upon the Company’s listing on
21 February 2014.

Purpose

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to provide incentive and/or
reward to Eligible Persons for their contribution to, and continuing
efforts to promote the interests of, our Company.

Who may join

The Board may, at its absolute discretion, offer options (“Options”) to
subscribe for such number of Shares in accordance with the terms set
out in the Share Option Scheme to any director or employee of the
Group and any other person (including a consultant or advisor) who in
the sole discretion of the Board has contributed or will contribute to the
Group (“Eligible Persons”).

Further details of the Share Option Scheme

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of
all options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other
schemes of our Group shall not in aggregate exceed 10% of the shares
in issue as at the Listing Date (i.e. 209,832,160 shares) (the “Scheme
Mandate Limit”). Our Company may at any time as the Board may think
fit seek approval from our shareholders to refresh the Scheme Mandate
Limit, save that the maximum number of shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all options to be granted under the Share Option
Scheme and any other schemes of our Company shall not exceed 10%
of the shares in issue as at the date of approval by shareholders in
general meeting where the Scheme Mandate Limit is refreshed.

46 China Metal Resources Utilization Limited e fr Bl & B & EF AR A7)

BERXS &)
REBYRBERERECBERS (£)

WEEREE(E)
REBREZE2015F12831BIEEERTIH
BAEB AR ZBEHRIIEREM T34 - 1R
BEEMRANMELZBRIERREERS - K
REIEREE R ZET EMARAE 14AERT
BRI ERT ©

BT S
NARRRBBRETE([BRETE )  BF
HEBEBATRHERR NEE  UEER
SUARARNBNEE ANEBRSHER IR
FARRNTHIFNZE » FA20144E1 A28 B - BEARHE
STERARARERNBRREEMRERA KM
s WYEARAFR2014FE2 8218 LHE4s
Ao

=Ry

BB E EHAERATREEZRR
RE UAEREHARTNER - AL
WERBEB IR ARBNNE o

A2HEAL
ExgrRHBHBBERASEEMNESLIE
BNEZe2RRARCABEHAEEEER
MEFREMAL (REEENEAA) ([6EHS
AT D) BT AR IR B 5T 81 P 8K 53K AT ;R s
ZEEE R RBRE ([RERE]) -

BREFEZESHE
BIEEREN S RAEB T EMAEE TR
7 BRI R T A T Al B B 1T 2 IR 1D B
BEERAETEEBLETHBHEBRTRG Z
10% (B1209,832,1608%) ([FT&I#F#E LR ) o A
RAAERRESERAS BN KRELE
EHATEIRAE LR - WAREERAE S R AR
AT EA R 245 TR 2 B R T
fBMmAl R BT 2 D BB LIRS RBRER
REAGHEREHTSIRELRE BEEHITR
72 10% °



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

Further details of the Share Option Scheme (Continued)

Our Company may seek separate approval from our shareholders in
general meeting for granting Options beyond the Scheme Mandate
Limit, provided that the Options in excess of the Scheme Mandate Limit
are granted only to the Eligible Person specified by our Company before
such approval is obtained. The maximum number of shares which may
be issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to
be exercised under the Share Option Scheme and any other options
granted and yet to be exercised under any other scheme shall not
exceed 30% of our Company's issued share capital from time to time.
No options may be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any
other share option scheme of our Company if this will result in such
limit being exceeded.

The Scheme Mandate Limit was refreshed by a resolution passed at the
annual general meeting held on 9 June 2015. The maximum number of
options that can be granted by the Company was refreshed to
210,514,560 share options.

The total number of shares available for issue under the Share Option
Scheme of the Company in 2015 was 210,514,560 shares, which was
approximately 10% of the issued share capital as at the date of this
annual report.

No Option may be granted to any one person such that the total
number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of Options
granted and to be granted to that person in any 12-month period up to
the date of the latest grant exceeds 1% of our Company’s issued share
capital from time to time.

Subject to the terms of the Share Option Scheme, the Board shall be
entitled at any time within 10 years after the date of adoption of the
Share Option Scheme to offer the grant of an Option to any Eligible
Person as the Board may in its absolute discretion select to subscribe
at the subscription price for such number of shares as the Board may
(subject to the terms of the Share Option Scheme) determine (provided
the same shall be a board lot for dealing in the shares on the Stock
Exchange or an integral multiple thereof).

Subject to the terms of the Scheme, the Board may in its absolute
discretion when offering the grant of an Option specify such conditions,
restrictions or limitations in relation thereto in addition to those set forth
in the Share Option Scheme as the Board may think fit when making an
offer to an Eligible Person (including, without limitation, as to any
performance criteria which must be satisfied by the Eligible Person and/
or the Company and/or its Subsidiaries, and any minimum period for
which an Option must be held, before an Option may be exercised, if
any), provided that such conditions shall not be inconsistent with any
other terms or conditions of the Share Option Scheme.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

Further details of the Share Option Scheme (Continued)

An Option shall be deemed to have been granted and accepted by the
Eligible Person and to have taken effect when the duplicate offer letter
comprising acceptance of the offer of the Option duly signed by the
grantee together with a remittance in favor of our Company of HK$1.00
by way of consideration for the grant thereof is received by our
Company on or before 30 days after the offer date. To the extent that
an offer is not accepted within the time stated in the offer for that
purpose, it shall be deemed to have been irrevocably declined and shall
immediately lapse.

The subscription price in respect of any particular Option shall be such
price as the Board may in its absolute discretion determine at the time
of grant of the relevant Option (and shall be stated in the letter
containing the offer of the grant of the Option) but the subscription
price shall be at least the highest of:

(@)  the closing price of a share as stated in the Stock Exchange's daily
quotations sheet on the offer date, which must be a business day;

(b) the average closing price of a share as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five business days
immediately preceding the offer date; and

(¢)  the nominal value of a share.

An Option shall be exercised in whole or in part within the option period
which is the period to be determined and notified by the Board to the
grantee during which period the Option may be exercised and in any
event shall not exceed ten years commencing from the date on which
the offer in relation to such Option is accepted.

The Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of 10
years from the date of adoption of the Share Option Scheme (i.e. 28
January 2014), after which no further options will be granted or offered
but the provisions of the Share Option Scheme shall remain in full force
and effect to the extent necessary to give effect to the exercise of any
subsisting Options granted prior to the expiry of the 10-year period or
otherwise as may be required in accordance with the provisions of the
Share Option Scheme.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) B S
Further details of the Share Option Scheme (Continued) BRETE2ESFHE(E)
Movements of the Share Option Scheme during the year ended 31 & ZE2015F 12 A3 B I EE - BRR#E 22
December 2015 are as follows: FEHIINT :

Price of share of the Company

KRARGBER
Number Number of
of shares shares at the at the
options Lapsed/ options Exercise grant exercise
held at 1 Granted Exercised cancelled held at 31 price date date
January during during during December  Exercise period of share of share of share
Category Date of grant 2015 2015 2015 2015 2015 of share options options options options
R2015E R2015E
1A1A 12A318
BEZ #2015% H2015% #2015 % BEZ e BRE BhRE
EhEsA B (i) RN/ BREZE BRECES Tft® RHAH TERH
HK$ HK$
Directors
[ £3
Mr. Liu Hanju 2July 2014 12,000,000 - - (12,000,000) - - 113 107 -
HENSEE N14F7A2A
Mr. Kwong Wai Sun Wilson 7May 2015 - 5,000,000 - - 5000000 7 May2015t06May 2025 168 1.68 -
BeREkE 01545478 WISESATRE
0555868
Mr. Huang Wai Ping 2uly 2014 2,000,000 - - - 2000000 2July 2014 t0 1 July 2024 113 107 -
ERWEE 1457 A28 NUETA28E
224577818
Ms. Zhu Yufen 2July 2014 10,000,000 - - - 10,000,000 2July 2014 t0 1 July 2024 113 107 -
REFLL 1457 A2A NUETR2AE
X%57A18
Mr. Pan Liansheng 7May 2015 - 1,000,000 - - 1,000,000 7 May 2015to 6 May 2025 1.68 168 -
EEREE 1555878 N5E5A782
5E5A68
M. Leg Ting Bun Denny 7May 2015 - 1,000,000 - - 1000000 7 May 20150 6 May 2025 168 168 -
Eirytd M565A7H WISESATRE
0555A68
Ms. Liu Rong 7May 2015 - 1,000,000 - (1,000,000 - - 168 1.68 -
Eryen M565A7H
Eligible persons other
than directors
EZ2MIRERAT
Eligible persons other 2July 2014 83,390,000 - - (3,940,000) 79450000 2July 2014 to 1 July 2024 113 107 -
than directors
EZ/OMAERAT 01447428 0W57A28%E
04%7818
Eligile persons other 7 May 2015 - 94,360,000 - (1,610,000) 92,750,000 7 May 20150 6 May 2025 168 168 -
than directors
EZ/MAERAT M1565A78 WI5E5A7RE
05%5868
Eligible persons other 23 July 2015 - 7,600,000 - - 7600000 24 July 2016 to 216 167 -
than directors 23 January 2017
EZ/MAERAT 0154574238 WIETAURE
017518238
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) RS E (e
Further details of the Share Option Scheme (Continued) BRETEIZ2ESHIE (&)

The key terms and conditions related to the grants under the share  ERIEREIG T 2IE LERESENETEER
option scheme are as follows; all options are to be settled by the  wispinT - FrA RIS EBERESNBG

physical delivery of shares. wE -

Number of
Grant date/ instruments Contractual life

employees entitled in thousands Vesting conditions of options
BRERY ERESZEE IAZHE(TH) BEGH BRESHTH

Options granted to

directors
RTIESHNBRE
— On 2 July 2014 24,000 One third on the first 10 years
— 201447 A28 anniversary, one third onthe 104
second anniversary, and the
remaining on the third
anniversary of the
grant respectively
=HZ—REHNE—BF -
=HZ—REZBER
HEHBRE=RAT
— On 7 May 2015 8,000 Same as above 10 years
—R2015F 5878 il 104

Options granted to

employees
BT EEMNBRE
— On 2 July 2014 89,000 Same as above 10 years
— 2014467 A2H il 104
— On 7 May 2015 94,360  Same as above 10 years
— 20156 5/7H A+ 104
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) B Sl
Further details of the Share Option Scheme (Continued) BRETE2ESFHE(E)

Number of
Grant date/ instruments Contractual life

employees entitled in thousands Vesting conditions of options
REBH EEERZESE IAHH(TH) BEKHE BRESNFEH

Options granted to
certain eligible

participants
RTFETEEKRSHEA
B BB IR A
— 0On 23 July 2015 7,600 On the first anniversary of the Six months commencing from
— R2015%7 A 23 H date upon which the share the expiry of the first
options are accepted subject anniversary of the date of
to the grantees remaining as acceptance and expiring
eligible persons at the date on the last day of the
of vesting 6 month-period

REBREEZANE-BFER EMWRHRFE - BFERALE
HEARARGBEARADNREE EXNEABRNKE —BRLEZR
BAL @A

Total share options
granted 222,960
ERHBREAH

The fair value of the Relevant Share Options granted were estimated as 2 > AEERE Y AFERAZH B EBEH
at the dates of grant using a binomial model, taking into account the —IBXXEA(GHE D Z B H G EEIRE 7 &
terms and conditions upon which the Relevant Share Options were R {&4F o

granted.

Annual Report 2015 ¢« —Z—F4F 4 51



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

3§ \
- ‘E’E’:\h‘k i

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)
Further details of the Share Option Scheme (Continued)
The following table sets out the inputs to the model used:

2 July 2014
Grant date Share options granted to
2014%7 A 2H
Riti A BRERT
Executive
directors
HTES
Fair value at measurement
date (HK) R ERSMZ AFE(ETL) 044
share price (HK9) RE(ETL) 107
Exercise price (HK9) T E (L) 113
Expected volatility EHRIE 45.54%
Expected life EHAME 10years
10F
Expected dividends AHRE 3%
Risk-free interest rate
(based on Hong Kong ERRFIE (B BINE
Exchange Fund Notes) HEZEARAEE) 2.059%
Exercise multiple TR 28
Post-vesting exit rate FEERAR 0%

No other feature of the Relevant Share Options was incorporated into
the measurement of fair value.

The value of the Relevant Share Options is subject to the limitations of
the binomial model and a number of assumptions which are subjective
and difficult to ascertain. Changes in the subjective input assumptions
could materially affect the fair value estimate.

Further details relating to the Share Option Scheme and share options
granted thereunder are set out in note 2(t)(ii) and note 32 to the financial
statements and the announcements of the Company dated 2 July 2014,
7 May 2015 and 23 July 2015.
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BRETE (2
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23 July 2015*
Share options
granted to
201575238
BRERT
Certain eligible
participants
ETREKSHE

7 May 2015
Share options granted to
201558 7R
BRERT
Executive
directors
BITES

Other
employees
Hipfgg

Other

0.39 0.71 0.58 223
1.07 1.68 1.68 1.67
113 1.68 1.68 216
45.54% 46.20% 46.20% 49.43%
10 years 10 years 10 years 1.5years
0% 0% 0% 15
3% 3% 3% 3%
2.05%% 1.745% 1.745% 0.23%%
22 28 22 -
5.44% 0% 16.12% -
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PLEDGE OF SHARES BY CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDER

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 10 November
2014, on the same day, Epoch Keen entered into a share charge with
Mianyang Development Group, pursuant to which Epoch Keen agreed
to charge by way of first fixed charge all its rights, title, interest and
benefit in 200,000,000 ordinary shares in the Company (representing
9.50% of the issued share capital of the Company as at the date of the
2014 Share Charge) in favour of Mianyang Development Group as the
secured party (the “2014 Share Charge”) as security for the liabilities of
Tongxin for the second tranche of an entrusted loan of an aggregate
principal amount of up to RMB600,000,000 entered into by and among
Tongxin (as borrower) and Mianyang Development Group (as the lender
by way of entrusted loan) by way of a co-operation agreement dated 29
July 2014 (the “Loan”).

The first drawdown of the Loan in a principal amount of
RMB200,000,000 and the second drawdown of the Loan in a principal
amount of RMB100,000,000 (the “Second Tranche Principal”) had
occurred. The entering into the 2014 Share Charge is a condition
precedent to the drawdown of the Second Tranche Principal under the
Loan. The 2014 Share Charge has been released on 31 December 2015.

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 30 March
2015, the same day, Epoch Keen entered into a share charge (“2015
Share Charge”) with Huarong, pursuant to which Epoch Keen agreed to
charge by way of first fixed charge all its rights, title and interest in
362,000,000 ordinary shares in the Company (representing 17.20% of
the issued share capital of the Company as at the date of the 2015
Share Charge) in favour of Huarong as the secured party.

The 2015 Share Charge has been entered into as security for the
liabilities of the Company under a subscription agreement in relation to
the issue of convertible bonds due 2017 entered in to between the
Company and Huarong on 27 March 2015. As at the date of this annual
report, the 2015 Share Charge has not been released.
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PLEDGE OF SHARES BY CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDER (continued)

On 29 June 2015, Epoch Keen entered into a share charge with
Changhong (Hong Kong) Trading Limited (“Changhong Share Charge”)
pursuant to which Epoch Keen agreed to charge by way of first fixed
charge all its rights, title, interest and benefit in 147,000,000 ordinary
shares in the Company (representing 6.98% of the issued share capital
of the Company as at the date of Changhong Share Charge) in favour of
Changhong (Hong Kong) Trading Limited as the secured party to secure,
amongst others, the repayment of the prepayment amount from
Sichuan Changhong Electric Co., Ltd (“Sichuan Changhong") to Tongxin
under an annual sales contract entered into between Tongxin and
Sichuan Changhong on 16 June 2015. Changhong (Hong Kong) Trading
Limited is wholly controlled by Sichuan Changhong. As at the date of
this annual report, this share charge has not been released.

EQUITY LINKED AGREEMENTS

Share Option Scheme

Details of the Share Option Scheme of the Company are set out in the
section above headed “SHARE OPTION SCHEMES”

Warrant Subscription Agreements

On 19 December 2014, the Company entered into a warrant
subscription agreement with each of the 7 subscribers, pursuant to
which the Company has agreed to issue and the subscribers have
agreed to subscribe for an aggregate of 133,650,000 warrants at an
issue price of HK$0.001 per warrant. Obligations of the Company and
each of the subscribers of the warrant subscription are conditional
upon, among other matters, the fulfillment of the conditions stated in
the Company’s announcement dated 19 December 2014. The warrants
will be vested in phases according to the vesting conditions. In the five
years from the date of completion, after the warrants are being vested
and become effective, each warrant will entitle its holder to subscribe
for one share at a subscription price of HK$1.30 per share (subject to
adjustment). The vesting condition is that the suppliers shall carry out
the transactions under their respective annual procurement
agreements, pursuant to which the suppliers, in aggregate, agree to
supply 49,500 tons of copper scrap raw materials to the Group in 2015
at a fixed discount of RMB1,000 per ton. Upon the full exercise of the
subscription rights attaching to the warrants, an aggregate of up to
133,650,000 shares will be issued. The aggregate net proceeds in cash
from the warrant subscription and the exercise of the subscription
rights attaching to the warrants is approximately HK$173,878,650.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

EQUITY LINKED AGREEMENTS (continued)

Warrant Subscription Agreements (Continued)

On 19 January 2015, the Company issued 133,650,000 warrants to
seven subscribers. For the year ended 31 December 2015, the suppliers
have delivered an aggregate of 7,180 tons of copper scrap raw materials
to the Group, resulting in the vesting of 19,385,878 warrants
accordingly. Please refer to the announcement dated 19 December
2014.

On 4 February 2015, the Company entered into a warrant subscription
agreement with 3 subscribers pursuant to which the Company has
agreed to issue and the subscribers have agreed to subscribe for an
aggregate of 102,000,000 warrants at an issue price of HK$0.001 per
warrant. Obligations of the Company and each of the subscribers of the
warrant subscription are conditional upon, among other matters, the
fulfillment of the conditions stated in the Company’s announcement
dated 5 February 2015. The warrants are to be vested in phases
according to the vesting conditions. In the five years from the date of
completion, after the warrants are being vested and become effective,
each warrant will entitle its holder to subscribe for one share at a
subscription price of HK$1.50 per share (subject to adjustment). The
vesting condition is that the suppliers shall carry out the transactions
under their respective annual procurement agreements, pursuant to
which the suppliers, in aggregate, agree to supply 30,000 tons of copper
scrap raw materials to the Group from 1 February 2015 to 31 January
2016 at a fixed discount of RMB2,000 per ton. Each warrant entitles its
holder to subscribe for one share of the Company at a subscription
price of HK$1.50 per share. Upon the full exercise of the subscription
rights attaching to the warrants, an aggregate of up to 102,000,000
Shares will be issued.

The aggregate net proceeds in cash from the warrant subscription and
the exercise of the subscription rights attaching to the warrants is
approximately HK$153,102,000.

On 24 February 2015, the Company issued the 102,000,000 warrants to
three subscribers. For the year ended 31 December 2015, the suppliers
have delivered an aggregate of 2,449 tons of copper scrap raw materials
to the Group, resulting in the vesting of 8,328,072 warrants accordingly.
Please refer to the announcement dated 5 February 2015.

EREHRE

R NHE e
AREIRZEHZ (2B

R2015F 1198 » KRG AEHREAET
133,650,000 17 72 f% # 7% o & = 20159F 12 A 31
HIFFE  HEMDAREBEXS #7180
A ) % 85 SRR A KL - [ T 28 %80 19,385,878 17 7R
MIEESRE - F2H B A2014F12A19H
/NI

R2015F2 348 » KRR E=ARBE AL
RREFERERZE - Bl ZRFRREETR
RIE AR EREA ££102,000,00010 R AERE -
BTEAEMNRBREE0001B T - AAE &
RREBFRENTERBANEB ARG (HAF
BIE)ENAARBEA2015F 2658 2 A%
Fraft it - A 248 - RREBBRIERS
BHEDEERRE - AT BEHRsTATFR - B
RREFHBERERE  BOHRREZER T
HEEAAERN A RRBEER150ET(H
FRB)RE-RRD  BEEGAEERE
TEESARTFEERERZR THNRS - IBRIET
EHERZE  SHEBREN2015F2H1H
HEZE2016F1 AN HUBEET EZFHEARE
2,0007C -+ &4 530,000 ME ) B8 & § R # L F
REB - FOHRBEFESR TERBEAER
AIRRBEERISOB TRE —BRAQ AR
19 o FFRIEFBMIN 2 REBREBHITHEE
154 HE3175% % 102,000,000 AL 15 ©

B RRIEEREER LT RBREEMK 2R
BEELANREMERBIFESHOAR
153,102,000 7T °

R2015F2 424 B » AREIAI = REAET
102,000,000 17 52 f% #E 2% o # = 20154 12 A 31
BIEFE #HEBCRARNEEERXS £2449
WERY RE E SRR AR - AT & 88,328,072 17 3R K
EERE - H2MBEA2015F 2858 2 A% -

Annual Report 2015 ¢ —Z—h 543 55



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
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EQUITY LINKED AGREEMENTS (continued)

Warrant Subscription Agreements (Continued)

The above warrant subscriptions were entered into as both the total
effective issue price and the subscription price are at a premium over
the value of the warrants appraised by an independent valuer and the
then recent trading prices of the Shares, respectively. Tongxin, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Group, entered into one-year annual
procurement agreements with each of the 10 suppliers as above,
pursuant to which each of the suppliers has agreed to supply a targeted
amount of copper scrap raw materials at a fixed discount as compared
to the same-day average purchase price of the Group from other
suppliers. The issue of the warrants is effectively in consideration of the
discounts offered by the suppliers. In addition, the arrangements are
expected to encourage such suppliers to achieve the targeted amount
to supply raw material with a view to broaden the Group’s supplier base
to cater for the Group’s production needs.

Convertible Bonds Subscription Agreement

On 27 March 2015, the Company entered into the subscription
agreement with Huarong relating to the issuance of convertible bonds
by the Company to Huarong in an aggregate principal amount of
USD32,610,000 expiring at the second anniversary date of the issue
date .

The obligations of Huarong to subscribe and pay for, and the obligations
of the Company to issue, the convertible bonds are conditional upon,
among other things, the fulfillment of certain conditions as stated in the
announcement of the Company dated 27 March 2015.

On 13 April 2015, the Company completed the issuance of convertible
bonds to Huarong in an aggregate principal amount of USD32,610,000.
The convertible bonds bear a fixed interest rate of 10% with interest to
be paid on a quarterly basis. The convertible bonds will expire at the
second anniversary of the issue date and are convertible into ordinary
shares of HK$0.10 each in the issued share capital of the Company at
an initial conversion price of HK$1.40 per share (subject to adjustment).
Subject as provided in the terms and conditions, the bondholder(s) shall
be entitled to convert, in whole or in part, the convertible bonds into
shares of the Company on any business day from the issue date up to
and including the day preceding the maturity date. The terms and
conditions of the convertible bonds restrict the exercise of conversion
right up to an aggregate principal amount of the convertible bonds of
UsD16,300,000, which is convertible to approximately 90,555,555
ordinary shares of the Company (based on a condition in the terms and
conditions which provides that based on the agreed exchange rate, the
principle amount of the convertible bond shall be deducted by USD0.18
upon the issue of one conversion share).

56 China Metal Resources Utilization Limited e FREl&E & REFIABRA A

e
DRERDBGE ()

R B RS 40 B 1T B 2 SR R (B 5 B BB L 4 & B
ST (o SRR A 2 ) 1B 1 T AR A ) 2 B T B A (B
BRE HOETT ERRREEREEIE - A%
B2 EMBLA TSR R 102 HERS A
T FHMEEEERS B EHERR
BUAL RSB E it FER IS R E B IR
BEET I RMER - (RSN R EE R
EMBTAEE - RREBOBTER FEZ
AL E R FTIR AT o IS - AR HETE
SHE RS ER R RN AT B
B BENBEAEE MG ERER - EAAL
ML EES -

AR R 25 SRR

M201543 A27 8 » NAREEFF] LR
# ANRERARARRAERETASEAHR
32,610,000 TR AI I fE 75 - B M A /3T
FHMBFEER -

ERmABABRRES RN ROEEAREAF
BITABRBREFHETIRRARRBEHRA
201553 H27 B REFrAt ey E TIRIFRED 2K

R2015F 4 4138 « AT TR MERIEITA
T EA 132,610,000 TR AJ AR E 5 - AR
BEHFZETFE10%TE - FIESELM -
AR ESSRETHBRRBEFTE AR I
AR LR E IR 1.4078 T (7] FHAE) Hig
ARNREBITRAR FREECIOE LA L
R o RIBBEARAGHE - EFFEAGRE
RETHHRREZZAA (BEZA)FIERE
XHBABRESE BRI ERERQFRK
5 o ATRRREH IR R RE - T 518
RS REEIRBRESNBAARS A
16,300,000 JT + E 7] i # & %9 90,555,555 %
AL B (BRI R R A E R — T
o ERFEEREHELBRE  RET—RA
B H BB ES RS R AR 0183
JT) °



REPORT OF THE DIRECT%RS

EQUITY LINKED AGREEMENTS (continued)
Convertible Bonds Subscription Agreement (Continued)

The Directors are of the view that the convertible bonds issue
represented a good opportunity for the Company to raise funds to
strengthen its financial position and to finance the Group’s future
development and expansion, including the acquisition of interest in
Baohe Fushan. The Directors consider that raising funds by way of
issuing the convertible bonds would enable the Company to obtain
funds with a lower financial cost considering the recent debt and equity
market conditions. In addition, the Directors are of the view that an
investment by Huarong and China Huarong Asset Management Co.,
Ltd., a reputable institutional investor, in convertible instrument of the
Company represents a recognition in the investment value of the
Company, and would contribute to building a long term relationship
with the Investor group.

Details of the proposed issue of new shares under the general mandate
of the Company and the disposal of shares by a substantial shareholder
are set out in the note 39 to the financial statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SHARES
There was no purchase, sale or redemption by the Company, or any of
its subsidiaries, of the listed securities of the Company from the Listing
Date up to 31 December 2015.

DEED OF NON-COMPETITION

Mr. Yu Jiangiu and Epoch Keen, being controlling shareholders of the
Company, entered into a deed of non-competition (“Deed of Non-
Competition”) dated 6 February 2014, details of which have been set
out in the paragraph headed “Non-Competition Undertaking” in the
section headed "Relationship with Controlling Shareholders” of the
Prospectus.

The Company has reviewed the annual declaration from the parties on
compliance with their undertaking under the Deed of Non-Competition.
The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the status of
compliance and confirmed that all the undertakings under the Deed of
Non-Competition have been complied with by the parties .
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EFERS

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT
As at the date of this annual report, the directors of the Company
confirmed that based on information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the directors, the Company had
maintained sufficient amount of public float as required under the
Listing Rules and agreed by the Stock Exchange.

AUDITORS

KPMG has been appointed as auditor of the Company in 2015. KPMG
shall retire in the forthcoming annual general meeting and, being
eligible, will offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for the
re-appointment of KPMG as auditor of the Company will be proposed at
the forthcoming annual general meeting.

PROFESSIONAL TAX ADVICE RECOMMENDED

If any shareholder is unsure about the taxation implications of
purchasing, holding, disposing of, dealing in, or the exercise of any
rights in relation to the Shares, it is advised to consult an expert.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to article 164 of the Articles, every Director is entitled to be
indemnified and secured harmless out of assets of the Company from
and against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses
which any of them, their or any of their heirs, executors or
administrators, shall or may incur or sustain by or by reason of any act,
done, concurred in or omitted in or about the execution of their duty, or
supposed duty, in their respective offices or trusts (except such is
incurred or sustained through his own fraud or dishonesty). Such
provision is currently in force and was in force throughout the financial
year ended 31 December 2015.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND CORPORATE
RESPONSIBILITY

As a responsible corporation, the Group is committed to maintaining
the highest environmental and social standards to ensure sustainable
development of its business. To the best knowledge of the Directors,
the Group has complied with all the relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the Group in relation to its business
including health and safety, workplace conditions, employment and the
environment. The Group understands that a better future depends on
everyone’ s participation and contribution. It has encouraged all
employees to participate in environmental and social activities which
benefit the community as a whole.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND CORPORATE
RESPONSIBILITY (continued)

The Group itself is operating in the environmental protection industry by
virtue of recycling scrap metal materials in the society. Contributing to
resolve a significant part of pollution problem in the vicinity of our
plants, the Group was highly praised and encouraged by the local
governments. The Group is also committed to social responsibility as
seen in its employment of disabled staff and providing appropriate
working conditions and protection to them. The Group also advocated
conservation of resources in office and encouraged employees to
develop good habits, conserve resources and energy to build a green
and comfortable office environment.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group donated
RMB379,000 to charitable organization (2014: RMB333,000).

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Company has applied
the principles of and is in compliance with all code provisions of the
Corporate Governance Code as set forth in Appendix 14 of the Listing
Rules save as disclosed below.

Code Provision A.2.1 provides that the roles of Chairman and Chief
Executive should be separate and should not be performed by the same
individual. The division of responsibilities between the Chairman and
Chief Executive should be clearly established and set out in writing.
Currently, Mr. Yu Jiangiu is both the Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer of the Company. As Mr. Yu is the founder of the Group and has
extensive experience in operations and management, the Board
believes that it is in the best interest of the Group to have Mr. Yu taking
up both roles for continuous effective management and business
development of the Group.

Code provision A.6.7 provides that the independent non-executive
Directors and non-executive Directors should attend general meetings
of the Company. Code provision E.1.2 provides that the chairman of the
board should attend the annual general meeting and also invite the
chairmen of the audit, remuneration, nomination and any other
committees (as appropriate) to attend. In their absence, he should invite
another member of the committee or failing this his duly appointed
delegate, to attend. These persons should be available to answer
guestions at the annual general meeting.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (continued)

Due to other business engagements, the independent non-executive
Directors were not able to attend the annual general meeting of the
Company held on 9 June 2015. Nonetheless, certain executive Directors
and senior management were present to answer questions from
shareholders at the AGM. The Chairman of the board Mr. Yu Jiangiu
attended the annual general meeting of the Company. To ensure
compliance with the Corporate Governance Code in the future, the
Company has arranged and will continue to arrange to furnish all
Directors with appropriate information on all general meetings and take
all reasonable measures to arrange the schedule in such a cautious
way that all Directors can attend the general meetings.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE REQUIRED STANDARD
OF DEALINGS IN SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS OF LISTED ISSUERS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding the directors’
securities transactions on terms not less exacting than the required
standard set out in the Model Code in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.
After specific enquiry made by the Company, all directors confirmed
that they had complied with the required standards set out in the Model
Code and the code of conduct regarding the directors” securities
transactions throughout 2015.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

The Directors would like to take this opportunity to express our sincere
thanks to all the shareholders and business associates for their
continuous support and the entire staff for their dedication and
contribution to the Group during the year.

By order of the Board

China Metal Resources Utilization Limited
Chairman

Yu Jiangiu

Hong Kong, 31 March 2016
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
The Board is pleased to present this Corporate Governance Report in
the Company’s annual report for the year ended 31 December 2015.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Group recognizes the vital importance of good corporate
governance to the Group’s success and sustainability. We are
committed to achieving a high standard of corporate governance as an
essential component of quality and have introduced corporate
governance practices appropriate to the conduct and growth of our
business.

Since the Listing Date, the Company has applied the principles of and is
in compliance with all code provisions of the Corporate Governance
Code as set forth in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules save as disclosed
below.

Code Provision A.2.1 provides that the roles of Chairman and Chief
Executive should be separate and should not be performed by the same
individual. The division of responsibilities between the Chairman and
Chief Executive should be clearly established and set out in writing.
Currently, Mr. Yu Jiangiu is both the Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer of the Company. As Mr. Yu is the founder of the Group and has
extensive experience in operations and management, the Board
believes that it is in the best interest of the Group to have Mr. Yu taking
up both roles for continuous effective management and business
development of the Group.

Code provision A.6.7 provides that the independent non-executive
Directors and non-executive Directors should attend general meetings
of the Company. Code provision E.1.2 provides that the chairman of the
board should attend the annual general meeting and also invite the
chairmen of the audit, remuneration, nomination and any other
committees (as appropriate) to attend. In their absence, he should invite
another member of the committee or failing this his duly appointed
delegate, to attend. These persons should be available to answer
guestions at the annual general meeting.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

ERELSRE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES (continued)
Due to other business engagements, the independent non-executive
Directors were not able to attend the annual general meeting of the
Company held on 9 June 2015. Nonetheless, certain executive Directors
and senior management were present to answer questions from
shareholders at the AGM. The Chairman of the board Mr. Yu Jiangiu
attended the annual general meeting of the Company. To ensure
compliance with the Corporate Governance Code in the future, the
Company has arranged and will continue to arrange to furnish all
Directors with appropriate information on all general meetings and take
all reasonable measures to arrange the schedule in such a cautious
way that all Directors can attend the general meetings.

Key corporate governance principles and practices of the Company as
well as details relating to the foregoing deviation are summarized
below.

THE BOARD

Responsibilities

The Board is responsible for overall management and control of the
Company. The Board’s main roles are to provide leadership and to
approve strategic policies and plans with a view to enhancing
shareholder value. All Directors carry out their duties in good faith and
in compliance with applicable laws and regulations, taking decisions
objectively, and acting in the interests of the Company and its
shareholders at all times.

All Directors have full and timely access to all relevant information as
well as the advice and services of the Company Secretary and senior
management, with a view to ensuring that Board procedures and all
applicable laws and regulations are followed.

The Board reserves for its decision all major matters of the Company,
including: approval and monitoring of all policy matters, overall
strategies and budgets, internal control and risk management systems,
material transactions (in particular those that may involve conflict of
interests), financial information, appointment of directors and other
significant financial and operational matters.

Directors have full and timely access to consult with the Company’s
senior management independently. Any Director and Board Committee
may request independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances at the Company’s expense, upon making reasonable
request to the Board.
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THE BOARD (continued)

Responsibilities (Continued)

The Board has delegated the authority and responsibility for day-to-day
management and operation of the Group to the senior management of
the Group. To oversee particular aspects of the Company’s affairs, the
Board has established three Board committees, namely the audit and
corporate governance committee (the "Audit and Corporate
Governance Committee”), the remuneration committee (the
“Remuneration Committee”), the nomination committee (the
“Nomination Committee”) (together, the “Board Committees”). The
Board has delegated to the Board Committees responsibilities as set
out in their respective terms of reference.

BOARD COMPOSITION
As at the date of this annual report, the directors of the Company were
as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Yu Jiangiu (Chairman and chief executive officer)
Mr. Liu Hanjiu (resigned on 30 November 2015)

Mr. Kwong Wai Sun Wilson

Mr. Huang Weiping

Ms. Zhu Yufen

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Lee Ting Bun Denny

Mr. Pan Liansheng

Ms. Liu Rong (resigned on 30 November 2015)
Ms. Ren Ruxian (appointed on 30 November 2015)

Biographical details of the Directors and senior management of the
Group are set out in the section headed “Directors and Senior
Management” in this annual report.

Mr. Liu Hanjiu has tendered his resignation as an executive director of
the Company with effect from 30 November 2015 due to health
reasons. Mr. Liu has confirmed that he has no disagreement with the
Board and there is no matter relating to his resignation that needs to be
brought to the attention of the shareholders of the Company or the
Stock Exchange.
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BOARD COMPOSITION (continued)

Ms. Liu Rong has tendered her resignation as an independent non-
executive director, the chairman of the Nomination Committee and a
member of each of the Audit and Corporate Governance Committee
and the Remuneration Committee with effect from 30 November 2015
in order to devote more time on her work at the Southwest University
of Finance and Economics in China. Ms. Liu confirmed that she has no
disagreement with the Board and there are no other matters with
respect to her resignation that needs to be brought to the attention of
the shareholders of the Company or the Stock Exchange.

Ms. Ren Ruxian was appointed as an independent non-executive
director of the Company, the chairman of the Nomination Committee,
and a member of each of the Audit and Corporate Governance
Committee and the Remuneration Committee with effect from 30
November 2015.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Company has been in
compliance with the requirements of Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10(2) of the
Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three independent
non-executive directors with at least one independent non-executive
director possessing appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management expertise.

The Company has also complied with the requirement of Rule 3.10A of
the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of independent non-
executive directors representing at least one-third of the Board.

Each of the Independent Non-executive Director has confirmed his/her
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and the
Company considers each of them to be independent.

All Directors have brought a wide range of valuable business
experience, knowledge and professionalism to the Board for its efficient
and effective functioning. Moreover, through active participation in
Board meetings, taking the lead in managing issues involving potential
conflict of interests and serving on Board committees, all independent
non-executive directors make various contributions to the effective
direction of the Company.
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INDUCTION AND CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

The directors have been provided with the relevant training to ensure
that they have a proper understanding of the business and operations
of the Company and that they are fully aware of their responsibilities
and obligations as a director of a listed company as well as the
compliance practice under the Listing Rules.

5 R

The attendance record of professional trainings received by the
Directors is as follows:

Date of attendance of

Director director’s training
Mr. Yu Jiangiu 8 December 2015
Mr. Liu Hanjiu N/A as resigned

8 December 2015
8 December 2015
8 December 2015
8 December 2015
8 December 2015
N/A as resigned

8 December 2015

Mr. Kwong Wai Sun Wilson
Mr. Huang Weiping

Ms. Zhu Yufen

Mr. Lee Ting Bun Denny
Mr. Pan Liansheng

Ms. Liu Rong

Ms. Ren Ruxian

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Code provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer should be separate and should not be performed by
the same individual.

Mr. Yu Jiangiu is Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer of
the Company. As Mr. Yu is the founder of the Group and has extensive
experience in corporate operations and management, the Board
believes that it is in the best interest of the Group to have Mr. Yu taking
up both roles for continuous effective management and business
development of the Group.

The Board considers that the current structure of vesting the roles of
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer in the same person will not impair
the balance of power and authority between the Board and the
management of the Company.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The appointment of independent non-executive directors, subject to re-
nomination and re-election by the Company in general meeting, shall
be for a term of two years unless previously terminated in accordance
with the terms and conditions specified in their appointment. Ms. Ren
Ruxian was appointed as an independent non-executive director of the
Company for a term of two years commencing on 30 November 2015.

The director’s fee specified in the letter of appointment of each of
independent non-executive Directors are HK$200,000 per annum.

All independent non-executive Directors possess extensive academic,
professional and/or industry expertise and management experience
and have provided their professional advice to the Board.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS

None of the directors who is proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has any service contract which is not
determinable by the Group within one year without payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation).

The rules and procedures governing the appointment, retirement, re-
election and removal of directors are set out in the Articles of
Association of the Company. The Nomination Committee is responsible
for reviewing the Board structure, size and composition and making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment and re-appointment
of directors and succession planning for directors.

Independent non-executive directors are appointed for a specific term,
subject to re-election. In accordance with the Articles of Association, at
each annual general meeting of the Company ("AGM"), at least one
third of the Directors for the time being (or, if their number is not three
or a multiple of three, then the number nearest to, but not less than,
one-third) shall retire from office by rotation, provided that each
Director shall be subject to retirement at an AGM at least once every
three years.

Any new director appointed to fill a casual vacancy on the Board or as
an addition to the existing Board shall be subject to re-election at the
next AGM after his appointment.
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BOARD MEETINGS

The Board intends to hold board meetings regularly at least four times a
year at approximately quarterly intervals. Notices of not less than
fourteen days will be given for all regular board meetings to provide all
directors with an opportunity to attend and include matters in the
agenda for regular board meetings.

For other Board and Board committee meetings, reasonable notice will
generally be given. The agenda and accompanying board papers are
dispatched to the directors or Board committee members at least three
days before the meetings to ensure that they have sufficient time to
review the papers and be adequately prepared for the meetings. When
directors or Board committee members are unable to attend a meeting,
they will be advised of the matters to be discussed and given an
opportunity to make their views known to the chairman prior to the
meeting.

Minutes of the Board meetings and Board committee meetings are/will
be recorded in sufficient detail to include the matters considered by the
Board and the Board committee and the decisions reached, including
any concerns raised by the directors. Draft minutes of each Board
meeting and Board committee meeting will be sent to the directors for
comments within a reasonable time after the date on which the
meeting is held.

According to the Articles of Association, a Director shall not vote nor be
counted in the quorum on any resolution of the Board approving any
contract or arrangement in which he or his associates is materially
interested.
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DIRECTORS’ ATTENDANCE RECORDS AT
MEETINGS

The annual general meeting was held on 9 June 2015 whilst 13 Board
meetings were held during the year ended 31 December 2015 and the
attendance of the individual directors at these meetings is set out

below.
Annual
general Board
meeting meeting
Name of director Notes attendance attendance
Mr. Yu Jiangiu 1/1 9/13
Mr. Liu Hanjiu 1 0/1 7/8
Mr. Kwong Wai Sun Wilson 1/1 13/13
Mr. Huang Weiping 0/1 11/13
Ms. Zhu Yufen 0/1 11/13
Mr. Lee Ting Bun Denny 0/1 10/13
Mr. Pan Liansheng 0/1 10/13
Ms. Liu Rong 1 0/1 6/8
Ms. Ren Ruxian 2 01 3/5
Notes:
1. Resigned on 30 November 2015

2. Appointed on 30 November 2015

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
The Company has adopted its own Code for Securities Transactions by
Officers on terms no less exacting than those set out in the Model Code
as its code of conduct regarding directors’ securities transactions.
Specific enquiry has been made of the Company’s directors and all the
existing directors have confirmed that they have complied with the
required standards set out in the Model Code throughout the period
from 1 January 2015 to the date of this annual report.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established the Nomination Committee, the
Remuneration Committee and the Audit and Corporate Governance
Committee, for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s
affairs. All Board committees have been established with defined
written terms of reference, which are posted on the Company'’s website
“http://www.cmru.com.cn” and are available to shareholders upon
request. All Board committees report to the Board on their decisions or
recommendations.

All Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to
discharge their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the
Company’s expense.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee comprises Mr. Lee Ting Bun Denny, Mr. Pan
Liansheng and Ms. Ren Ruxian (Chairperson) who are all independent
non-executive directors. The functions of the Nomination Committee
primarily are to: (i) review the structure, size and composition (including
the skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board at least annually and
make recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Company’s corporate strategy; (i) identify individuals
suitably qualified to become Board members and select or make
recommendations to the Board on the selection of individuals
nominated for directorships; (iii) assess the independence of
independent non-executive directors; (iv) make recommendations to
the Board on the appointment or re-appointment of directors and
succession planning for directors, in particular the chairman of the
Board and the chief executive; and to (v) determine the policy for the
nomination of directors, the nomination procedures and the process
and criteria adopted to select and recommend candidates for
directorship.

On 16 April 2014 the Nomination Committee adopted a board diversity
policy in compliance with code provision A.5.6 (the “Board Diversity
Policy”). The Board Diversity Policy applies to the Board and sees
increasing diversity at the Board level as an essential element in
maintaining the Company’s competitive advantage. The Nomination
Ccommittee will review annually the structure, size and composition of
the Board and where appropriate, make recommendations on changes
to the Board to complement the Company'’s corporate strategy, and will
make recommendation to the Board on the measurable objectives for
achieving board diversity. The Company aims to maintain an
appropriate balance of diversity perspectives of the Board that are
relevant to the Company business growth.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE (continued)

The Nomination Committee held two meetings during the year ended
31 December 2015 to, inter alia, (i) review the size and composition of
the Board; (ii) assess the independence of the independent non-
executive directors and to review that re-appointment of directors; and
(iii) discuss other matters related to the foregoing.

Two meetings of the Nomination Committee were held during the year
ended 31 December 2015.

Number of
attendance/

Eligible to
attend

Name of director

Mr. Lee Ting Bun Denny 2/2
Mr. Pan Liansheng 2/2
Ms. Liu Rong (resigned on

30 November 2015) 1/2
Ms. Ren Ruxian (appointed on

30 November 2015) N/A

The Nomination Committee recommended Mr. Yu Jiangiu, Mr. Kwong
Wai Sun Wilson as executive directors, and Mr. Lee Ting Bun Denny and
Ms. Ren Ruxian as independent non-executive directors of the Company
at the forthcoming annual general meeting.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee comprises Mr. Lee Ting Bun Denny, Mr.
Pan Liansheng (Chairperson) and Ms. Ren Ruxian who are all
independent non-executive directors.

The duties of the Remuneration Committee include the following: (i) to
make recommendations to the Board on the Company'’s policy and
structure for all directors’ and senior management’s remuneration and
on the establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for
developing remuneration policy; (ii) to review and approve the
management’s remuneration proposals with reference to the Board’'s
corporate goals and objectives; (iii) either to determine, with delegated
responsibility, the remuneration packages of individual executive
directors and senior management, or to make recommendations to the
Board on the remuneration packages of individual executive directors
and senior management; (iv) to make recommendations to the Board
on the remuneration of non-executive directors; (v) to consider salaries
paid by comparable companies, time commitment and responsibilities
and employment conditions elsewhere in the Company and its
subsidiaries; (vi) to review and approve compensation payable to
executive directors and senior management for any loss or termination
of office or appointment to ensure that it is consistent with contractual
terms and is otherwise fair and not excessive; (vii) to review and
approve compensation arrangements relating to dismissal or removal
of directors for misconduct to ensure that they are consistent with
contractual terms and are otherwise reasonable and appropriate; (viii)
to ensure that no director or any of his associates is involved in deciding
his own remuneration; and (ix) to determine the policy for the
remuneration of executive directors, assess performance of executive
directors and approve the terms of executive directors’ service
contracts.

Details of the remuneration of each Director for the year ended 31
December 2015 are set out in note 9 to the financial statements
contained in this annual report.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (continued)
Remuneration of senior management other than Directors for the year
ended 31 December 2015 are as follow:

FMEEE (@)
HE2015F12A3MBIFEHEEENSANE
HEHMIT

Number of executive

THAEHA

2015 2014
Total remuneration bands & E 2015 F 2014
RMB4,000,000-5,000,000 AR 4,000,000 7T £ 5,000,000 7T 2 -
RMB3,000,000-4,000,000 AR # 3,000,000 7T = 4,000,000 7T 2 -
RMB2,000,000-3,000,000 AR #2,000,000 7T ZE 3,000,000 7T = 1

5 meetings of the Remuneration Committee were held during the year
ended 31 December 2015 to review the existing remuneration packages
of Directors and senior managements of the Company, to recommend
the proposed grant of share option and to recommend the
remuneration packages for Directors and senior managements of the
Company. The recommended remuneration packages have been
approved by the entire Board.

Number of

attendance/

Eligible to

Name of director attend

Mr. Lee Ting Bun Denny 4/5

Mr. Pan Liansheng 4/5

Ms. Liu Rong (resigned on

30 November 2015) 4/5
Ms. Ren Ruxian (appointed on

30 November 2015) Not applicable
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AUDIT AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
COMMITTEE

The Audit and Corporate Governance Committee comprises Mr. Lee
Ting Bun Denny (Chairperson), Mr. Pan Liansheng and Ms. Ren Ruxian
who are all independent non-executive directors.

In relation to reviewing the Company's financial information, the Audit
and Corporate Governance Committee’s duties mainly are to (i) review
the financial statements and reports and consider any significant or
unusual items raised by the financial officers of the Group or external
auditors before submission to the Board; (i) review and monitor the
external auditors’ independence and objectivity and the effectiveness
of the audit process; (i) make recommendation to the Board on the
appointment, re-appointment and removal of external auditors; and (iv)
review the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s financial
reporting system, internal control system and risk management system.

In relation to its corporate governance functions, the Audit and
Corporate Governance Committee’s responsibilities are (i) to develop,
review and update the Company’s corporate governance policies and
practices and to make recommendations to the Board, (i) to review and
monitor the training and continuous professional development of
directors and senior management, (iii) to review and monitor the
Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements, (iv) to develop, review and monitor the code
of conduct and compliance manual applicable to employees and
directors, and (v) to review the Company’s compliance with the CG
Code and disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report.
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AUDIT AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
COMMITTEE (continued)

Three meetings of the Audit and Corporate Governance Committee
were held during the Year. The work performed by the Audit and
Corporate Governance Committee during the Year included the
following:

reviewed the annual report and results announcement of the
Company for the years ended 31 December 2014 and 2015;

reviewed the interim report and interim results announcements of
the Company for the six months ended 30 June 2015;

reviewed the accounting principles and practices adopted by the
Group and other financial reporting matters;

reviewed the results of external audit and had discussion with
external auditors on any significant findings and audit issues,

reviewed the results of internal audit and had discussion with
internal auditors on any significant findings and internal control
iSsues;

discussed with the external auditors before the audit commenced,
the nature and scope of the audit and the respective relevant
issues; and

considered and approved the service contract of the auditors for
the Year.

Number of
attendance/

Eligible to

VERNANCE REPORT

Name of director

attend

Mr. Lee Ting Bun Denny 3/3
Mr. Pan Liansheng 3/3
Ms. Liu Rong (resigned on

30 November 2015) 2/2
Ms. Ren Ruxian (appointed on

30 November 2015) 11

There had been no disagreement between the Board and the Audit and
Corporate Governance Committee during the year ended 31 December

2015.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

KPMG was re-appointed as our external auditor by shareholders at the
2015 AGM until the conclusion of the 2016 AGM. It is primarily
responsible for providing audit services in connection with the annual
consolidated financial statements.

An analysis of the remuneration paid or payable to KPMG is set out
below:

Audit services (audit fee for the year ended

§

)

/\\ﬁ

AN Vi

BB =

EERE M ERAN 2015 FRRBF ARG
PR EE RSNE D - EHE 2016 FARE
FRERLE - AT ERER/UNEFHRAMHR
RIBHE LIRS o

STSENTESRS
T

FHEM =G ATV BN £ DA

Year ended
31 December
2014
HZ=2014F
12A31H
IEFE
RMB'000
ARETT

Year ended
31 December
2015
HZE20154F

12A31H
IEFE
RMB’000
ARMT T

EAZRTE (B ZE 2015 F X 2014 F

31 December 2015 and 2014) 12 A31 BIEFE 2 EZRG) 2,496 2,646
Other services E AR 441 1,854
DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR FINANCIAL EEHUEBRRPNOUMBRESTE
REPORTING IN RESPECT OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS
The directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the = FHEREEFHERAQABE2015912 A31

financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2015 which give a
true and fair view of the affairs of the Company and the Group and of
the Group's results and cash flows.

The management has provided to the Board such explanation and
information as are necessary to enable the Board to carry out an
informed assessment of the Company's financial statements, which are
put to the Board for approval. The Company provides all members of
the Board with monthly updates on the Company’s performance,
positions and prospects.

There are no material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern.

HIEFERBRRNET  REERFHRER
RRBRAEENER  ARAEBENEEN
BEM e

EEECREFSREMTNEERER &
EFRQEMBIERES S HENARRITBR
RIEHABEORHE - RABBRERR - AR K&
AIsMESSMAKBIR‘EAEN -

WEEFIERABERANEATRAEEAIGEE
BHBRELERADRFBELLENET -
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INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board acknowledges that it is the responsibility of the Board to
maintain an adequate internal control system to safeguard shareholder
investments and Company assets and review the effectiveness of such
system on an annual basis.

The Board has conducted a review of the effectiveness of the internal
control system of the Company and considers the internal control
system to be effective and adequate.

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in respect of
legal action against its directors.

The Board has established an internal audit function, which reports
directly to the Audit Committee to determine whether the internal
control procedures are properly carried out throughout the year.

UPDATES ON COMPLIANCE AND REGULATORY
MATTERS DISCLOSED IN THE PROSPECTUS

As disclosed in the section headed “Business — Compliance” in the
Prospectus and the annual report for the year ended 31 December
2014, during the period ended 31 December 2010, the two financial
years ended 31 December 2011 and 2012 and the nine months ended
30 September 2013, there were certain incidents of the Group’s
noncompliance with applicable regulations. As at 31 December 2015, all
incidents of non-compliance have been rectified.

COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS

The Company considers that effective communication with
shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and investor
understanding of the Group’s business performance and strategies. The
Company also recognizes the importance of transparency and timely
disclosure of corporate information, which enables shareholders and
investors to make the best investment decisions.

To promote effective communication, the Company maintains a website
at "http://www.cmru.com.cn”, where extensive information and
updates on the Group's business developments and operations,
financial information, corporate governance practices and other
information are available for public access.
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COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS (continued)

Shareholders and investors may send written enquiries or requests to
the Company as follows:

Address: Unit 908, China Merchants Tower,
168-200 Connaught Road Central, Sheung Wan, Hong Kong
(For the attention of Corporate Communications Department)
Fax: +852 2587 7199
Email: ir@cmru.com.cn

Enquiries are dealt with in an informative and timely manner.

The Board welcomes views of shareholders and encourages them to
attend general meetings to raise any concerns they might have with the
Board or the management directly. Board members and appropriate
senior staff of the Group are available at the meetings to answer any
questions raised by shareholders.

The Company continues to enhance communication and relationship
with its investors.

Designated senior management maintains regular dialogue with
institutional investors and analysts to keep them informed of the
Group’s developments.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, there had been no change in
the constitutional documents of the Company.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary of the Company is Mr. Cheung Ying Kwan,
whose biography details are set out in the section headed “Directors
and senior management” in this annual report. Mr. Cheung has been
informed of the requirement of the Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, and
he confirmed that he had attained no less than 15 hours of relevant
professional training during the year ended 31 December 2015.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHT

To safeguard shareholders’ interests and rights, separate resolutions
are proposed at shareholders’ meetings on each substantial issue,
including the election of individual directors, for shareholders’
consideration and voting.

Under article 58 of the Articles of Association, the Company’s
shareholders may convene an extraordinary general meeting or put
forward proposals at shareholders’ meetings pursuant to the Articles of
Association. Any one or more shareholder(s) holding at the date of
deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital
of the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company shall, by written requisition to the Board or the Secretary of
the Company, require an extraordinary general meeting to be called by
the Board for the transaction of any business specified in such
requisition; and such meeting shall be held within two months after the
deposit of such requisition.

Shareholders may put forward proposals for consideration at a general
meeting in accordance with the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands
and the Articles of Association.

As regards proposing a person for election as a director, the procedures
are available on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

For the avoidance of doubt, shareholder(s) must deposit and send the
original duly signed written requisition, notice or statement, or enquiry
(as the case may be) to the Company and provide their full name,
contact details and identification in order to give effect thereto.
Shareholders” information may be disclosed as required by law.

The Company has not made any changes to its Articles of Association
throughout the year ended 31 December 2015. An up-to-date version of
the Articles of Association is available on the Company’s website and
the Stock Exchange’s website. Shareholders may refer to the Articles of
Association for further details of their rights.

All resolutions put forward at shareholders’ meetings will be voted by
poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and the poll voting results will be
posted on the websites of the Stock Exchange (www.hkexnews.hk) and
the Company (http://www.cmru.com.cn) immediately after the relevant
general meetings.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

N

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
CHINA METAL RESOURCES UTILIZATION LIMITED
(Incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China Metal
Resources Utilization Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together “the Group”) set out on pages 81 to 205, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2015,
the consolidated statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards issued by
the International Accounting Standards Board and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. This report is made solely to
you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free
from material misstatement.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY (continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the
directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2015 and
of the Group’s financial performance and cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
and have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants

8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road
Central, Hong Kong

31 March 2016
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR L
.\\ ﬁ‘

For the year: ended 31 Decembe::2g,15 (Expr

A

s@zp SRR L FE

)SS
*

,ﬁ n Renminbj)
(PN MR

2015 2014
2015 F 20144
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B =E ARETT AREFTT
Revenue = 20 4 1,790,750 3,858,943
Cost of sales Fi=k=AD PN (1,930,181) (3,817,158)
Gross (loss)/profit E(8) A (139,431) 41,785
Other revenue H bl e 6(a) 136,968 439,898
Other net loss HAFEE 6(0) (254,923) (1,543)
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHAS (8,223) (22,634)
Administrative expenses ITERFA X (161,141) (102,179
(Loss)/profit from operations me (FR|),uR (426,750) 355,327
Finance costs ZUR I RN 7(a) (113,671) (57,630)
(Loss)/profit before taxation BLAT (E51E) uRl 7 (540,421) 297,697
Income tax FriS i 8(a) 37,285 (49,431)
(Loss)/profit for the year FER(EE) ER (503,136) 248,266
Attributable to: LT AL :
Equity shareholders of the Company RABERIRE (499,045) 248,513
Non-controlling interests R R (4,091) (247)
(Loss)/profit for the year FR(EE), GER (503,136) 248,266
(Loss)/earnings per share K’ (58) BA 12
Basic (RMB) AER(ARETT) (0.24) 0.12
Diluted (RMB) #E(ARET) (0.24) 0.12
The notes on pages 89 to 205 form part of these financial statements. F8IAEF 205 ARMMI BRI B RERR — 3
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

p ) S
FARGRAMZENGR N / /

For the year ended 31 December 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi) ) : ' S v ’g‘ PRy
§€§2075¢12ﬁ315¢fﬁ/§9<2éﬁﬁ?£€1ﬁ) i €T y - Yy
A

2015
2015 % 20144

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARET T

(Loss)/profit for the year FR(BR), &R (503,136) 248,266

Other comprehensive income for the year FREt2mHKE

Item that may be reclassified subsequently to  FE{& RI B P AE R 8o EH -
profit or loss:

Exchange differences on translation of financial #22 3Erh Bl B 82 B 75 3Rk 59

e N ERER (13,280) 22
Total comprehensive income for the year F£R2HEUZEELE (516,416) 251,218
Attributable to: BUF AL e
Equity shareholders of the Company ZAN/NEL £ (512,325) 251,465
Non-controlling interests FEEAR (4,091) (247)
Total comprehensive income for the year FR2EWELLE (516,416) 251,218

The notes on pages 89 to 205 form part of these financial statements. F8IAEF 205 ARMMI BRI B RERR — 3

S o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITJON

REME

At31 Decembe::2g,15 (EXp:

R§

n Renminbi)’
ol 5A2075§32ﬁ 31?%@(%@)

31 December

31 December

2015 2014
2015 & 20144
12H 318 12A31H
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR® T AREETIT
Non-current assets FRBEE

Property, plant and equipment ME - R M RE 13 584,429 559,308
Lease prepayments HEEMK 14 99,916 85,618
Intangible assets EEE 16 - 3,656
Interest in associates i ElNET = 17 135,957 -
Goodwill EES 18 23,227 39,308
Pledged deposits [BELgEEESN 19 5,320 12,820
Other non-current assets HiIEmB&EE 20 26,424 34,134
Deferred tax assets EETIRE E 21(b) 37,749 774
913,022 735,618

Current assets REBEE
Inventories e 22 249,002 461,699
Trade and other receivables B 5 K H M e FROR 23 1,033,039 1,021,829
Amounts due from associates JiE UR B & R R FR 24(a) 458 -
Amounts due from related parties JFE I A Bt 75 SR8 24(a) 3,345 -
Pledged deposits B IRTE 19 53,886 43,285
Cash and cash equivalents BHeMEE&EEER 25(a) 82,559 145,765
1,422,289 1,672,578

Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and other payables B 5 hEMENRIR 26 474,799 339,216
Obligations under finance leases MERETHEMR 27 15,192 16,471
Bank loans and other borrowings RITE ?A&ﬁm{ﬁ?ﬂ 28 661,510 390,670
Amounts due to associates JE A< B 2 R B FRIE 24(a) 6,520 =
Amounts due to related parties JFE 1~} RE Bgt Dﬁﬂlﬁ 24(a) 6,098 =
Loan from a related party Rl T B R 24(b) 83,780 -
Current taxation BIEAR 3R 21(a) 9,662 19,988

e 1,257,561 766,345
_Netcurrentassets ~~ #igAE 00000000 164,728 906,233

Total assets less current liabilities ®BEERGEBHAME 1,077,750 1,641,851
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION,

FEBBKAE | CINS IR e
At 31 December 2015 (Expressed. in Renminbi) 3 : ‘ " ~/ . 1’% A /
%2075#’72/?375(&/&5?"2’%@) i \i Seeel ‘\\-:!.-ﬁ'.l' =¥

31 December 31 December
2015 2014
2015 % 2014 €

12A31H 12H31H
RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBT T ARBETT

Non-current liabilities FRBEME
Bank loans and other borrowings IRITE R R EMIER 28 - 300,000
Obligations under finance leases BMERETHER 27 23,090 36,027
Liability component of convertible bonds mI3& A% &5 & E 2D 29 166,488 =
Derivative component of convertible AR E S RSTE

bonds TEHH 29 130,989 -
Deferred government grants i E BT 1 B 30 3,000 31,048
Deferred tax liabilities FEFTEAE 21(h) = 1,473

e 323567 368,548

NET ASSETS FEE 754,183 1,273,303
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BEXRRE
Share capital N 31 166,075 166,075
Reserves EE 578,913 1,096,991
Total equity attributable to equity Z<ATEFSREELAER

shareholders of the Company 744,988 1,263,066
Non-controlling interests FEEERERS 9,195 10,237
TOTAL EQUITY ERER 754,183 1,273,303

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 31 201643 331 A& E @t I IFHRET3E
March 2016.

Yu Jianqgiu Kwong Wai Sun Wilson
EN BEE
Directors Directors
FF FF

The notes on pages 89 to 205 form part of these financial statements. 89 B =5 205 A MK B B S R /9 — 20
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EBUTL
~ . BANaRDR
TR a2t A

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
KLTRERAEL

Share-
based Non-
Share Share Exchange Capital Statutory payment Warrant Retained controlling Total
capital premium reserve reserve reserves reserve reserve profits interests equity
WRAAER A

A& RivaE EifR AR tERE  WAERE R REER it FERER £ig
(Note 31(c) ~ (Note31(d)  (Note31(d)  (Note31(d)  (Note31(d)  (Note31(d)  (Note31(d)
(i) (i) (il) (iv) (V) (vi)
s (REs0 (0 GeEa0 (WENO (WEND
(H&31(c) (i) (i) (i) (iv)) (V) (vi))
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000
ARETR  ARMTR  ARETR  ARBTn  ARMTR  ARETR  ARETn  ARETz  ARETR  ARETn  ARETR

Balance at 1 January 2015 01551 518HER 166,075 294,842 15,322 132,055 76,142 10,365 = 568,265 1,263,066 10287 1273303

Changes in equity for 2015: NIENRERT:

Loss forthe year FREE = o = - - - - (499,045)  (499,05) (4090 (503,136)
Other comprehensive income B 2EiE - - (13,280) - - - - - (13,280) - (13,280)
Total comprefiensive income ERaElEEE

for the year - - (13,280) - - - - (499,045) (512,325) (4,091 (516,416)
Issuance of warrants kg k(0] - 186 - - - - 12,079 - 12,265 - 12,265
Share-based compensation HRHEERGEERR

£XpeNses 1) - - - - - 31,874 - - 31,874 - 31,874
Share options vested butlapsed ~ EEBERXHzERE 3100 = = = = = (1,5%9) = 1539 = = =
Dividend declared and paid in frEERzkE

respect of prior year 310) - (49,892) - - - - - - (49,892) - (49,892)

Non-controling inerest arsing hE-ERBAREL
from acquisition of a Subsidiary DFERES - - - - - - - - - 3,049 3,049

Balance at 31 December 2015 2015512 A 31 AMES 166,075 25,136 2,082 132,055 76,142 40,700 12,079 70759 744,988 9,195 754,183
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ﬁnﬂﬁﬁﬂi

At 31 December 2015 (Exprg sed Jn Renm/nb/)
EHE2015F 124 3

Lbfff

'\g

A

‘%

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

§

FRAERRREE
Share-
based Non-
Share Share Exchange Capital Statutory payment Retained controlling
capital premium reserve reserve reserves reserve profits interests
NRAAER
i RHEE EXGfE ux:i EEfE  WARRE REEA FERES
(Note 31(c))  (Note31(d)  (Note31(d)  (Note31(d)  (Note31(d)  (Note 31(d)
(if) (i) (ii) (iv) (v))
(WaE3n(c)  (W&E3d)  (W&Esad)  (RE31d)  (W&snd)  (W&E31()
(i) (U] (i) (iv) ()
Note RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
i ARBTR  ARMTn  ARMTR ARETn  ARETR  ARMTn ARETR ARETn  ARETR  ARETn
Balance at 1 January 2014 20145151 RER 907 7519 12370 132,055 49,406 = 346,488 612,305 - 612,805
Changes in equity for 2014: 2014 EHRERS
Profitfor the year R = = = = - - 8513 28513 (247) 218,266
Other comprehiensiveincome. b 2E%&E - - 2952 - - - - 2952 - 2952
Total comprehensive income ER2EhaEE
forthe year = = 2952 = = = 28513 251,465 (247) 21218
Capitalisation issue BRLES 31(0)0) 12325 (123215) - - - - - - - -
lssue of newsharesunderthe ~ BEERAFEE
iniial public offering ('IPO") ((EromRE])
L) 31 44 391,063 - - - - - 132477 - 132477
Issue of new shares upon S EWONGE =13
exercise of the over-allotment  BERRERET
option under the IPO ki 31(c)) 539 5,553 - - - - - 609 - 6,092
Share-based compensation DR BERRERS
expenses 31w - - - - - 0,365 - 10,365 - 10,365
Dividend declared inrespectof ~ BAEEER2RE
the current year 31) - (50,138) - - - - - 50,138) - (50,138)
Non-controling interest arising ~~ WiEE -~ BAAES:
from acquisition of a sunsiciary  z iR - - - - - - - - 10484 10484
Appropriations to statutory BRTETER
Teserves 31(d)iv) - - - - 2,73 - (26,736) - - -
Balance at 31 December 2014 2014512 A 31 Rfves 166,075 294,842 15322 132,085 76,142 10,365 568,265 1,263,066 10,237 1273303
The notes on pages 89 to 205 form part of these financial statements. F8IBEFE 205 B MM TR I BT M —JB
% o
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEM NT
S BN

For the year ended 31 Decembe::2g15 (Expr ,ﬁsg n Renminbi)
y = \ - #EE2 5¢12%5¢¢ A R
2015 2014
2015 F 20144
Note RMB'000 RMB'000
BaE AR¥T T AREFIT
Operating activities RESEE
Cash generated from/(used in) operations & #7158,/ (BT ) R4 25(b) 83,555 (123,864)
The People’s Republic of China (“PRC") B ftH1ZE A R AE
Corporate Income Tax paid ([FRE]) B 21(a) (11,489) (58,645)

Net cash generated from/(used in) K& EEFRE(FTA)
operating activities FBHE 72,066 (182,509)

Investing activities RETH

Payment for the purchase of property, BEEWX - HE&

plant and equipment RAERRIR 13 (108,863) (172,368)
Payment for lease prepayments S HEETEMN K 14 (16,256) (11,595)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant HEWE  BEK

and equipment HEATSRUA 13 1 147
Cash inflow (outflow) arising on R B A B M B (0 2

acquisitions of subsidiaries (net of WENIRS RIRSZEEIER)

cash and cash equivalents acquired) EEMBEeRACELD) 36 23 (18,846)
Payment for investment in associates ~ BtIREBL AR 2 K 17 (134,929) -
Interest received BUFI B 6(a) 1,276 1,150
Decrease in pledged deposits IR AT ROR 19 699 3,026
Net cash used in investing activities & ZBRAFES (258,049) (198,486)
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT \
BARSRES &= 5 //7

For the year ended 31 December 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi) ) s > Y § s
BE2015F 127 31 AP FROAARKESIE) o YR 0= M
L] oy oy r

2015 2014
2015 % 2014 5

RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARBTT

Financing activities MEEE
Proceeds from new bank loans and FTIEIRITE R R E AL fE K

other borrowings FT{S3E 28 287,900 850,670
Repayment of bank loans and other ERRITERREMER

borrowings 28 (317,060) (584,374)
Proceeds from sale of assets under HEERMADZHTEE

sale and leaseback arrangement FriSskIE = 5,500
Repayment of sale and leaseback BEHERERERZH

arrangement 27 (14,216) (13,365)
Proceeds from advances from local EH BB ATS IR

governments 78,457 -
Repayment of advances from local BEZ BTN

governments (45,802) (1,000)
Increase in pledged deposits I HR AT FE N 19 (3,800) (25,120)
Interest paid BEfFIE (93,213) (56,379)
Dividend paid B E 31(a) (49,892) (50,138)
Advance from/(repayment to) related B (EER)RE B

parties R E K 11,280 (116,220)
Proceeds from loan from a related party BBt 5 &5k 2 BT X0E 79,990 -
Issuance of warrants BITRRE R 31(a) 186 -
Net proceed from issuance of BITAIMRES 2

convertible bonds FriS 58558 29 187,814 =
Net proceeds from issue of shares BT < FTIS SIEF 5 o 438,569

Net cash generated from financing ®EEEFEBSERE
activities 121,644 448,143

Net (decrease)/increase in cash HeRREESEERF

and cash equivalents R,/ 0 (64,339) 67,148
Cash and cash equivalents at R—A—HHEEE

1 January HE&ZEER 145,765 78,615
Effect of foreign exchange rate EREEHTE

changes 1,133 2
Cash and cash equivalents R+-ZA=+—-HME2

31 December RRE&%EIER 25(a) 82,559 145,765

The notes on pages 89 to 205 form part of these financial statements. 89 B =5 205 A MK B B S R /9 — 20

D W
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GENERAL INFORMATION

China Metal Resources Utilization Limited (“the Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 22 February 2013. The
Company and its subsidiaries (together referred to as “the Group”)
are principally engaged in the manufacturing and sales of copper
and related products, sales of aluminium products, and the
provision of contract manufacturing in the PRC. The shares of the
Company have been listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“the Stock Exchange”) since 21
February 2014.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Statement of compliance
These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRSs) which collective term includes
all applicable individual International Financial Reporting
Standards, International Accounting Standards (IAS) and
Interpretations issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (IASB). These financial statements also
comply with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance and the applicable disclosure
provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. A summary of
the significant accounting policies adopted by the Company
and the Group is set out below.

The IASB has issued a certain of new and revised IFRSs that
are first effective or available for early adoption for the
current accounting period of the Group and the Company.
Note 2(c) provides information on any changes in accounting
policies resulting from initial application of these
developments to the extent that they are relevant to the
Group for the current and prior accounting periods reflected
in these financial statements. The Group has not applied any
new or revised standard or interpretation that is not yet
effective for the current accounting period. The revised and
new accounting standards and interpretations issued but
not yet effective for the accounting period beginning 1
January 2015 are set out in note 38.

A 355 80 RO GE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(B Saat HEI LN EHESIE)

— & R
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R2013F2 A 22 A e S B ST -
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M2014F2H21HR - ARallRHE L
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FIREM ©
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(@) &HEH
ZEVBRREBREEEABEE
B 765 o 5 25 R ([ B R B 755 3 45 2%
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FrEAEES ([HESEAEE
) EMHNBEE e ER ([EEE
FHER ) KA E - M E RN
HEEBRHEHMNBERELE
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BT EmR AN #3835 -
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REBHNR T o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RA 35 80 3R P oF

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(B 5 Bt &S« UAREZE)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
(b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements (b)

2 FESTEE®)
RS HRRNEE

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2015 comprise the Group and the Group’s
interest in associates.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis except for
derivative financial instruments (see note 2(g)) that are
stated at their fair values.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
IFRSS requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the application of policies and
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and
expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and various other factors
that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances,
the results of which form the basis of making the
judgements about carrying values of assets and liabilities
that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of
IFRSs that have significant effect on the financial statements
and major sources of estimation uncertainty are discussed
in note 3.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

()

Changes in accounting policies

The IASB has issued the following amendments to IFRSs and
one new Interpretation that were effective for the current
accounting period of the Group. Of these, the following
developments are relevant to these financial statements:

— Amendments to IAS 19, Defined Benefit Plans:
Employee Contributions (Amendments to IAS19)

— Annual Improvements to IFRSS 2010-2012 Cycle —
various standards

— Annual Improvements to IFRSS 2011-2013 Cycle —
various standards

None of these developments have had a material effect on
how the Group’s results and financial position for the
current or prior periods have been prepared or presented.
The Group has not applied any new standard or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the current
accounting period.

In addition, the requirements of Part 9, “Accounts and
Audit”, of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap 622)
came into operation at the start of the Company’s current
financial year. The adoption of the requirements has
primarily impacted the presentation and disclosure of
information in the consolidated financial statements. These
changes mainly include the presentation of the Company’s
statement of financial position as a note disclosure instead
of primary statement, updating any references to the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance to refer to the current Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance and replacing certain
terminology no longer used in the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance with terminology used in IFRS.

A 355 80 RO GE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B BEat HEY AN RESIE)

2 FESTHX@®)

(c)

SR BEREE
REFTEAEFEEERM T 5IE
R E LR BT R —BHR
B ERAKEER S HRER
R EA AT B R E I E M
RAAR

— BIREFERIE19% &R

REREFIE - lEEHEF(EH
B e R E 1958 2 155T)

— B~ B 5 ¥R & & RI2010 2
2012 BB F R E — BRasE
A

— B Bf 7 #R & 2K RII2011 2
2013 B F BN — STEE
]

P BRHAEER AR IBE
HIRREKEIN 2 RE RI BN
MEBENBEATE - ~EEYKE
R A& 5t HIRE R A R AR AT
BRI 2 RE -

Wb - BER TGS (F6228)F9
(1R B RET) RARE 2 A K
FEREY - RARSHATEEY
BHANBREZEHNSHEH
R EL DES 2N Fa:
BHRZ SHE - (EAMEREMNHE
TEHE  BHEAHEBAR G
Bl R AERA T DA - M
e SA BB B 7 98 45 B 5 PR 7 425
BABEBRFEATEERET
UER

Annual Report 2015 ¢ —E—FHE R 91



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RA 35 80 3R P oF

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(B 5 Bt &S« UAREZE)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
(d) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

2 FESHBE®)
(d) MEATRIERBRER

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group
controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has
the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. When assessing whether the Group has power, only
substantive rights (held by the Group and other parties) are
considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that control
commences until the date that control ceases. Intra-group
balances, transactions and cash flow and any unrealised
profits arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated
in full in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group transactions
are eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains but only
to the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a subsidiary
not attributable directly or indirectly to the Company, and in
respect of which the Group has not agreed any additional
terms with the holders of those interests which would result
in the Group as a whole having a contractual obligation in
respect of those interests that meets the definition of a
financial liability. For each business combination, the Group
can elect to measure any non-controlling interests either at
fair value or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate
share of the subsidiary’s net identifiable assets.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A %5 8 R0 5E

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(B Saat HEI LN EHESIE)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 FEETEXR®

(Continued)

(d) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (d) MEARRIEZERER(Z)
(Continued)
Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated PR e AN A B R R B (G
statement of financial position within equity, separately EREVBRARNERIER EP
from equity attributable to the equity shareholders of the hill §|JT MRAEBZEET - FFER
Company. Non-controlling interests in the results of the BmNiraiEm MiraBm REMW
Group are presented on the face of the consolidated ZHKERPENR  EFRAFEER
statement of profit or loss and the consolidated statement REE N 2 TE WA BREN AR B FEE
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income as an IR s B AR AR AR 2 2 R © 3E
allocation of the total profit or loss and total comprehensive TR RERFEEANER LS E
income for the year between non-controlling interests and tEH ANEME T FEKBZ
the equity shareholders of the Company. Loans from BERMEERENE20) (@0
holders of non-controlling interests and other contractual EREMBRAKRET AEREE -

obligations towards these holders are presented as financial
liabilities in the consolidated statement of financial position
in accordance with notes 2(p), (g), or (r) depending on the
nature of the liability.

Changes in the Group's interests in a subsidiary that do not TER B AR BB A RIS
result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity BREE)  HERXHER Bt
transactions, whereby adjustments are made to the 4R A P T TIE AR B IR AR AR
amounts of controlling and non-controlling interests within RE=NSREAE  AREAEEE
consolidated equity to reflect the change in relative mHNEE BTN HEETH
interests, but no adjustments are made to goodwill and no 2 ARt e mEREs

gain or loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is accounted EARSE LT HHBA AT
for as a disposal of the entire interest in that subsidiary, with - RzB AR ERE W
a resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. REARE  BEEBMKR EJZJEH?@EA
Any interest retained in that former subsidiary at the date BHRER - FARBERME A
when control is lost is recognised at fair value and this Eﬁ%ﬁﬁb%%%ﬁ‘%? HlHER AR qz@’ﬁﬁ
amount is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of R HZCHEAEMEEVIRERY
a financial asset or, when appropriate, the cost on initial ANE - H(EE) REE AR
recognition of an investment in an associate (see note 2(e)). WEVIERERHR A (R 26))
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RA 35 80 3R P oF

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(B 5 Bt &S« UAREZE)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
(e) Associates

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an
investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment
losses (see note 2(l)), unless the investment is classified as
held for sale (or included in a disposal group that is classified
as held for sale).

An associate is an entity in which the Group or Company
has significant influence, but not control or joint control,
over its management, including participation in the financial
and operating policy decisions.

An investment in an associate is accounted for in the
consolidated financial statements under the equity method,
unless it is classified as held for sale (or included in a
disposal group that is classified as held for sale). Under the
equity method, the investment is initially recorded at cost,
adjusted for any excess of the Group's share of the
acquisition-date fair values of the investee’s identifiable net
assets over the cost of the investment (if any). Thereafter,
the investment is adjusted for the post acquisition change in
the Group’s share of the investee’s net assets and any
impairment loss relating to the investment (see notes 2(f)
and (I)). Any acquisition-date excess over cost, the Group's
share of the post-acquisition, post-tax results of the
investees and any impairment losses for the year are
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss,
whereas the Group’s share of the post-acquisition post-tax
items of the investees’ other comprehensive income is
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A %5 8 R0 5E

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(B Saat HEI LN EHESIE)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
(e) Associates (Continued) (e)

2 FESTHX@®)

BENT(#E)

When the Group's share of losses exceeds its interest in the
associate, the Group's interest is reduced to nil and
recognition of further losses is discontinued except to the
extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the investee. For
this purpose, the Group’s interest is the carrying amount of
the investment under the equity method together with the
Group's long-term interests that in substance form part of
the Group's net investment in the associate.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associates are eliminated to the
extent of the Group's interest in the investee, except where
unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment of the
asset transferred, in which case they are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

In all other cases, when the Group ceases to have significant
influence over an associate, it is accounted for as a disposal
of the entire interest in that investee, with a resulting gain or
loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained
in that former investee at the date when significant
influence is lost is recognised at fair value and this amount
is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of a
financial asset.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in associates are stated at cost less impairment
losses (see note 2(l)), unless classified as held for sale (or
included in a disposal group that is classified as held for
sale).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RA 35 80 3R P oF

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(5= Bt HiE S

YA RHESE)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(f

(8

Goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the
acquisition method as at the acquisition date — i.e. when
control is transferred to the Group.

Transaction costs, other than those associated with the
issue of debt or equity securities, that the Group incurs in
connection with a business combination are expensed as
incurred.

Goodwill represents the excess of

(i)  the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interest
in the acquiree and the fair value of the Group’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree; over

(i) the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets
and liabilities measured as at the acquisition date.

When (i) is greater than (i), then this excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a gain on a bargain
purchase.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment
losses. Goodwill arising on a business combination is
allocated to each cash-generating unit, or group of cash-
generating units, that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination and is tested annually for
impairment (see note 2())).

On disposal of a cash generating unit during the year, any
attributable amount of purchased goodwill is included in the
calculation of the profit or loss on disposal.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are recognised initially at
fair value. At the end of reporting period the fair value is
remeasured. The gain or 10ss on remeasurement to fair
value is recognised immediately in profit or loss, except
where the derivatives qualify for cash flow hedge accounting
or hedge the net investment in a foreign operation, in which
case recognition of any resultant gain or loss depends on
the nature of the item being hedged.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(h)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (see note
2()).

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an
item of property, plant and equipment are determined as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item and are recognised in profit or
loss on the date of retirement or disposal. Any related
revaluation surplus is transferred from the revaluation
reserve to retained profits and is not reclassified to profit
and loss.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost or valuation
of items of property, plant and equipment, less their
estimated residual value, if any, using the straight-line
method over their estimated useful lives as follows:
— Buildings The shorter of the unexpired
term of lease and their estimated
useful lives, being no more than
20 years after the date
of completion
— Plant and machinery 510 10 years
— Furniture, fittings
and equipment

3t0 10 years

— Motor vehicles 4t0 10 years

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of the item is allocated
on a reasonable basis between the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Both the useful life of an asset and
its residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RA 35 80 3R P oF

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(B 5 Bt &S« UAREZE)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(M

()

Construction in progress

Construction in progress represents property, plant and
equipment under construction and equipment pending
installation, and is stated at cost less impairment losses (see
note 2()). The cost of self-constructed items of property,
plant and equipment includes the cost of materials, direct
labour, the initial estimate, where relevant, of the costs of
dismantling and removing the items and restoring the site
on which they are located, and an appropriate proportion of
production overheads and borrowing costs (see note 2(y)).
Capitalisation of these costs ceases and the construction in
progress is transferred to property, plant and equipment
when the asset is substantially ready for its intended use.

No depreciation is provided in respect of the construction in
progress until it is substantially completed and ready for its
intended use.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)
Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred. Expenditure on
development activities is capitalised if the product or
process is technically and commercially feasible and the
Group has sufficient resources and the intention to
complete development. The expenditure capitalised
includes the costs of materials, direct labour, and an
appropriate proportion of overheads and borrowing costs,
where applicable (see note 2(y)). Capitalised development
costs are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and
impairment losses (see note 2(l)). Other development
expenditure is recognised as an expense in the period in
which it is incurred.

Other intangible assets that are acquired by the Group are
stated at cost less accumulated amortisation (where the
estimated useful life is finite) and impairment losses (see
note 2(I)). Expenditure on internally generated goodwill and
brands is recognised as an expense in the period in which it
is incurred.

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite useful lives is
charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
assets’ estimated useful lives. Customer relationships are
amortised from the date they are available for use and their
estimated useful lives are three years.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(k) Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of
transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group determines
that the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific asset
or assets for an agreed period of time in return for a
payment or a series of payments. Such a determination is
made based on an evaluation of the substance of the
arrangement and is regardless of whether the arrangement
takes the legal form of a lease.

)

Classification of assets leased to the Group
Assets that are held by the Group under leases which
transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership are classified as being held
under finance leases. Leases which do not transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to
the Group are classified as operating leases, with the
following exceptions:

property held under operating leases that would
otherwise meet the definition of an investment
property is classified as investment property on
a property-by-property basis and, if classified as
investment property, is accounted for as if held
under a finance lease; and

land held for own use under an operating lease,
the fair value of which cannot be measured
separately from the fair value of a building
situated thereon at the inception of the lease, is
accounted for as being held under a finance
lease, unless the building is also clearly held
under an operating lease. For these purposes,
the inception of the lease is the time that the
lease was first entered into by the Group, or
taken over from the previous lessee.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RA 35 80 3R P oF

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(b= BT HES)

HUAERS|E)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
(k) Leas
(i)

(i)

100 China Metal Resour

ed assets (Continued)

Assets acquired under finance leases

Where the Group acquires the use of assets under
finance leases, the amounts representing the fair
value of the leased asset, or, if lower, the present
value of the minimum lease payments of such assets
are recognised as property, plant and equipment and
the corresponding liabilities, net of finance charges,
are recorded as obligations under finance leases.
Depreciation is provided at rates which write off the
cost or valuation of the assets over the term of the
relevant lease or, where it is likely the Group will
obtain ownership of the asset, the life of the asset, as
set out in note 2(h). Impairment losses are accounted
for in accordance with the accounting policy as set
out in note 2(). Finance charges implicit in the lease
payments are charged to profit or loss over the period
of the leases so as to produce an approximately
constant periodic rate of charge on the remaining
balance of the obligations for each accounting period.
Ccontingent rentals are charged to profit or loss in the
accounting period in which they are incurred.

Sales and leaseback arrangement resulting in
finance lease

A sales and leaseback arrangement which results in a
finance lease is a means whereby the lessor provides
finance to the lessee with the asset as security. To
reflect the substance of the transaction, any excess of
sales proceeds over the carrying amount of the asset,
or any deficit of sales proceeds lower than the
carrying amount of the asset, is deferred and
amortised as an adjustment to the depreciation of the
asset.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(k) Leased assets (Continued)
(iv) Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held under
operating leases, payments made under the leases
are charged to profit or loss in equal installments over
the accounting periods covered by the lease term,
except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the pattern of benefits to be derived
from the leased asset. Lease incentives received are
recognised in profit or loss as an integral part of the
aggregate net lease payments made. Contingent
rentals are charged to profit or loss in the accounting
period in which they are incurred.

The cost of acquiring land held under an operating
lease is amortised on a straight-line basis over the
period of the lease term except where the property is
classified as an investment property or is held for
development for sale.

() Impairment of assets

)

Impairment of investments in debt and equity
securities and other receivables

Investments in debt and equity securities and other
current and non-current receivables that are stated at
cost or amortised cost or are classified as available-
for-sale securities are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period to determine whether there is
objective evidence of impairment. Objective evidence
of impairment includes observable data that comes to
the attention of the Group about one or more of the
following loss events:

— significant financial difficulty of the debtor,
— a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;

— it becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RA 35 80 3R P oF

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(B 5 Bt &S« UAREZE)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
() Impairment of assets (Continued)
(i) Impairment of investments in debt and equity
securities and other receivables (Continued)
— significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an
adverse effect on the debtor; and

— a significant or prolonged decline in the fair
value of an investment in an equity instrument
below its cost.

If any such evidence exists, any impairment 10ss is
determined and recognised as follows:

— For investments in associates accounted for
under the equity method in the consolidated
financial statements (see note 2(e)), the
impairment loss is measured by comparing the
recoverable amount of the investment with its
carrying amount in accordance with note 2(/)ii).
The impairment loss is reversed if there has
been a favourable change in the estimates used
to determine the recoverable amount in
accordance with note 2(/)ii).

—  For unquoted equity securities carried at cost,
the impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the carrying amount of the
financial asset and the estimated future cash
flows, discounted at the current market rate of
return for a similar financial asset where the
effect of discounting is material. Impairment
losses for equity securities carried at cost are
not reversed.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

() Impairment of assets (Continued)
(i) Impairment of investments in debt and equity
securities and other receivables (Continued)

For trade and other current receivables and
other financial assets carried at amortised cost,
the impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash
flows, discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest
rate computed at initial recognition of these
assets), where the effect of discounting is
material. This assessment is made collectively
where these financial assets carried at
amortised cost share similar risk characteristics,
such as similar past due status, and have not
been individually assessed as impaired. Future
cash flows for financial assets which are
assessed for impairment collectively are based
on historical loss experience for assets with
credit risk characteristics similar to the collective

group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an
impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be linked objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognised, the
impairment loss is reversed through profit or
loss. A reversal of an impairment loss shall not
result in the asset’s carrying amount exceeding
that which would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior years.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RA 35 80 3R P oF

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(b= BT HES)

UABRKES|E)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
() Impairment of assets (Continued)

)

(ii)

Impairment of investments in debt and equity
securities and other receivables (Continued)
Impairment losses are written off against the
corresponding assets directly, except for impairment
losses recognised in respect of trade debtors and bills
receivable included within trade and other receivables,
whose recovery is considered doubtful but not
remote. In this case, the impairment losses for
doubtful debts are recorded using an allowance
account. When the Group is satisfied that recovery is
remote, the amount considered irrecoverable is
written off against trade debtors and bills receivable
directly and any amounts held in the allowance
account relating to that debt are reversed. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously charged to the
allowance account are reversed against the allowance
account. Other changes in the allowance account and
subseqguent recoveries of amounts previously written
off directly are recognised in profit or l0ss.

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at each reporting period to identify
indications that the following assets may be impaired
or, except in the case of goodwill, an impairment loss
previously recognised no longer exists or may have
decreased:

—  property, plant and equipment;

—  pre-paid interests in leasehold land classified as
being held under an operating lease;

— intangible assets;

— goodwill; and

— investments in subsidiaries, associates in the
Company'’s statement of financial position.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

() Impairment of assets (Continued)

(i)

Impairment of other assets (Continued)

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. In addition, for goodwill,
intangible assets that are not yet available for use and
intangible assets that have indefinite useful lives, the
recoverable amount of goodwill is estimated annually
whether or not there is any indication of impairment.

—  Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the
greater of its fair value less costs of disposal and
value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of time
value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. Where an asset does not generate cash
inflows largely independent of those from other
assets, the recoverable amount is determined
for the smallest group of assets that generates
cash inflows independently (i.e. a cash-
generating unit).

— Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss
if the carrying amount of an asset, or the cash-
generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds its
recoverable amount. Impairment losses
recognised in respect of cash-generating units
are allocated to reduce the carrying amount of
any goodwill allocated to the cash-generating
unit (or group of units) and then, to reduce
below its individual fair value less costs of
disposal (if measurable), or value in use (if
determinable).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RA 35 80 3R P oF

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(B 5 Bt &S« UAREZE)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
() Impairment of assets (Continued)
(ii) Impairment of other assets (Continued)
— Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an
impairment loss is reversed if there has been a
favourable change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount. An
impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not
reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to the
asset’s carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years. Reversals of
impairment losses are credited to profit or loss
in the year in which the reversals are
recognised.

(iii) Interim financial reporting and impairment
Under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, the Group
is required to prepare an interim financial report in
compliance with IAS 34, Interim financial reporting, in
respect of the first six months of the financial year. At
the end of the interim period, the Group applies the
same impairment testing, recognition, and reversal
criteria as it would at the end of the financial year (see
notes 2(1)(i) and (ii)).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
(m) Warrant granted to suppliers

(n)

Warrant issued in exchange for goods or services are
measured at the fair values of the goods or service received,
unless that fair value cannot be reliably measured, in which
case the goods or services received are measured by
reference to the fair value of the warrants granted. The fair
values of the goods or services received are recognised as
expenses, with a corresponding increase in equity (warrant
reserve), when the Group obtains the goods or when the
counterparties render services, unless the goods or services
qualify for recognition as assets.

Inventories
Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost formula
and comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion
and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their
present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the
sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in
which the related revenue is recognised. The amount of any
write-down of inventories to net realisable value and all
losses of inventories are recognised as an expense in the
period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any
reversal of any write-down of inventories is recognised as a
reduction in the amount of inventories recognised as an
expense in the period in which the reversal occurs.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RA 35 80 3R P oF

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(b= BT HES)

UABRKES|E)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(0)

(p)

(a)

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at fair
value and thereafter stated at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less allowance for impairment of
doubtful debts (see note 2(l)), except where the receivables
are interest-free loans made to related parties without any
fixed repayment terms or the effect of discounting would be
immaterial. In such cases, the receivables are stated at cost
less allowance for impairment of doubtful debts.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair
value less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to
initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated at
amortised cost with any difference between the amount
initially recognised and redemption value being recognised
in profit or loss over the period of the borrowings, together
with any interest and fees payable, using an effective
interest method.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair
value. Except for financial guarantee liabilities measured in
accordance with note 2(v)(i), trade and other payables are
subsequently stated at amortised cost unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are
stated at cost.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(r) Convertible bonds

)

Convertible bonds that contain an equity
component

Convertible bonds that can be converted to equity
share capital at the option of the holder, where the
number of shares that would be issued on conversion
and the value of the consideration that would be
received at that time do not vary, are accounted for as
compound financial instruments which contain both a
liability component and an equity component.

At initial recognition the liability component of the
convertible bonds is measured as the present value of
the future interest and principal payments, discounted
at the market rate of interest applicable at the time of
initial recognition to similar liabilities that do not have
a conversion option. Any excess of proceeds over the
amount initially recognised as the liability component
is recognised as the equity component. Transaction
costs that relate to the issue of a compound financial
instrument are allocated to the liability and equity
components in proportion to the allocation of
proceeds.

The liability component is subsequently carried at
amortised cost. The interest expense recognised in
profit or loss on the liability component is calculated
using the effective interest method. The equity
component is recognised in the capital reserve until
either the note is converted or redeemed.

If the bond is converted, the capital reserve, together
with the carrying amount of the liability component at
the time of conversion, is transferred to share capital
and share premium as consideration for the shares
issued. If the note is redeemed, the capital reserve is
released directly to retained profits.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RA 35 80 3R P oF

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(b= BT HES)

UABRKES|E)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
Convertible bonds (Continuead)

(n

(i)

Other convertible bonds
Convertible bonds which do not contain an equity
component are accounted for as follows:

At initial recognition the derivative component of the
convertible bonds is measured at fair value and
presented as part of derivative financial instruments
(see note 2(g)). Any excess of proceeds over the
amount initially recognised as the derivative
component is recognised as the liability component.
Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the
convertible bond are allocated to the liability and
derivative components in proportion to the allocation
of proceeds. The portion of the transaction costs
relating to the liability component is recognised initially
as part of the liability. The portion relating to the
derivative component is recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

The derivative component is subsequently
remeasured in accordance with note 2(g). The liability
component is subsequently carried at amortised cost.
The interest expense recognised in profit or loss on
the liability component is calculated using the effective
interest method.

If the bond is converted, the carrying amounts of the
derivative and liability components are transferred to
share capital and share premium as consideration for
the shares issued. If the bond is redeemed, any
difference between the amount paid and the carrying
amounts of both components is recognised in profit or
loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(s)

(t)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on
hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments that
are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value,
having been within three months of maturity at acquisition.
Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group’s cash management are also
included as a component of cash and cash equivalents for
the purpose of the consolidated cash flow statement.

Employee benefits

(i) Short term employee benefits and contributions
to defined contribution retirement plans
Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement plans
and the cost of non-monetary benefits are accrued in
the year in which the associated services are rendered
by employees. Where payment or settlement is
deferred and the effect would be material, these
amounts are stated at their present values.

(ii) Share-based payments
The fair value of share options granted to employees
is recognised as an employee cost with a
corresponding increase in share-based payment
reserve within equity. The fair value is measured at
grant date using the Binomial Option Pricing Model,
taking into account the terms and conditions upon
which the options were granted. Where the
employees have to meet vesting conditions before
becoming unconditionally entitled to the options, the
total estimated fair value of the options is spread over
the vesting period, taking into account the probability
that the options will vest.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RA 35 80 3R P oF

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(b= BT HES)

UABRKES|E)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(t)

(u)

Employee benefits (Continued)

(ii) Share-based payments (Continued)
During the vesting period, the number of share
options that is expected to vest is reviewed. Any
resulting adjustment to the cumulative fair value
recognised in prior years is charged/credited to the
profit or loss for the year of the review, unless the
original employee expenses qualify for recognition as
an asset, with a corresponding adjustment to the
share-based payment reserve. On vesting date, the
amount recognised as an expense is adjusted to
reflect the actual number of options that vest (with a
corresponding adjustment to the share-based
payment reserve) except where forfeiture is only due
to not achieving vesting conditions that relate to the
market price of the Company’s shares. The equity
amount is recognised in the share-based payment
reserve until either the option is expires (when it is
released directly to retained profits).

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current tax
and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities are
recognised in profit or loss except to the extent they relate
to items recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, in which case the relevant amounts of tax
are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantially
enacted at the end of the reporting period, and any
adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible and
taxable temporary differences respectively, being the
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax
bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses
and unused tax credits.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(u)

Income tax (Continued)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities and all deferred tax assets, to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profits will be available against
which the asset can be utilised, are recognised. Future
taxable profits that may support the recognition of deferred
tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences
include those that will arise from the reversal of existing
taxable temporary differences, provided those differences
relate to the same taxation authority and the same taxable
entity, and are expected to reverse either in the same
period as the expected reversal of the deductible temporary
difference or in periods into which a tax loss arising from
the deferred tax asset can be carried back or forward. The
same criteria are adopted when determining whether
existing taxable temporary differences support the
recognition of deferred tax assets arising from unused tax
losses and credits, that is, those differences are taken into
account if they relate to the same taxation authority and the
same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in a
period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit can be
utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax assets
and liabilities are those temporary differences arising from
goodwill not deductible for tax purpose, the initial
recognition of assets or liabilities that affect neither
accounting nor taxable profit (provided that they are not
part of a business combination), and temporary differences
relating to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that, in
the case of taxable differences, the Group controls the
timing of reversal and it is probable that the differences will
not reverse in the foreseeable future, or in the case of
deductible differences, unless it is probable that they will
reverse in the future.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at
each balance sheet date and is reduced to the extent that it
is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any
such reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RA 35 80 3R P oF

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(B 5 Bt &S« UAREZE)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(u)

Income tax (Continued)

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution of
dividends are recognised when the liability to pay the
related dividends is recognised.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset
against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets against
deferred tax liabilities, if the Company or the Group has the
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and the following additional conditions
are met:

— in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Company or the Group intends either to settle on a
net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously; or

— inthe case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either:

— the same taxable entity; or

— different taxable entities, which, in each future
period in which significant amounts of deferred
tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled
or recovered, intend to realise the current tax
assets and settle the current tax liabilities on a
net basis or realise and settle simultaneously.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(v) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and
contingent liabilities

)

Financial guarantees issued

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the
issuer (i.e. the guarantor) to make specified payments
to reimburse the beneficiary of the guarantee (the
“holder”) for a loss the holder incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payment when due in
accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee, the fair
value of the guarantee is initially recognised as
deferred income within trade and other payables. The
fair value of financial guarantees issued at the time of
issuance is determined by reference to fees charged
in an arm'’s length transaction for similar services,
when such information is obtainable, or is otherwise
estimated by reference to interest rate differentials, by
comparing the actual rates charged by lenders when
the guarantee is made available with the estimated
rates that lenders would have charged, had the
guarantees not been available, where reliable
estimates of such information can be made. Where
consideration is received or receivable for the
issuance of the guarantee, the consideration is
recognised in accordance with the Group’s policies
applicable to that category of asset. Where no such
consideration is received or receivable, an immediate
expense is recognised in profit or loss on initial
recognition of any deferred income.

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised as
deferred income is amortised in profit or loss over the
term of the guarantee as income from financial
guarantees issued. In addition, provisions are
recognised in accordance with note 2(v)(iii) if and
when (i) it becomes probable that the holder of the
guarantee will call upon the Group under the
guarantee, and (i) the amount of that claim on the
Group is expected to exceed the amount currently
carried in trade and other payables in respect of that
guarantee i.e. the amount initially recognised, less
accumulated amortisation.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RA 35 80 3R P oF

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(b= BT HES)

UABRKES|E)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(v)

Financial guarantees issued, provisions and

contingent liabilities (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

Contingent liabilities assumed in business
combinations

Contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination which are present obligations at the date
of acquisition are initially recognised at fair value,
provided the fair value can be reliably measured. After
their initial recognition at fair value, such contingent
liabilities are recognised at the higher of the amount
initially recognised, less accumulated amortisation
where appropriate, and the amount that would be
determined in accordance with note 2(v)(iii).
Contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination that cannot be reliably fair valued or
were not present obligations at the date of acquisition
are disclosed in accordance with note 2(v)(iii).

Other provisions and contingent liabilities
Provisions are recognised for other liabilities of
uncertain timing or amount when the Group or the
Company has a legal or constructive obligation arising
as a result of a past event, it is probable that an
outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made.
Where the time value of money is material, provisions
are stated at the present value of the expenditure
expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits
is remote.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A %5 8 R0 5E

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(B Saat HEI LN EHESIE)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 FEETEXR®
(Continued)
(w) Revenue recognition (w) W=

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration Wt B IRE WS ERRENATFE

received or receivable. FHE o

Provided it is probable that the economic benefits will flow i &AMz Al BE AR EE - i

to the Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can Wrzs R KA (RR3E A ) gE Rl SEMb T =

be measured reliably, revenue is recognised in profit or loss B AJAZIREB T2 7 AR ER

as follows: PR -

(i) Sale of goods (i) HEEm
Revenue is recognised when the customer has WaeERPHEWE R R EE
accepted the goods and the related risks and rewards WA RERBARNER R E R
of ownership. Revenue excludes value added tax or R o W PN EIEEER o H
other sales taxes and is after deduction of any trade IHER - WEIRERE S
discounts. 0 o

(i) Contract manufacturing income (i) EREHBEWBA
Contract manufacturing income is recognised when & RZERARERES RS
the contract manufacturing services are rendered. ERIERFHERR ©

(iii) Interest income (i) FEWKA
Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the F B A T E R IR B R A
effective interest method. RIEFER ©
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RA 35 80 3R P oF

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(B 5 Bt &S« UAREZE)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
(w) Revenue recognition (Continued)
(iv) Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the statement of
financial position initially when there is reasonable
assurance that they will be received and that the
Group will comply with the conditions attaching to
them. Grants that compensate the Group for expenses
incurred are recognised as income in profit or l0ss on
a systematic basis in the same periods in which the
expenses are incurred. Grants that compensate the
Group for the cost of an asset are deducted from the
carrying amount of the asset and consequently are
effectively recognised in profit or loss over the useful
life of the asset by way of reduced depreciation
expense. An unconditional government grant is
recognised in profit or loss as other revenue when the
grant becomes receivable, other government grants
are recognised in the balance sheet initially when
there is reasonable assurance that they will be
received and that the Group will comply with the
conditions attached to them. Grants that compensate
the Group for expenses incurred are recognised as
revenue in profit or loss on a systematic basis in the
same periods in which the expenses are incurred.
Grants that compensate the Group for the cost of an
asset are deducted from the carrying amount of the
asset and consequently are effectively recognised in
profit or loss over the useful life of the asset by way of
reduced depreciation expense.

(x) Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the end of the reporting period. Exchange gains
and losses are recognised in profit or loss, except those
arising from foreign currency borrowings used to hedge a
net investment in a foreign operation which are recognised
in other comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
(x) Translation of foreign currencies (Continued)

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies that are stated at fair value are translated
using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair
value was measured.

The results of foreign operations are translated into
Renminbi at the exchange rates approximating the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the dates of transactions.
Statement of financial position items, including goodwill
arising on consolidation of foreign operations acquired on or
after 1 January 2005, are translated into Hong Kong dollars
at the closing foreign exchange rates at the end of the
reporting period. The resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in equity in the exchange reserve.
Goodwill arising on consolidation of a foreign operation
acquired before 1 January 2005 is translated at the foreign
exchange rate that applied at the date of acquisition of the
foreign operation. Balance sheet items are translated into
Renminbi at the closing foreign exchange rates at the
balance sheet date. The resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in equity in the exchange reserve.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative amount
of the exchange differences relating to that foreign
operation is reclassified from equity to profit or loss when
the profit or loss on disposal is recognised. an operation
with functional currency other than Renminbi, the
cumulative amount of the exchange differences relating to
that operation with functional currency other than Renminbi
is reclassified from equity to profit or loss when the profit or
loss on disposal is recognised.

A 35 80 R ORI GE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RA 35 80 3R P oF

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(5= Bt HiE S

YA RHESE)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(y)

(2

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset which
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready
for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost
of that asset. Other borrowing costs are expensed in the
period in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost of a
qualifying asset commences when expenditure for the asset
is being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred and
activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for its
intended use or sale are in progress. Capitalisation of
borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when substantially
all the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset
for its intended use or sale are interrupted or complete.

Related parties
(@) A person, or a close member of that person’s family,
is related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel
of the Group or the Group's parent.

(b)  Anentity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

(i)  The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others).

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member).

(i) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A %5 8 R0 5E

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(B Saat HEI LN EHESIE)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 FESTEHER®
(Continued)
(z) Related parties (Continued) (2) BEAT(#®)
(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following (b) EMTEW%\/\RT; *EEAR
conditions applies: (Continued) AERERM (&)
(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and (iv) %%%%%:E%% i
the other entity is an associate of the third aEAwE ﬂﬁ% —HEA
entity. REEZ BB E
NG
(v)  The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for V) HEBEEEREFET
the benefit of employees of either the Group or TAK ! A % F
an entity related to the Group. A sﬁﬁfgﬁgmﬁ/g\ B
BizmrlEral -
(vi)  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a Vi) ZEEX (@) B AR
person identified in (a). B A TAZ I SRR -
(i) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant (vi) % (a )S) EEP FIT 4 3 ) A
influence over the entity or is a member of the THRERREARE
7 ZALTRZER

key management personnel of the entity (or of a

parent of the entity). (XRZEBNELF])
MEZEBEABRKE °
Close members of the family of a person are those family %/\ingﬁ%ﬁ?z BRERRE
members who may be expected to influence, or be f%ﬂﬁéﬁ FRELBALHXE
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity. ZBALTHEBOREKE -
(aa) Segment reporting (aa) 7 #E/EH

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment KEDBRRIBHREAFMBERN
item reported in the financial statements, are identified from ENBEANSASHREEHRARE
the financial statements provided regularly to the Group's .@%&ﬁﬂ = E/\%%?\%Mﬁ
most senior executive management for the purposes of %%ﬁﬁmﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁgﬁﬁm
allocating resources to, and assessing the performance of, BRI HER I B R R R BB -
the Group’s lines of business and geographical locations.
Individually material operating segments are not aggregated MM BRET = M1I /“:IJE?(E%« &
for financial reporting purposes unless the segments have ARMEAFUEE - BRIFZED
similar economic characteristics and are similar in respect AFHECEERTIE - A &Eﬁéﬁg
of the nature of products and services, the nature of RIBILH - EERFAEE f%i}fi,é
production processes, the type or class of customers, the E\Jgﬁiﬁg FRLAS $HE an Sl 3R P AR
methods used to distribute the products or provide the BRAAREERENEES M
services, and the nature of the regulatory environment. B Rl=E J{/ il EL R & %K E
Operating segments which are not individually material may DEBGN  WHEEREROLE
be aggregated if they share a majority of these criteria. AEWATFUEH -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RA 35 80 3R P oF

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(B 5 Bt &S« UAREZE)

3 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES
(@) Key sources of estimation uncertainty
Note 35 contains information about the assumptions and
their risk factors relating to the fair value of financial
instruments.

(b) Critical accounting judgements in applying the
Group’s financial statements
In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies,
management has made the following accounting
judgements:

(i) Impairment
Notes 18 and 35(a) contain information about the
assumptions and risk factors relating to the
impairment of goodwill and trade debtors. Other key
sources of estimation uncertainty are as follows:

In considering the impairment losses that may be
required for certain assets of the Group, the
recoverable amount of the asset needs to be
determined. The recoverable amount is the greater of
its fair value less cost of disposal and value in use. It is
difficult to precisely estimate fair value because
quoted market prices for these assets may not be
readily available. In determining the value in use,
expected cash flows generated by the asset are
discounted to its present value, which requires
significant judgement relating to items such as level of
revenue and amount of operating costs. The Group
uses all readily available information in determining an
amount that is a reasonable approximation of the
recoverable amount, including estimates based on
reasonable and supportable assumptions and
projections of items such as revenue and operating
COStS.

Impairment losses for doubtful debts are assessed
and provided based on the regular review of ageing
analysis and evaluation of collectability by the
management. A considerable level of judgement is
exercised by the management when assessing the
credit worthiness and past collection history of each
individual customer.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)
(b) Critical accounting judgements in applying the
Group'’s financial statements (Continued)

(i)

(i)

(iv)

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated
selling price less estimated costs of completion and
distribution expenses. These estimates are based on
the current market condition and historical experience
of selling products of similar nature. It could change
significantly as a result of competitor actions in
response to severe industry cycles or changes in
market conditions. Management reassesses these
estimations at the balance sheet date to ensure
inventories are shown at the lower of cost and net
realisable value.

Depreciation

ltems of property, plant and equipment are
depreciated on a straight-line basis over the estimated
useful lives of the assets, after taking into account the
estimated residual value. Management reviews the
estimated useful lives of the assets regularly in order
to determine the amount of depreciation expense to
be recorded during any reporting period. The useful
lives of the assets are based on the Group’s historical
experience with similar assets and taking into account
anticipated technological changes. The depreciation
expense for future periods is adjusted if there are
significant changes from previous estimates.

Income tax

Determining income tax provisions involves judgement
on the future tax treatment of certain transactions.
Management carefully evaluates tax implications of
transactions and tax provisions are set up accordingly.
The tax treatment of these transactions is
reconsidered periodically by taking into account all
changes in tax legislations. Deferred tax assets are
recognised for deductible temporary differences. As
deferred tax assets can only be recognised to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will
be available, management’s judgement is required to
assess the probability of future taxable profits.
Management’'s assessment is constantly reviewed
and additional deferred tax assets, if any, are
recognised if it becomes probable that future taxable
profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be
recovered.
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
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(ii)

(iii)

(iv)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RA 5 3R R B 5

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(8 S HBES)  UARBHE). ’ \ X

4 REVENUE

The principal activities of the Group are manufacturing and sales
of copper and related products, sales of aluminium products, and

provision of contract manufacturing services in the PRC.

Revenue represents the sales value of goods sold to customers
less returns, discounts, and value added taxes and other sales
tax, and contract manufacturing income which is analysed as

follows:

EXH
AEEOEEEBRERAEERBE
REMES - HEBERMRHA AL
HERRT -

EERBRETEFPNEMMNIEEEER
RE 0 RERMEMHER - AR
AN

2015 2014
2015 F 2014 5

RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARET T

Sales of recycled copper products SHEBAEIRER 1,662,987 3,548,268

Sales of power transmission and
distribution cables SHE XA EE 70,616 181,490
Sales of communication cables HEREEE 29,398 104,037
Sales of scrap materials SHEREEM KL 15,755 22,524
Sales of aluminium products HEIRE @ 10,834 -
Contract manufacturing income & REERA 1,160 2,624
1,790,750 3,858,943

Two customers (2014: one customer) of the Group represents
more than 10% of the Group's total revenue for the year ended 31
December 2015. For the year ended 31 December 2015, the
revenue from these two major customers (2014: one major
customer) amounted to RMB738,862,000 (2014: RMB391,846,000).
Further details of concentrations of credit risk arising from

customers are set out in note 35(a).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEGMENT REPORTING

The Group manages its businesses by business operations. In a
manner consistent with the way in which information is reported
internally to the Group’s most senior executive management for
the purposes of resource allocation and performance assessment,
the Group has presented the following four reportable segments,
namely recycled copper products segment, power transmission
and distribution cables segment, communication cables segment
and aluminium products segment as at 31 December 2015.

() Recycled copper products segment: use of scrap copper
and electrolytic copper for the manufacturing of recycled
copper products;

(i) Power transmission and distribution cables segment:
manufacturing sales of power transmission and distribution
cables;

(i) Communication cables segment: manufacturing and sales
of communication cables; and

(iv)  Aluminium products segment: sales of aluminium products.

(a) Segment results
For the purposes of assessing segment performance and
allocating resources between segments, the Group’s most
senior executive management monitors the results
attributable to each reportable segment on the following
bases:

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable
segments with reference to sales generated by those
segments and the expenses incurred by those segments or
which otherwise arise from the depreciation or amortisation
of assets attributable to those segments.

The measure used for reporting segment (loss)/profit is
“(loss)/profit after taxation”. To arrive at reportable segment
(loss)/profit, the Group’s (loss)/profit is further adjusted for
items not specially attributed to individual segments, such
as head office or corporate administrative costs.

A measurement of segment assets and liabilities is not
provided regularly to the Group’s most senior executive
management and accordingly, no segment assets or
liabilities information is presented.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B IS 4R RO i | NG

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(5 5 Hi1E - HARRRE) . A S
5 SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 5 2HmE®
(@) Segment results (Continued) (a) DEELE(E)

Information regarding the Group’s reportable segments as RNEERE E2015F k2014 F 12
provided to the Group’s most senior executive management RA31BILFENAE RS B KT E D
for the purposes of resource allocation and assessment of HESLAENMEREAEEZIN
segment performance for the year ended 31 December THERE/R 2®D S E R &H
2015 and 2014 is set out below: N

2015
015%
Power
Recycled  transmission

copper and distribution Communication Aluminium

products cables cables products Total
BEEER ARES BRES fEm @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEETR AEETR ARET T ARETT ARETT

Revenue from external customers RESNDZPHE 1,679,878 70,616 29,422 10,834 1,790,750
Inter-segment revenue ABEkE 137,478 441 726 - 138,645
Reportable segment revenue THEDBUE 1,817,356 71,057 30,148 10,834 1,929,395
Reportable segment (oss)/proft REAB(BR)/ & (296,031) (18,506) (26,873) 101 (341,309)
Interest income FSMA 716 146 405 - 1,267
Finance costs ALK 65,346 4,181 2,837 1 72,065
Depreciation and amortisation for the year i & ki 29,921 10,654 2,364 15 42,954
VAT refunds, government grants

and subsidies REREN BRI RS 134,728 666 298 - 135,692
Impairment loss of goodwill HEREEE 16,081 - - - 16,081
Impairment loss of property,

plant and equipment 0% BERABEHERE 54,313 - - - 54,313
Impairment loss of trade debtors and

bills receivable ORI REUNRRAEER 80,374 14907 17,549 - 112,830
Warrant expenses AREER 12,079 - - - 12,079
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SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 5 S2EHmEE)

(@) Segment results (Continued) () DEpEEE)
2014
NUE
Power
Recycled transmission
Communication

copper  and distribution
products cables cables Total
BEAER AREE BiEEH gt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETL ARETT ARETT ARETT

Revenue from external customers RENSE PR 3,973,416 181,490 104,037 3,858,943
Inter-segment revenug PEElkE 296,521 7,060 4,065 308,046
Reportable segment revenue MR ED Pl 3,869,937 188,550 108,502 4,166,989
Reportable segment profit RED A 249,861 20,594 23,872 294,307
Interest income FIBMA 561 17 205 783
Finance costs BIERLAR 52,489 1,790 2878 57,157
Depreciation and amortisation

for the year FRREREH 25,930 4,861 1,694 32485
VAT refunds, government grants

and subsidies RERENRENEE R 426,767 7,591 4,390 438,748
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NOTES TO THE IiINANCIAL STATEMENTS ) ,,,w}" ha\.
uﬁﬁimz | A B ™ 4 \\f! \\-\.\ “T\?‘Jllf ‘\\{//? :

" (Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated o, X N A T o' H’t‘ at?

(@gﬁa‘r@?ﬂ/\-%«ﬁ%gﬁt BE | SR Yok )
5 SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 5 ZHBEE
(b) Reconciliations of reportable segment revenue (b) THREDBUSEEIE RNV IR

and profit or loss

2015 2014
2015 F 2014 5

RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARET T

Revenue g
Reportable segment revenue AR 5 S 1,929,395 4,166,989
Elimination of inter-segment revenue %7445 2P R U ES (138,645) (308,046)
Consolidated revenue (see note 4) iR (RFEE4) 1,790,750 3,858,943
(Loss)/Profit (E’),=F
Reportable segment (loss)/profit RERSEINEEFH

derived from the Group's external AISRE D30 (BE), @

customers (341,309) 294,327
Unallocated head office and

corporate expenses ROBARPHER RPER (162,855) (46,06
Share of profit of associates FE1G Hﬁ%%@ Al A 1,028 -
Consolidated (loss)/profit for the year G R4RE (E518) %A (503,136) 248,266
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEME TS
| wﬁiﬁ |

Express\ed m Renm/nb/ i unless indicated
% C 58\ * | G A

5 SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 5 2HmE®

(c) Geographic information (c) HIEEHR
The Group carried out its business operations in the PRC, AREBNPRELLSER - FipirE
thus no separate geographical segment analysis based on BB EEME D BB &

the location of assets is presented. DEBDHT ©
The following table sets out information about the TREY A BAEBRNARBEIE XK
geographical location of the Group's revenue from external BN R R R R R E BB
customers. The geographical location of customers is based B B @A B T IE R E R

on the location at which the goods are delivered. 2|5 o

2015 2014
2015 F 2014 €

RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARBTT

Mainland China B A3 1,790,750 3,832,104
Other countries HA =R - 26,839
1,790,750 3,858,943
6 OTHER REVENUE AND OTHER NET LOSS 6 HiERHMTEER
(@) Other revenue (a) Hbugss

2015 2014
2015 F 2014 €

RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR®T ARETT

VAT refunds RERR
— Employment of disabled staff —ERAREKETL

(note (i) (PMFE@) - 7,679
— Comprehensive utilisation —HRENABIR

of resources (note (ii)) (B & (i) 96,681 311,578
Government grants (note (iii)) B #68 B (BT 32 (i) 20,141 85,400
Government subsidies (note (iv)) BT 4 B (B 3E (v) 18,870 34,091
Interest income B A 1,276 1,150

136,968 439,898
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RA 35 80 3R P oF

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(b= BT HES)

UABRKES|E)

6 OTHER REVENUE AND OTHER NET LOSS

(Continued)

(@) Other revenue (Continued)

(i)

130 China Metal Resour

The Group is entitled to government grants for value
added tax (“VAT") refunds in connection with the
employment of disabled people under Cai Shui [2007]
No. 67 issued by the PRC State Administration of
Taxation.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group
has transferred the disabled staff from Mianyang Jinxin
Copper Co., Ltd. (“Jinxin“) to Mianyang Tongxin Copper
Co., Ltd. ("Tongxin"). As at 31 December 2015, the
Group was awaiting the approval from the authorities
for the above VAT refund to Tongxin and accordingly,
no VAT refund has been recognised during the year.

The Group is entitled to government grants for refunds
of 50% for the six months period ended 30 June 2015
(2014:50%) of the net VAT paid/payable under the
Adjustment and Improvement of VAT Policies for
Products and Labour Services Relating to
Comprehensive Utilisation of Resources (Cai Shui
[2011] No. 115 (the “Former VAT Policy”)) jointly issued
by the PRC State Administration of Taxation and
Ministry of Finance.

The Ministry of Finance and the State Administration
of Taxation jointly issued a notice concerning the
“Catalogue on Products and Labour Services relating
to Comprehensive Utilisation of Resources Eligible for
Concessions of Value-added Tax" (Cai Shui [2015] (No.
78)) (the “New VAT Policy”) on 12 June 2015, which
replaced, amongst others, the Former VAT Policy. The
New VAT Policy took effect on 1 July 2015. Under the
Former VAT Policy, certain subsidiaries of the
Company are entitled to government grants for
refunds of 50% of the net VAT paid/payable. According
to the New VAT Policy, the applicable VAT refund for
such subsidiaries are reduced to 30%.

ces Utilization Limited e B £ B & FFIAER A A

6 HiWwEzREMBEE 2

(a) EHfuurz= (&)

(i)

(if)

AREBEFEERBIEERRE
#4815 98 1 1) I 15 [2007167 557 51
BRARKALEFIEEN (15
ER]) RIOBUTRE)

REZE2015F 12 A31 B IE5
B AEEDEEEE THE
eEsEaRAR([£5])
BRGNS REER AT
([$R g 1) » BR2015412 A 31
B A&EBAFEBHE it
B ENED - Bt &1
BEERERIEETRT o

REBEFEEBBERARTIS
48 2 0 B R B & 28 4 HOC R
RABREEERGATAER
Ko B8 75 38 (B Rl B R RO 388 AN ) (B
#[201111155%) ([ BIBETEK
% 1) R2015% 6 A30 A A #
BHER50% B FERHEE
FFBRRTIERBISHE °

R2015F 6 512 8 B B #F &
BERGBERDH AL R
B REAFIHERME
BGERESB SR)MNAM]
(BFR5[2015] (785%) ) ([#iE(E
REBEX])  EEBRR(HEAa
) AR ER R - FIRER
BER2015F7 B1B £ -
REBAMZERRE  ~ATE
THBAREFSEERSO%E
IS ERF RN R
BBATEE o RIEFILER K
® o ZEWBAREMEER
RFALLBIERZE 30% ©



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEME ITS

6 OTHER REVENUE AND OTHER NET LOSS 6 HaWzmhEMTBERE®)
(Continued)
(@) Other revenue (Continued) (@) Hthizs (&)
(i) The amounts represent local government grants (i) ZEBEAEERTHEEE
received by operating subsidiaries of the Group in the BT A &) P UCER A9 2 75 BT
PRC for the purpose of providing immediate financial e - (EREZERB AR
support to those subsidiaries for general operating BNRsBAER B - LA —MR
use with no future related costs. No specific conditions BiE - MASEABBMERK
are required to meet in connection with the grants. 7N o BIA T B A R AR
o
(iv) In 2015, the Group was granted unconditional (iv) 20154 @ AEEEM)I| A

42 B5 T RE L R BA BB AR R
F BT 48 86 A R 5 18,870,000
FT(2014F : A R ¥
34,091,0007T ) ° & FME T
BRI IARNELBEEER
FEaR AR ([RME W]
NEBZEE AT W - R
MELEHELERZERM)
%ZEB@—WZIﬁl A
RED B R TIACIAZER o

government subsidies of RMB18,870,000 (2014
RMB34,091,000) from Youxian District Finance Bureau,
Mianyang City, Sichuan Province. The subsidies were
received through Sichuan Baohe Fushan Resources
Recycling Development Co., Ltd. (“Baohe Fushan”), an
associate of the Group. Baohe Fushan is principally
engaged in the operation and the development of an
industrial park in Mianyang City, Sichuan Province,
where most of the Group's subsidiaries are located.

(b) Other net loss (b) HAMFEEE

2015 2014
2015 &

2014 £
RMB'000
ARETFTT

RMB’000
AR®T R

Net gain/(loss) on copper futures

contracts upon settlement MAEEHORER TR/ (E18) 6,111 (670)
Changes in fair value of copper

futures contracts MEBREEHN 2 AN EE = (525)
Net foreign exchange (loss)/gain FEN (B18), e (34) 362
Net loss on sale of property,

plant and equipment HEDE - BEREERNFEER (116) (690)
Change in fair value of derivative

component of convertible "Hﬁ RESFNITETRIBHH

bonds (note 29) NEEE (FiFE29) (77,091) -
Impairment loss of goodwill (note 18) & 7 JFi{E k518 (M35 18) (16,081) -
Impairment loss of property, ME - BB KEEREEE

plant and equipment (note 13) (M7%13) (54,313) -
Share of profit of associates FEAH B &R R & F 1,028 -
Impairment loss of trade debtors and  BRF% M FEURZE 15 2 Rl (E B 18

bills receivable (note 23) (Mf3£23) (112,830) -
Others Hh (1,597) (20)

(254,923) (1,543)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ») )
' . ) =4/ | -
B2 35 80 R Pl & ~ CINS TR o,
(Expresseq in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated, : LN X <3 o' H’it‘ -
(551 AES « UARHFIE) A \k — IJ Y =Y
7 (LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 7 Bian(EE) wR

(Loss)/profit before taxation is arrived at after charging: WA (EE) SNk A T&IERE
W

2015 2014
2015 F 2014 5

RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARET T

(@) Finance costs (@) BFFEHA

Interest on bank loans and other

borrowings wholly repayable ARAFABEEENRIT

within five years B R E A E KA TS 67,431 46,199
Finance charges on obligation

under finance lease BMEHEETEEZMERS 3,460 5,403
Interest on loans from related

parties R B BEEE T M E SRR FLE 68 458
Interest on convertible bonds AR ES 2 A8 35,114 =
Guarantee fees and other charges ERERAEREMKE 7,598 5,570

113,671 57,630

2015 2014
2015 F 2014 5

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARET T

(b) Staff costs (b) BEIRAK
Salaries, wages and other benefits e TEREMER 41,295 43,305
Contributions to defined
contribution retirement schemes AERFCRIKRFHEIAH K 6,280 3,289
Share-based payment expenses AR AR B E T B 3R 2 31,874 10,365

79,449 56,959
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEME ITS

(LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (continued)

(b)

(c)

Staff costs (Continued)

Pursuant to the relevant labour rules and regulations in the
PRC, the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC participate in
defined contribution retirement benefit schemes (the
“Schemes”) organised by the local authorities whereby the
subsidiaries are required to make contributions to the
Schemes based on a percentage of the eligible employees'’
salaries for the year. Contributions to the Schemes vest
immediately and therefore no contributions can be forfeited.
Under the Schemes, retirement benefits of existing and
retired employees are payable by the relevant scheme
administrators and the Group has no further obligations
beyond the annual contributions. The forfeited contributions
of the Scheme cannot be used to reduce existing levels of
contribution for the Company.

7 AT (EE), wRl )

(b)

Other items (c) HfhEAR
Cost of inventories (note (i) TFERA ()
Depreciation of property,

plant and equipment Yz - BEREENTE
Amortisation of lease

prepayments THETER AL
Amortisation of intangible assets B A R BN
Auditor's remuneration ZEA S
— Audit service — BERS
— Other service — H bR
Listing expenses ETAX
Research and development costs TR A

BTITRARE)
RIEFRBESERASER &
EENFRAME AR 2HEAP S

7 HE BB AR A0 R E 1t rALTMmﬂ:ﬁr
2(TEt8)) &t MT%’ATEA¢
/,ﬁi/c.\ﬁﬁﬁa%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ
At EIVEH K - 5HEIRY TAE.EU
W R - PTOAE RN BEIR U - IRIE
A8 RS EEREARESR
FoRIRE B SXAIRIKE A - ALK
BEREEHERIN  BEABEREMBE
£ o BRWZE IR AR HEI

WARAZBRGHFKFE -

2015
2015

2014
20144
RMB’000
AREFIT

RMB’000
ARBT T

1,930,181 3,817,158
37,340 27,076
1,958 1,753
3,656 3,656
2,707 2,454

441 428

= 14,658

1,637 1,623

(i) Cost of inventories includes RMB20,101,000 (2014
RMB35,766,000) relating to staff costs, depreciation
and amortisation, which amount is also included in
the respective total amounts disclosed separately
above or in note 7(b) for each of these types of
expenses, and RMB12,079,000 (2014: nil) relating to
warrant expense, which is also included in the
respective amount disclosed above or in note 5(a).

() THFERABDFESTHA -
EXBHEEEMNARE
20,101,0007T (20144F = A R
#%35,766,0007T ) * Mz EH
SEEmME BESENDE
AL FE7O)FRENERS
WREEN - AN B R EE A
= A R #12,079,000 7t (2014
F:|) ZFEINFTALX
I S@FE S5 -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS .y U } 3
BH R i | NS I e
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated ) . ‘ SSUR 1’% o Y
(5 ZHRBES  HAREFE). k )\': S Touke =¥
8 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 8 HEBEBERAMNMEHR
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
(a) Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit (@) HFEBHERAMNBIIERE

or loss represents:

2015 2014
2015 % 2014 %5

RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARBTT

Current tax — PRC Corporate

Income Tax BEABiTE — PRI EMEH
Provision for the year FNREE 218 60,660
Adjustment for prior year BAEFEHARE 945 -
Effect of reduction in tax rate BEEERRTANTE
for prior year (note (i) (BE&EG)) - (10,344)
1,163 50,316
Deferred tax EERE
Origination and reversal of
temporary differences TR AR EE RED (38,448) (885)
(37,285) 49,431
Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands BEFASHERNEBERES ([F
and the British Virgin Islands (“BVI"), the Group is not subject BREZHES ) HRARRE - K&
to any income tax in the Cayman Islands and the BVI. EBETHREREREBRLHS
BUNERIFTIS L ©
No provision has been made for Hong Kong Profits Tax as AR S [E 72 7B 78 B 3 A R ERZE
the Group did not earn any assessable profit subject to BN B B RS B R ] FE SR B R
Hong Kong Profits Tax during the current and prior years. B - A A BEE B R4S A A
The payment of dividends by Hong Kong incorporated & - BEFMA KB R RIRA
subsidiaries are not subject to any Hong Kong withholding & S B BB E BB o

tax.
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- MB®:

(Expresqed in Renm/nb/ | unless

% 51\ SNl g

8 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS (continued)

8 HBEBRBRANAEHR @

(a) Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit (@) mEBB/RANBIEE (&)

or loss represents: (Continued)

() In April 2014, the Company’s subsidiaries, Sichuan iy M2014F4A8  AREfBA
Baohe Xinshiji Cable Co., Ltd. (“Baohe Xinshiji”) and AU IMRFF AL BB R A
Mianyang Baohe Taiyue Communications Cable Co., A (MR 42 ) R4 5 IR
Ltd. (“Baohe Taiyue”) also obtained the approval from MEHEBREFEBRAR(R
local tax authority and became entitled to a MR ) IS EHE B
preferential income tax rate of 15% from 1 January & - BREBE AR
2013 to 31 December 2020 under the Western B B | R2013F 1818 =
Development Strategy. Tax credits of RMB10,344,000 20205 12ANE W E A
related to the preferential tax treatment for 2013 are 15%EEREHHEE - BH
recognised in profit or loss for the year ended 31 2013 F B EV K BN
December 2014. 58 A R 10,344,000 T2

REZE2014F 12 A31HIEF
EREmH R o
(b) Reconciliation between tax (credit)/expense (b) B (ER) BFXHERBBAB
and accounting (loss)/profit at applicable tax RTENE(BER) RGN
rates: HER -
2015 2014
2015 £ 2014
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARBTT
(Loss)/Profit before taxation AT (E18), % (540,421) 297,697
Notional tax on (loss)/profit before
taxation, calculated at the rates & FERT % Rl A HE @ FT A
applicable in the tax jurisdictions MR E TR (E518),
concerned B HEE IR (57,145) 61,029
Tax effect of non-deductible
expenses TR AZ ORI E 2,128 454
Tax effect of non-taxable income IERBHIMANT ST E (238) (3,265)
Tax effect of unused tax losses and
deductible temporary not KBTS E 1B N R HER
recognised AT A =R R TS 16,974 =
Adjustment for prior year BEFERRHE 945 -
Effect of reduction in tax rate
for prior year BRAEFEMRETHANTE - (10,344)
PRC withholding tax on interest
income among entities RNEBANEL RGBT E
within the Group WA B B TR 05 218 451
Others HAth (167) 1,106
Actual tax (credit)/expense BEBRG(ER) BX (37,285) 49,431
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P75 98 S B A

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) : SV

(8 SH B HUARBHE) -.i : 1 Voke

9 DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS 9 EEME
Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section 383(1) of the RIBEEB A 7 EF 5 383(1) 1§ & A &7 (3
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies BREENRHER)RAE-_HBEsES
(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation BT :

are as follows:

2015
2015
Salaries,
allowances Retirement Share-
Directors’ and benefits Discretionary scheme based
fee in kind bonuses contribution  Sub-total  payments

-3 K UL GE:)
Ezhe REUAE WERAL  HERR Mt BROAR
(f) (4] ® (note 32)
(HzE32)
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTT AR%®Tn AR%Trn AR¥TR AR®Tn AR%®Tn AR%Txn

Executive directors YTESE

Mr. Yu Jiangiu aENTE - 2,553 - 14 2,567 - 2,567
Mr. Kwong Wai Sun Wilson BB {44 = 1,435 = 14 1,449 1,129 2,578
Mr. Liu Hanjiu EREE c 146 131 = 11 288 700 988
Mr. Huang Weiping HEERE 160 175 1,520 - 1,855 311 2,166
Ms. Zhu Yufen KERLL 160 121 1,280 - 1,561 1,553 3,114

466 4,415 2,800 39 7,720 3,693 11,413
Independent non-

executive directors BIFHTEE

Mr.Lee TingBunDenny  ZEit 4 160 - - - 160 226 386
Ms. Liu Rong P o d 146 = = = 146 - 146
Ms. Ren Ruxian Bzt b 14 - - - 14 - 14
Mr. Pan Liansheng EEBTE 160 - - - 160 226 386
7777777777777777777777777777777777777777 430 - - - 480 452 932
946 4,415 2,800 39 8,200 4,145 12,345
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TS

"'\‘\ -; (Express\ed/ Renm/ab/ 35 ( et
et E B \k 1| Wager Y iy
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued) 9 EEME

2014
20145
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors’  and benefits  Discretionary scheme Share-hased
inkind bonuses  contribution Sub-total payments
RIK 7
BiBiea BES et
®

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARBTT ARETR ARETT ARETT ARETR ARET:

Executive directors HiTE=S

Mr. Yu Jiangiu aERTE = 2,361 825 13 3,199 = 3,199
Mr. Kwong Wai Sun Wilson  BB& {554 - 1,421 - 13 1,434 - 1,434
Mr. Liu Hanjiu AEREAE 136 94 2,892 4 3126 1,264 4,390
Mr. Huang Weiping {37 136 141 2892 - 3169 211 3380
Ms. Zhu Yufen REHTL 136 83 150 = 369 1,053 1422

408 4,100 6,759 30 11,297 2,528 13,825
Independent non-

executive directors  BYFHTES

Mr.LeeTingBunDenny  FEIREA 136 - - - 136 - 136
Ms. Li Rong AExt 136 - - - 136 - 136
Mr. Pan Liansheng BEBLE 136 - - - 136 - 136
408 - - - 408 - 408
816 4,100 6,759 30 11,705 2,528 14,233
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RA 35 80 3R P oF

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(b= BT HES)

UABRKES|E)

9 DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (continued)

@)

These represent the estimated value of share options
granted to the directors under the Company'’s share option
scheme. The value of these share options is measured
according to the Group’s accounting policies for share-
based payment transactions as set out in note 2(t)(ii). The
details of these benefits in kind, including the principal
terms and number of options granted, are disclosed in note
32.

Ms. Ren Ruxian has been appointed as the Company’s
independent non-executive director effective from 30
November 2015.

Mr. Liu Hanjiu has resigned as an executive director
effective from 30 November 2015.

Mr. Liu Rong has resigned as an independent non-executive
director of the Company from 30 November 2015.

No emoluments were paid by the Group to the directors as
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office for the current or prior
years. No director has waived or agreed to waive any
emoluments for the current or prior years.

The amount represents the emoluments paid in respect of
service from the directors.

The amount represents the emoluments/retirement benefits
paid in respect of the services in connection with the
management of the affairs of the Company or its subsidiary
undertaking.
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( NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL ST,ATEJVIE'

Q?i 1\'&

10 INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, One (2014:
four) is director whose emoluments are disclosed in note 9. The
aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the other four (2014:
one) individuals are as follows:

11

Ty

‘\\___;‘

s

- HBES

(Express‘ed m Renmmb/  unless

S

10 RSHHMAL

hEESFMALTEREF 1R (20144F : 4

FER EHMRMEORE - K845

(20145 : 1) AR EFBNRZEINT ¢

2015 2014
2015 F 2014 5
RMB'000 RMB’'000
ARBT T ARETT
Salaries and other emoluments Fr e S E b R EA 514 101
Discretionary bonuses BB TEAL 4,879 220
Share-based payments LARS {7 23 EEREH A 5k 7,273 1,598
Retirement scheme contributions RIRGET B TR 36 32
12,702 1,951
The above individuals® emoluments are within the following A F AT AT &EE
bands:
2015 2014
2015F 2014 5
HK$2,000,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,000,001 % 7T = 3,000,000 4 7T = 1
HK$3,000,001 to HK$4,000,000 3,000,001 % 7T & 4,000,000 % 7T 2 -
HK$4,000,001 to HK$5,000,000 4,000,001 % 7T = 5,000,000 4 7T 2 =
LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY 11 AAEERRRELEHE
SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY _
The consolidated loss attributable to the equity shareholders of ARFIESRREEFEEEREER

the Company includes a loss of RMB177,086,000 (2014: loss of
RMB44,608,000) which has been dealt with in the financial
statements of the Company.

A R #177,086,0007T (20145 = BHE A
R#44,6080007T) © Bt AKRR A
]K o
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RA 5 3R R B 5

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(5 ZH BRI  HARRFE) \ i
12 (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE 12 B8R (ER)BF
(a) Basic (Loss)/earnings per share (@) ERER(EE) BF

The calculation of basic (loss)/earnings per share is based
on the (loss)/profit attributable to ordinary shareholders of
the Company of RMB499,045,000 (2014: profit of
RMB248,513,000) and the weighted average number of
ordinary shares in issue during the year.

BREXR(ER) BRI TBREARA
A AR AR SR A (B 1R) TR FIA
R # 499,045,000 7T (2014 4F © 34 7
AR #248513,0007T) R ERA D %
TEBRMINETIHE M E -

2015 2014
20154 20144
(Loss)/profit attributable to equity AR el RN
shareholders of the Company (B#8),/&mH
(RMB'000) (AREFTT) (499,045) 248,513
Issued ordinary shares at 1 January R1A1 BB ETEER 2,105,145,600 11,238,000
Effect of issue of new shares under REEAARAEEETH
the IPO (note 31(c)(ii) RR 17 B9 5228 (B RE 31(C) i) - 451,645,212
Effect of exercise of the over- RSB RENT 2
allotment option (note 31(c)(ii) (Bt £ 31()(i)) - 5,477,896
Effect of capitalisation issue BERNMEBITHZE = 1,562,082,000

Weighted average number of ordinary BERTE AR NETHEE
shares in issue

2,105,145,600 2,030,443,108

Basic (loss)/earnings per share (RMB) FREAR(ER),/ BR(ARET)

(0.24) 0.12

(b) Diluted (loss)/earnings per share

Diluted (loss)/earnings per share is calculated by adjusting
the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding to assume conversion of all dilutive potential
ordinary shares. Diluted (loss)/earnings per share is the
same as basic (loss)/earnings per share for both years as all
potentially dilutive potential ordinary shares were anti-
dilutive.
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\ \.\

)
gy
v

L
.‘ﬂ

13 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13 ¥ BERRE

Furniture,
Plantand fittings and Motor Construction
Buildings  machinery  equipment vehicles in progress

HH - KB
BEY RERME K&t "E  HEIR st
RVMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTR ARWTRE AR®TR ARETR AR%TR ARETR

Cost: A :

At 1 January 2015 R2015F 1518 284,301 219,527 4,989 5,309 101,753 615,879

Additions NE

— through business combinations — BB EA G - - 35 416 - 451

— others — i 906 3,123 303 46 112,125 116,503

Transfers 2% 2,714 7,695 - - (10,409) -
Reclassification gy (1,500) 1,408 (6) 98 - -
Disposals RE - (70) (69) (58) = (197)
At 31 December 2015 ®2015F12A318 286,421 231,683 5,252 5,811 203,469 732,636

Accumulated depreciation and R HERFERE :
impairment losses:

At 1 January 2015 R2015F 1818 20,911 30,966 1,560 3,134 = 56,571

Charge for the year FAME 14,100 21,580 973 687 - 37,340

Additions through business

combinations BREKEHFE - - 4 59 - 63

Impairment loss REERE 23,993 29,336 146 215 623 54,313

Written back on disposals REREE = (11) (43) (26) = (80)
i At31December201 5 77777777777 E@ 2015 %71727)? 31 EI 777777 59,004 81,871 2,640 4,069 623 148,207

Net book value: BRERE :

At 31 December 2015 201512 A318 227,417 149,812 2,612 1,742 202,846 584,429
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MBEEME /

(Expressed in Renm/nQ/ unl@s,s oth n/\//se/nd/cated\

(b= B HES

13 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continved) 13 Y% BER®RE &)

Furniture,
Plantand fittingsand Motor  Construction
Buildings machinery equipment vehicles in progress
e KB
BEY  HEREE &L AE rEIR :
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARBFr ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR
Cost: A :
At 1 January 2014 R2014F 1518 174,752 135,736 4,324 4,845 115,369 435,026
Additions NE
— through business combinations — BBMEA G - - - - 79 79
— others —Hfth 21,222 31,942 670 1,012 127,590 182,436
Transfers B 88,327 52,958 - - (141,285)
Disposals RE = (1,109) () (548) = (1,662)
At 31 December 2014 201412 A318 284,301 219,527 4,989 5,309 101,753 615,879
Accumulated depreciation: REE
At 1 January 2014 R20145E 1718 11,553 15,441 763 2,563 - 30,320
Charge for the year FRME 9,358 15,898 798 1,022 = 27,076
Written back on disposals REREE = (373) (1) (451) - (825)
At 31 December 2014 R2014€12 318 20911 30966 1,560 3,134 - 56,571
Net book value: BREFE
At 31 December 2014 R2014F12A318 263,390 188,561 3,429 2,175 101,753 559,308
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

13 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

@)

All of the Group’s property, plant and equipment are located
in the PRC. At 31 December 2015, property, plant and
equipment with net book value of RMB214,270,000 (2014
RMB176,328,000) were pledged for certain banking facilities
granted to the Group (see note 28(b)).

At 31 December 2015, the Group has yet to obtain property
ownership certificates for certain Xiangbei's buildings with
an aggregate net book value of RMB2,605,000 (2014:
RMB134,406,000). The directors of the Company are of the
opinion that the Group owned the beneficial title to these
buildings as at 31 December 2015 and 2014.

During 2015, due to operating loss in the Group’s business,
the Group tested related cash generating units (“CGUs") for
impairment. An impairment loss of RMB54,313,000 was
recognised in “other net loss” for property, plant and
equipment in CGU Jinxin. Considering Jinxin has suspended
its production activities since September 2015, and there is
no market price of similar assets, its value-in-use and the
fair value less cost of disposal is nil. Thus, the carrying
amount of Jinxin’s property, plant and equipment was
written down to its recoverable amount of nil. Except for
Jinxin, no impairment loss on any other CGUs has been
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or l0ss.

A 355 80 RO GE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B BEat HEY AN RESIE)

13 M%¥ - BERRE®

@)

REEWFREMSE - BE &EES
LB e B2015F12H31H
R OFE A A R % 214,270,000 7T
(20145 : AR 176,328,000 7T ) EY
Y- BERZEE TER  EA
REEERE TRITHEMNERE
Fi3E 28(D)) o

201512 A318 ° A& B & K5t
AR FE AR5 A R 2,605,000
(20145 : AR 134,406,000 7T ) EY
ATHILEEYRSEER - A2
RAIEERAEAEER 2015F % 2014
F12A31 AHRBZEEERYNER
o

R 20154F * AR ANEBEBEFL
EEE AEBASEERSELS
BU(REEELEEN)RETAER
BE-RBECELABNSEZYE
B KRR AR [HEEFE ] R
RUE B 18 A R #54,313,0007F £
REBEH05F)ALBEEEL
EEE - MBS AEEELEEN
mE EFAEERAFERLE
RABE - Al - @B 2ZWE - K
BREZEZEEEDHREH I
Cl&zE BT -kedi MET
MEMRSEELBMN ZBEFEBE
PEREBRRER -
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R H5 4R R B &E ~ NS AN A e
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated, LN 3 o' H’it‘ o rie/,
(RS Hit8E ) 'LXAE'%?E{ ; \i 3 I‘j 5 ﬁ: o g,

14 LEASE PREPAYMENTS

14 HEFENSR

2015 2014
2015 £ 2014
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR® T ARETTT
Cost: R :
At 1 January ®1A18 88,631 88,631
Additions NE 16,256 -
_At31December ~  RRA:ABE B 88631
Accumulated amortisation: SrHEey
At 1 January KR1A18 3,013 1,260
Charge for the year F AR 1,958 1,753
_At31Decemper ~ RWRANA 41 3013
Net book value: BRIEEE
At 31 December R12A31H 99,916 85,618

The lease prepayments represent costs of the land use rights in
respect of land located in the PRC, on which the Group built its
production premises and buildings. The land use rights expire in

2056 t0 2085.

At 31 December 2015, land use rights with an aggregate carrying
amount of RMB53,390,000 (2014: RMB38,269,000) were pledged
for certain banking facilities granted to the Group (see note 28(b)).

15 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

Unlisted shares, at cost

FEEMRAD - AR

HEFRNRIEA BN E L (RE
B AR E A A M EREEY))
B b {50 PR RE R 7K o 1 3 {5 P 170 2056
FE2085FEENH -

R2015F 12 A318 © REEAHLXAAR
#53,390,0007C (20145« A R ¥
38,269,0007T) Ky L 1o FAME D IR T A
SEME THRTEEFLER(RHE
28(b)) °

15 RMBARNKRE

The Company
PIN/N|
2015 2014
2014 4
RMB'000

AREFTT

2015 &
RMB'000

ARETT

298,322 298,322
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15 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
At 31 December 2015, the Company had direct or indirect

Expres%ed ’f Ren;

=1/

ﬂa‘ﬁﬁ'

m/nb/ Wess
Wi

15 RBARMNKRE @)

R20155 12 A31 8 » AR BRI B

interests in the following subsidiaries, all of which are private NEIEE EE S EERER  ZENEB AT
companies: Sl =Y N NN
Place of
incorporation/ Particulars of
and business and issued and Attributable equity interest Principal
Name of company kind of legal entity paid-up capital  held by the Company activities
HMERYL,/ k&% BRTRER
ARER WEN R EEER B EEANRFGRE TEXH
Direct Indirect
B &
Engen Investments Limited The British Virgin United States dollars 100% - Investment holding
("Engen’) ISlands ("BVI"), ("USD") 10,225
limited liability
company
BEREERAR(RE)) RERNES 10225% 7 ([%72)) REER
(ZERREE] -
ARAR)
True Excel Holdings Limited Hong Kong, limited 1 ordinary share - 100%  Investment holding
("True Excel") liability company
REERER AR ([RE]) i BRAA 1REBR REER
Alpha Legend Holdings Limited ("Alpha Legend")  Hong Kong, limited 1 ordinary share = 100%  Investment holding
liability company
ERERERAR ((ER]) &% BRAA TRERR REER
Alpha Business Investments Limited Hong Kong, limited 1 ordinary share - 100%  Investment holding
("Alpha Business") liability company
BHEREBRAR(ES]) &8 BRAA 1RERR REER
Alpha Universe Group Limited("Alpha Universe”) - Hong Kong, limited 1 ordinary share = 100%  Investment holding
liability company
BasEERAR (HR)) 8 BRAA 1REBR RERR
Fanmay Limited (‘Fanmay”) BVI, limited liability HKS1 100% - Investment holding
company
ZEERAA EERNES (i REER
BRAR
China Recycling Aluminium Limited Hong Kong, limited HK$1 - 100%  Investment holding
("Recycling Aluminium’”) liability company
PEERBEERAR([EREE)) &8 BRAA 18T REER
Mianyang Jinxin Copper Co., Ltd. (“Jinxin")* The PRC, limited Renminbi ("RMB") - 100%  Recycling of scrap copper

liability company 100,000,000 for the manufacturing of
recycled copper products
BEERHEXARAR(28)) mE - BRAA ARE(ARE]) EEERERER
100,000,000 7T PR
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Rt 35 3R | P o

" (Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

W \»\

N,
o
S,

(BEEEBE) BARERE.

15 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Name of company

ALk

Place of
incorporation/
and business and
kind of legal entity

AR BRI

Particulars of
issued and
paid-up capital
BERIREN
EAFE

\ H'i' N
8L ' }\.‘/
=) K7
:\ J / :’\i‘/ ‘\_u{'/
s | =¥

15 RBARMNKRE @)

Attributable equity interest Principal

held by the Company

3N e
Direct Indirect
B# B

activities

IERH

Hunan Yinlian Xiangbei Copper Co., Ltd. The PRC, limited RMB80,000,000 - 100%  Processing of scrap copper
("Xiangbei")* liability company and electrolytic copper
for the manufacturing of
copper related products
W RBRIRE AR AR (D)) WE - BRAA AR 80,000,000 T A EHERER AR
FESH R E
Mianyang Tongxin Copper Co., Ltd. The PRC, limited RMB50,000,000 - 100%  Recycling of scrap copper
("Tongxin")* liability company for the manufacturing of
recycled copper products
GERREXARAR(RE]) hE - ARAR AR 50,000,000 [0 A 2 P A S o T PR RS
Sichuan Baohe Xinshiji Cable Co., Ltd. The PRC, limited RMB150,000,000 = 100%  Manufacturing and sale of
("Baohe Xinshiji*)* liability company power transmission and
distribution cables
mIRME LEEER AR ((RAMHE]) B ERAF AR 150,000,000 FEREERRES
Mianyang Baohe Taiyue Communications The PRC, limited RMBB0,000,000 = 100%  Manufacturing and sale of
Cable Co., Ltd. ("Baohe Taiyue")* liability company communication cables
BERNREBEREFRAA(RNRE]) B ARAA AR 80,000,000 EERHEREEE
Mianyang Jin Xunhuan Metal Materials The PRC, limited RMB30,000,000 - 65%  Manufacturing and sale
Co., Ltd. (")in Xunhuan") * liability company of anodic copper and
trading of electrolytic
copper
GLeFREEMHARAR(2BR)) mE - BRAR AR 30,000,000 7T EENHERRANEEERH
Shanghai Epoch Keen Metal Trading The PRC, limited HK$60,000,000 - 100%  Trading of copper related
Limited (“Shijian")* liability company products
LEREEBRERRAR (HE]) e BRAR 60,000,000/ BEMABER
Mianyang Xinhuan Aluminium Company The PRC, limited RMB5,000,000 = 30%  Trading of aluminium
Limited ("Xinhuan Aluminium’)* liability company related products
BHERRFERAA((BRRE]) e - BRAF AR 5,000,007 EERAEER
Shanghai Bujiang Metal Material The PRC, limited = = 30%  Inactive*
Limited (“Bujiang")* liability company
TS IEBHBERARI(HIL)) e ARAA TEEH
* The English translation of the name is for reference only. The official names "

Il

RXAMEELRRERSE - ZERFNE

of these companies are in Chinese. 77 BB A R %E -
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(Express\ed m Renm/nb/ ess cateq
55 = 8 \k | Boganah B
16 INTANGIBLE ASSETS 16 EBFEE

2015 2014
2015 % 20144

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARET T

Cost: RN :

At 1 January and 31 December 2015 7 2015%F1 A 1H %12 A31H 10,968 10,968
Accumulated amortisation: R

At 1 January 2015 ®2015%F 1818 7,312 3,656
Charge for the year F AR 3,656 3,656

_At31December2015  W2015%12ANH 10568 7,312

Net book value: BREDEE ¢

At 31 December 2015 2015612 4318 - 3,656

Intangible assets represent customer relationships acquired by & & EIE AN & B BLUEE R TN 37 42 AR ZR
the Group in connection with the acquisitions of Baohe Xinshiji  #(PA20124 12 A31 BB ) FIESHEF
and Baohe Taiyue completed on 31 December 2012. The R FRMEBEI LT AGEBERAMN (1T
amortisation charge for the year is included in “administrative ~ ExFIZ ] °

expenses” in the consolidated statement of profit or 0ss.

17 INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES 17 BERQTER

2015 2014
2015 F 2014 5

RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARET T

Interest in associates BN T ER
Share of net assets B FEE 35,642 =
Goodwill EES 100,315 =

135,957 S
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RA 5 3R R B 5

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated,
(B 5 B it &S 'LXAE'%’?E{ ; \3‘

17

INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

(a)

Particulars of the associates are as follows:

Particulars of
registered
share capital/
issued and
paid in capital

Place of
incorporation
and business
FEMREL
T

Name of associate

EMERERITR
MRERHE

RenmeR

Deda Holdings Limited Issued and paid in capital BVI
of USD1,000
EEERERRA BETRERERM0ET RBRAHS
Hong Kong Fuijian Issued and paid in capital Hong Kong
Investments Limited of HK$1.0
BEREREERAT BETRERERNOET &
Sichuan Baohe Fushan Registered capital of The PRC
Resources Recycling RMB100 million
Development Co., Ltd.
mIERAZILEE &R hE
ERAZEBRAA AR 100,000,0007C

On 22 April 2015, the Group entered into an agreement,
pursuant to which the vendors of Baohe Fushan agreed to
transfer 100% equity interest in Baohe Fushan to Hong Kong
Fujian Investments Limited (“Fujian”), a company wholly-
owned by Deda Holdings Limited (“Deda”) which, in turn,

was then a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.

Upon the above equity transfer taking effect, Deda issued to
the vendors 700 new ordinary shares at a nominal value of
USD1.0 per share, representing 70% of Deda’s issued share
capital after the issue of the new ordinary shares.

Upon completion on 27 May 2015, Deda ceased to be a
subsidiary of the Company. Since then, the Company holds
30% of the entire issued shares of Deda, which in turn
indirectly holds 100% equity interest in Baohe Fushan.

The reduction of the Company'’s shareholding in Deda from
100% to 30% has been accounted for as a deemed disposal
of the Group’s equity interest in Deda and a gain of
RMB6,000 was recognised as a result of the net liability
position of Deda immediately before the completion of the
transaction.
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17 BEATERE)

(@) HEQTRMFBWOT :
Proportion of
ownership interest
attributable Principal
to the Group activities
TEBEEE
Fris L6l TEEH
Direct Indirect
=8 EF:3
30% - Investment holding
30% - REZR
= 30%  Investment holding
- 0% REEKR
= 30%  Industrial park
operation and
development
- 0% BERBRIXE

R20155F4 A22 8 » RRARFIL— D @ &
it RAMEILE T R B EE KM E LA 100%
RaETEEEEREARARA(EE]  BE
EREZERARAR(REDNZENBER
Al MEEEEREARAN2EMNBAR -

R BB R A R - BERE T #1T700
BEESKI0RTNHEERND HERELE
BITRIEN L BB EITRAT0%)

20155 A27 B - ETHAARRT
BB AR - (LERE  ARFARFAEESS
BETRMNA30%  MEEREZEFERMNELL
79 100% #E =5 ©

AKX AP 2 9 B FR 100% B £ 30% E A SR
SREHEAKERRENRE  YRBEER
BER 5 ERATHFE A EN R M ERK S AR
6,0007T °



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEME ITS
(Expreéqed /P Renmgﬁsﬁ eindicﬁ;%go/ '

2 C 88 | S Y e
17 INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 17 BENRRER W)
(@) Particulars of the associates are as follows: (@) BHEATMFEBLOT : (&)

(Continued)
The consideration paid by the Group to the vendors for the AREBE A L IREEIBEE S TH B
above transactions was RMB134,929,000, which was KREAEARM134,929,0007T * k5
determined with reference to the valuation of Baohe Fushan K2 ZEINRGERERMNE LR
as at 30 September 2014 performed by an external valuer. 2014@9 A30BMEEMERE °
summarised financial information of Baohe Fushan, HUNERENATEARR @ BE
adjusted for fair value adjustments at acquisition and ZEMAREESSMEREANN
differences in accounting policies and reconciled to the AR EE YRR L B 7 & B
carrying amounts in the consolidated financial statements, EREMNOT

are disclosed below:

Baohe Fushan

RFME L

2015

2015 F

RMB’'000

ARET R

Non-current assets EMENE E 192,529
Current assets mENEE 81,217
Non-current liabilities EMEBBEE (120,680)
Current liabilities EAE (34,242)
Net assets (100%) A E (100%) 118,824
Group’s share of net assets (30%) &R [ (G F & E (30%) 35,647
Goodwill (&S 100,315
Carrying amount of interest in associate B¢ A SR IREE 135,962
Revenue* (100%) &SRR * (100%) 1,980
Profit * (100%) Y A1 * (100%) 3,442
Other comprehensive income * (100%) HAth 2 EHES * (100%) -
Total comprehensive income * (100%) 2 HEUELEEE * (100%) 3,442
Total comprehensive income* (30%) ZHE W ABEE * (30%) 1,033

Elimination of unrealised profit HETHHENRER T

on downstream sales -

Group's share of total comprehensive
income AEBEGCEERSATE 1,033

L For the period from 23 April 2015 to 31 December 2015 g M2015F4 A238 ZE2015F 12831
H
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MR SRR PN
~ (Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) s N { RS
(EBEAEN SAREIES L 8 S Y )
17 INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 17 BEARER @)
(a) Particulars of the associates are as follows: (@) HEQATMFBWOT @ (&)
(Continued)
Aggregate information of associates that are not individually WIEFERIBEANEES AT ERE
material: e
2015
2015 &
RMB’000
AR TR
Carrying amount of interest in associates B A REmrREE (5)
Share of: FEfh -
— Loss — BE (5)
— Other comprehensive income — Hth2mEEs =
(5)
18 GOODWILL 18 &
RMB'000
ARET T
Cost: B
At 1 January 2014, 31 December 2014, R2014F1H18 ~ 20145
1 January 2015 and 31 December 2015 128318 - 2015F 1A 1H
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, ROWFQ2ANA 3930
Accumulated impairment losses: REtHESE

At 1 January 2014, 31 December 2014 and 1 January 2015 R2014F1A18 20145
12A318BK2015F1H18 -

Impairment loss AEEE 16,081
_At31December200s ROWERANA 16081

Carrying amount: BREME :

At 31 December 2015 R20156 12 A318 23,227

At 31 December 2014 R2014% 12 A31H 39,308
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18 GOODWILL (continued)

Impairment tests for CGUs containing goodwill
Goodwill is allocated to the CGUs identified according to country
of operation and operating segment as follows:

TS

HisERmE
(Expreéqed in Renminbi unless indicated
KX -{ & Spar 120 AR

18 BE®)

BERENREELENVRENR
BEDIETREKEMERRLESE
PRI RIR & B A B AL

2015 2014

2015 & 2014 £

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARET T ARBTT

Jinxin &5 - 16,081
Xiangbeli Yiibie 22,766 22,766
Baohe Xinshiji RANFLAS 213 213
Baohe Taiyue RANZEH 248 248
23,227 39,308

The recoverable amount of the CGUSs is determined based on
value in use calculations. These calculations use cash flow
projections based on financial budgets approved by management
covering a five-year period. Cash flows beyond the five-year
period are extrapolated using a zero growth rate. The growth rate
used do not exceed the long-term average growth rates for the
business in which the CGU operates. The cash flows are
discounted using pre-tax discount rates of 14% (2014: 15%) at 31
December 2015. Key assumptions used for the value in use
calculations are the gross margins, growth rates and the
availability of VAT refunds. Management determined the budgeted
gross margins and growth rates based on past performance and
its expectation for market development. When preparing the
financial budgets, management assumed that there would be no
changes to the existing government policies in respect of the VAT
refunds in connection with the employment of disabled staff and
under the Policies for Products Generated from Comprehensive
Utilisation of Resources (see note 6(a)). No other government
grants are assumed to be received in the value in use
calculations.

ReEEBMMAIRELE S ESENEH
BETEENET - ZSEENFEAD
%&%I@%)&E’aﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ”qﬂ opit)
AT REHEE - FﬁﬁHiETTtﬂiﬁi
EXBENKEMTEBNRBEHER
Ko PA2015F12A31H » REn=E HE
A 14% (20144 : 15%) B R AT B IR R B
] FREBEEFEREANEIZERRAET
KRR REURIEETRBOAITIE - B
BERRBTRRARAHMSERNTE
HETHEEMNERTEREK - EREYH
TEER  ERERKEEAREETIRY
E@u&éfﬁ%m:. FIFRESERBE (R

(@) THYIBER R AR A BT BUR
Wﬁ“@; o RETGLAFABEFERRN
B (] EL AL BRAT 48 B o
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RA 5 3R R B 5

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(8 S HBES)  UARBHE). ’ \ X

18 GOODWILL (continued)
Impairment tests for CGUs containing goodwill
(Continued)
Based on the results of the valuation, the recoverable amount of
Jinxin has been assessed as being lower than the carrying
amount. Accordingly, an impairment loss of RMB16,081,000 (2014:
nil) has been recognised in “other net loss”. Except for Jinxin, the
recoverable amount of other CGUs based on the value in use
calculations is higher than its carrying amount as at 31 December
2015 and 2014. Accordingly, no impairment loss on goodwill
regarding those CGUs has been recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

After the impairment loss recognised for the year, the
management believes that any reasonably possible change in the
key assumptions on which the recoverable amount is based
would not cause the revised carrying amount to exceed its
recoverable amount.

19 PLEDGED DEPOSITS

18 BE®)

BEHENESELEENNRERR
(#)
BREGEER  ¢BNTKESETAR
FABRTEME - B B A H A BB e
B8 AR 16,081,000 7T (2014 4F : £#) o
eI » R20154F K 2014128318 -
RRERAEESEREASENEMES
BB AIKE S EE N R -
b SRS ABRENR RS ROES
B R B MRS 18 -

REANBRBEEBERE  BEERR A
WESEARBENEZRRVEENE
BEE BT EEREFREEBHER
WE S5 -

19 BEBER

2015 2014
2015 F 2014 4
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARE T ARETTT
Deposits with guarantee companies  PAER A R TFERK 8,000 7,500
Deposits with banks RERTTHITF 5K 22,982 13,022
Deposits with lessors of finance leases R EL&HE A RIHTFR 5,320 5,320
Deposits with securities broker REBHL LT 4 10,663
Deposit with other company REM A RHTF R 22,900 19,600
59,206 56,105

Represented by: B
Current BNEA 53,886 43,285
Non-current JEBNER 5,320 12,820
59,206 56,105
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19 PLEDGED DEPOSITS (continued)

Pledged deposits were placed with guarantee companies for the
purpose of obtaining bank loans of RMB53,800,000 (2014
RMB40,000,000), which were guaranteed by the guarantee
companies (see note 28(b)).

Pledged deposits with banks were mainly placed as security for
bills payable of the Group (see note 26(a)).

Pledged deposits of RMB 5,320,000 (2014: RMB5,320,000) were
placed as security for the obligations under finance leases as at
31 December 2015.

Pledged deposits with securities broker were pledged as deposits
for outstanding copper futures contracts as at 31 December 2015.

Pledged deposit of RMB22,900,000 (2014: RMB19,600,000) was
paid to a third party for the purpose of obtaining bank loans of
RMB70,000,000 (2014: RMB70,000,000), which were secured by
the property, plant and equipment of that third party (see note
23(b)).

A 355 80 RO GE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(B Saat HEI LN EHESIE)

19 BEFERE)

FLESIRITE R A R#53,800,0007T(2014
& : AEK%40,000,0007T) il i FE R A A
FREERER  ARRTERBERRD
AE R (RHEE28(D) °

RIBTHEEREFREIERAAKEN
e R (R PRE26() -

MR2015F 12 A31H - A E # 5,320,000
7T (20144 : AR #5,320,0007T ) &) 2 &K
HERCRMERE T EEFERER
R o

R2015F 12 A31H @ REHELLNE R
HEREMARZ MR ES LEPE
IREES ©

A R #22900,0007T (20144 : A R #&
19,600,0007C) EEBEREZN T 5
=7 - UEUBERTTE 3 A R 70,000,000
7L (20144 : AR¥70,000,0007T) © E
ZBB=ZFHWE  BE & FE R
(RHF5E28(0)) °
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MEBBRMEE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated, 8

(BEELBES HARKERE.

w,

20 OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS

HtERBEE

2015
20154

2014
20144
RMB'000
ARET T

RMB'000
ARBTR

Prepayments for property, plant and ME - BB KRR EN L
equipment and land use rights EERENTRAZR 24,512 31,178
Deferred differences arising from a sales ERAORTFEENEEZER (i)
and leaseback transaction (Note) 1,912 2,956
26,424 34,134

Note: Deferred differences arising from a sales and leaseback transaction represent
the deficit of sale proceeds over the net book value of the assets disposed of
under the sales and leaseback transaction which resulted in a finance lease.
The differences are deferred and amortised as adjustments to the
depreciation of the assets over their estimated useful lives.

21 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 21
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(@) Current taxation in the consolidated statement
of financial position represents:

@)

P EREERZEENECEZESENEBRENR

ENERAOXZEHHE L EEENMEK
RERNERmFEMELNER - LAER
ERBEENENABEREENATAER
FHRT LRI R # 8

BRBRRRABNAER

RE RO R A B B S B R
=

2015 2014

2015 F 2014 F

RMB'000 RMB'000

ARET R ARETTT

At 1 January ®1A18 19,988 28,317
Provision for PRC corporate income

tax for the year FRFEPERETEE 218 60,660

Adjustment for prior year BEFERAE 945 -

Reduction in tax rate for prior year — BAEERIHE TH - (10,344)

PRC Corporate Income Tax paid BERFPREMPEMEN (11,489) (58,645)

At 31 December m12A31H 9,662 19,988
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( NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL ST,ATEJVIE'
- MBHE

Q?i '11\'&

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(Continued)
(b) Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) recognised

(i) Movement of each component of deferred tax

Ty

‘\\___;‘

(Express‘ed m Renmmb/  unless

e

s

21 GKEMBRARANFAER &)

(b) ERAELEHELE (BF)
() EEHREEEREBEEBIZ

assets and liabilities ﬁ@j
The components of deferred tax assets/(liabilities) JAY Ny by A Y= a7 L
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial Lmﬁg?/(g\@) Y48 Ak 26
position and the movements during the year are as SERNERNBNEIHOT
follows:
Depreciation/
amortisation
allowances in
excess of the
related
Deferred tax depreciation/ Provisions Deductible
arising from: amortisation  and accruals losses
BHEETE
5/ BHEN BER
EEBERR e/ BHRE ErER ANHER @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTL ARBFL ARBTIL ARBTTL
R2014E1 818
At 1 January 2014 (2,396) 812 - (1,584)
(Charged)/credited to profitorloss (1) /3t AB2H (512) 1,397 - 885
At 31 December 2014 2014F12A318 (2,908) 2,209 = (699)
At 1 January 2015 201551818 (2,908) 2,209 - (699)
Credited to profit or loss FTABHE 679 21,108 16,661 38,448
At 31 December 2015 R2015F12 318 (2,229) 23,317 16,661 37,749
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21 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(Continued)
(b) Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) recognised
(Continued)
(ii) Reconciliation to the consolidated statement of
financial position:

21

(b)

Net deferred tax assets recognised
in the consolidated statement JrA

R e ISR R
of financial position TR

—
= , } l\ //'." ,] |
W\ = J -,4 S .,a - -
£ \‘ ';;:N w\i;/ 74
\ i 4 -
o Y 77 Sy

REMBRNRANFER @

CRIAEEHREE (&E)

(%)

(i) BRFEMBMRRKYEIER :

2015
2015 &

2014
20144
RMB’000
AREFIT

RMB'000
ARETT

REFELEHIBEE 37,749 774
Net deferred tax liabilities recognised
in the consolidated statement iR G AR R
of financial position REFRELERIEAE = (1,473)
37,749 (699)
(c) Unrecognised deferred tax assets (c) RERELEHEBEE

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of
the following items, because it is not probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which the Group can
use the benefits therefrom.

Deductible temporary differences

HMARATIER BRELEHRIEE
E - ERTKAIEEE R K ERB G
IMA KBRS EEHEESZF

N2

E_o

2015
2015 &

2014
20144
RMB’000
AREFIT

RMB'000
ARBTT

(will never expire) AR By = B8 RN E R 73,404 =
Tax losses (will expire in year 2020) FRIEEE (3R 2020 F fgm) 27,076 -
100,480 -
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21 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 21 FREMBMRRRANABH @)
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(Continued)
(d) Deferred tax liabilities not recognised (d) REZHWELHEEE
At 31 December 2015, temporary differences relating to the R2015F 12 A31H » BEAEEH
undistributed profits of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries B B A F 89K 5 Be s A1 B B A9
amounted to RMB374,875,000 (2014: RMB688,008,000). No FR B = %5 A A K #374,875,000 7T
deferred tax liabilities in respect of these undistributed (20145 : AR 688,008,0007T) °
profits have been recognised as the Company controls the BERE 25 R P Bl A R IR R
dividend policy of these subsidiaries and it has been HEE  REZEARRQ ARG ZEMH
determined that it is probable that these profits will not be BARMBREBR MEARRQRE
distributed in the foreseeable future. EREZZRAMBAE TS ERTE
BERRAI ©
22 INVENTORIES 22 78
(@) Inventories in the consolidated statement of (@) HMEMBMRRARANEERSE

financial position comprise:

2015 2014
2015 F 2014 5

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T ARETT

Raw materials R 40,742 239,450
Work in progress TER S 14,798 32,146
Finished goods BURY dh 71,314 75,292
Goods in transit Bz &M 122,148 114,811
249,002 461,699
At 31 December 2015, inventories of RMB53,063,000 (2014: MR2015F 128310 BE AR
RMB57,011,000) were pledged for banking facilities granted 53,063,0007C (20144 : A R ¥
to the Group (see note 28(b)). 57,011,0007T) WFEE THER - /£
RAEEERRITHENER (W
FE28(h)) °
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22 INVENTORIES (continued)
(b) The analysis of the amount of inventories
recognised as an expense and included in the
profit or loss is as follows:

22 F&#®)

(b) BRBAXIAFABBENETE
EEIFOT

2015 2014

2015 F 2014 £

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARET T ARETT

Carrying amount of inventories sold ~ BE&EFEHREE 1,887,716 3,812,215
Write down of inventories Mo T E 42,465 4,943
1,930,181 3,817,158

23 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

23 B RHEMEWE

2015 2014

2015 F 2014 4

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARET R ARETIT

Trade debtors and bills receivable B SRR R EWEE 565,742 747,122

Less: Allowance for impairment loss & : JBi{E B 18 B 1% (112,830) -

452,912 747,122

Advance payments to suppliers L FE R TUIB 402,531 141,993

Government grants receivable W T 6 B 111,055 108,540
Other deposits, prepayments and

receivables HEmize - B R R EWEIE 66,541 24,174

1,033,039 1,021,829

All of the trade and other receivables are expected to be
recovered or recognised as expense within one year.

(@) At 31 December 2015, government grants receivable of
RMB8,550,000 (2014: RMB35,015,000) was pledged for
certain banking facilities granted to the Group (see note
28(by)).
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23 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued) 23 EZRHEHMERNRIESE)
(b) Trade debtors and bills receivable included (b) ESRIREREREEBIEER
amounts due from related parties as follows: AR A SRIEMT
2015 2014
2015 F 2014 4
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARET T ARETTT
Guangzhou Taiyue Communications — EMHRHBEEEESE AT
Cable Co., Ltd. (“Guangzhou Taiyue”) ([ E/M=Z=#]) 4,730 8,104
Sichuan Xijiulong Investment Co, Ltd.  POJI|EFANERE AR A A
("Xijiulong) * (rEnzED 171 -
4,901 8,104
3 Xijiulong is a company wholly owned by Ms. Yu Yanyan and Ms. Yu * ﬁﬂ%ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁﬁi mEEL TR
Jiajia, daughters and associates of Mr. Yu Jiangiu. BHANDR BERABNELED
ZRRBMEA °
(c) Ageing analysis (c) HRERoHT
As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis of RIFERK - BHEAREREE
trade debtors and bills receivable (which are included in (;Hr)\ 2 5 R E M0 EBGIE) B BRER
trade and other receivables), based on the invoice date and AT (AEZEB B RN REEE
net of allowance for impairment loss, is as follows: BEAEE)WNT
2015 2014
2015 F 2014 &
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®T T AREFIT
Within 30 days 30 KA 64,139 296,703
3110 60 days 31E 60K 4,931 161,238
61 to 180 days 61E 180K 39,752 201,761
Over 180 days HiE 180K 344,090 87,420
452,912 747,122
Trade debtors and bills receivable are normally due within BoERRANRERERBENLER
90 days from the date of billing. Further details on the HRFTORATE - REENEE
Group's credit policy are set out in note 35(a). BUR B3 — S EH B H A MIFE35() o
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23 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)
(d) Impairment loss of trade debtors and bills
receivable
The movement in the allowance for impairment loss during
the year, including both specific and collective loss
components, is as follows:

.
X % { -'ll ’-'/""‘f.)Il \--_/,\
B = \ N
SN B 577 A8
4 X I‘u ‘\\ H H’t‘ “;’ ’,
23 BEFRHEMEBWRIEE)
(d) EFERIREWREBRESE
FARREBEEREEZ S (BEE

R R AREE D) TR

2015 2014

2015 F 2014 4

RMB'000 RMB'000

AR%T ARETT

At 1 January Mm1A18 - _
Impairment loss recognised ERRRAEBE 112,830 -
At 31 December ®12A831H 112,830 =

At 31 December 2015 trade debtors and bills receivable
before allowances for impairment loss with a carrying
amount of RMB91,324,000 were individually determined to
be assessed for impairment. The individually impaired
receivables related to customers that were in financial
difficulties and management assessed that only a portion of
the receivables is expected to be recovered. Consequently,
specific allowances for impairment loss of RMB49,773,000
were recognised.
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23 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued) 23 EFREMEWTIE 2

=3 |

5/? VAN RESIE)

(e) Trade debtors and bills receivable that are not (e) YEMEENESERRERE
impaired b
The ageing analysis of trade debtors and bills receivable that R ERI K ERR B RENE ZER
are neither individually nor collectively considered to be PR EWEBEN R STAT

impaired are as follows:

2015
2015 &

2014
2014 5

RMB'000 RMB’'000
AR®TR AREBTT

Current LB B 208409
Less than 30 days past due BHD R 30K 18,619 220,081
31 to 60 days past due BEA31 E 60K 7,958 91,202
61 to 180 days past due #H61 2 180K 314,439 200,522
Over 180 days past due B HAER R 180 K 60,737 26,838

_Amountspastdue  @MsR LY )

452,912 747,122

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate AR 78 F N R R B ) R ARk TR B T

to customers for whom there was no recent history of W EEREEFNEFER -

default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a B H1E AR E R IR IR R

number of independent customers that have a good track AEERBRIBALENSE TE

record with the Group. Based on past experience, UEFPAR - REBBELR  EE
management believes that no impairment allowance is ERBBARZ T ERIELRER
necessary in respect of these balances as there has not #H AAEEERTELBRERE
been a significant change in credit quality and the balances b - A B & SR DR 3 AT 2 Bl
are still considered fully recoverable. The Group does not @ - REBWERZZHERITH T
hold any collateral over these balances. AR @ o
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24 AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO RELATED PARTIES/
ASSOCIATES
(@) Amounts due from/to related parties/associates
The amounts due from/to related parties/associates are
unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand at 31
December 2015.

(b) Loan from a related party
The loan from a related party is unsecured, at 5% annual
interest rate and repayable within 12 months.

25 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
(@) Cash and cash equivalents comprise:

25

““*—--_.‘__
e ¥ ln‘,/\/.
N = -fq N
(N Y o w“i,./ S
W Vaw 77 Sy

24 Y ENBBS, HELTF

IR

@

(b)

(@)

WP EBE S, B A BFIE
R2015412 318 @ fE U/ FE ff
RAEE S HE A FBAEEA - T
TR RBRERERE -

R E B S W E K
KERB T NERSELR - F5
ER5% AN 12EAREER -

ReRkBAESEEAHE

RERASEERBEE:

2015 2014
2015 F 2014 5

RMB’'000 RMB’000

ARETT ARBETTT

Deposits with banks RERITHITF K 33,000 68,000
Cash at bank and on hand BITERRFERS 49,559 77,765
Cash and cash equivalents in the RE BN TR A K

consolidated statement of RekHEEHEER

financial position 82,559 145,765

At 31 December 2015, cash and cash equivalents of the
Group in the amount of RMB51,130,000 (2014:
RMB127,479,000) are denominated in RMB and are
deposited in banks in the PRC. RMB is not a freely
convertible currency and the remittance of funds out of the
PRC is subject to the relevant rules and regulations of
foreign exchange control promulgated by the PRC
government.
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25 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (continued) 25 BERBRELLEEEE »)
(b) Reconciliation of (loss)/profit before taxation to (b) BiAT(EE) BRELEHRS
cash generated from operations: IH & R ETER ¢
2015 2014
2015 2014 4F
Note RMB'000 RMB'000
BizE ARETR ARET T
(Loss)/profit before taxation BAl (&8),HH (540,421) 297,697
Adjustments for: K\ NIBR A%
Finance costs B FSB AR 7(a) 113,671 57,630
Share-based payment expenses AR AEREANRAE X 7(0) 31,874 10,365
Warrant expense RTEER S 5(@) 12,079 =
Depreciation e 7(c) 37,340 27,076
Deferred expense B 20 1,044 1,044
Amortisation of lease prepayments MAERR A 7(c) 1,958 1,753
Amortisation of intangible assets BT A E R 7(0) 3,656 3,656
Interest income FBHA 6(a) (1,276) (1,150)
Share of profit of associates JE B & N B & A 6(0) (1,028) -
Net loss on sale of property, plant and HEWE BER
equipment REZFER 6(b) 116 690
Foreign exchange loss i 5518 1,492 4,528
Change in fair value of derivative TTETENATEE
instrument 29 77,091 =
Impairment loss of trade debtors and RARENER ZRERSR
bills receivable 23 112,830 -
Impairment loss of goodwill EERERSE 6(h) 16,081 -
Impairment loss of property, plant and ME - BER
equipment R REEE 6() 54,313 =
Write down of inventories FERR 22(b) 37,522 4,943
Changes in working capital: 2EECE:
Decrease/(Increase) in inventories BERD,/(35) 175,175 (326,482)
Increase in trade and other receivables & 5 & fth e I Z B 5 11 (123,801) (173,142)
Increase/(decrease) in trade and other B 5 R E fib fE 2R
payables /() 73,839 (32,472)
Cash generated from/(used in) operations &:&Fr15,/(Fr) 84 83,555 (123,864)
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26 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 26

B 5 K EA R RKE

2015 2014
2015 % 20144

RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBT ARETT

Trade payables B S EMNFOR 15,176 10,494
Bills payable AN 45,800 25,800
Receipts in advance TEWFRIE 41,299 23,025
Accrued expenses and other payables H A JE < 2R IE R RS B 372,524 279,897

474,799 339,216

All of the trade and other payables are expected to be settled or
recognised as income within one year or repayable on demand.

(a) Bills payable are normally issued with a
maturity of not more than six months.
At 31 December 2015, bills payable were secured by
pledged deposits of RMB22,900,000 (2014: RMB12,900,000)
placed with banks (see note 28).

(b) Atthe end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis of the
trade and bills payable, based on transaction date, is as
follows:

Fﬁﬁf’f%&ﬁﬁtfﬁ*”lﬁi‘ﬁiiﬁﬁ’\—iﬁq
XNRER BB RARBRER

(@ ENZEENIHE-—RKRTEE
BARMEA -
MR2015F 12 A318 © BRI Z#HH
EREBETHEERERARE
22,900,0007T (20144 : A R &
12,900,000 7T ) {E#EAR (R HI5E28) ©

(b) RBEHR - BEFREMEN KA
R BR Bk D AT (PA B R B 8 R H B 98
BREE)WT

2015 2014
2015 % 20144

RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARET T

Within 30 days 30K 2,846 4,386
31 to 60 days 3NME60K 52,948 1,280
61t0 180 days 612180k 1,335 27,615
Over 180 days BB 180K 3,847 3,013

60,976 36,294
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26 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued) 26 ESRHMENRE@)
(c) An analysis of accrued expenses and other (c) EstFZREMEMSRENS
payables is analysed as follows: i N

2015 2014
2015 F 2014 5

RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARET T

Salaries, wages, bonus and other e I8 Eak

accrued benefits H it pEsT R Fl 10,293 5,300
Payables for the purchase of property, BEME - BERE&E

plant and equipment and BT B E R S 5RIE

intangible assets 42,487 41,513
VAT payable FERHIGERE 188,360 163,342
Unearned government grants (i) TE UK B BT 4 B (i) 50,565 21,460
Derivative financial instruments TESmIA = 525
Other taxes payable E A SRR 22,357 24,846
Advances from government authorities (ii) BT 5 P52 (i) 17,960 -
Advances from a government BT 42 161 44 17 8 35K (i)

controlled entity (iii) 22,000 -
Others HAth 18,502 22,911

372,524 279,897
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(b= BT HES)

UABRKES|E)

26 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued)
(c) An analysis of accrued expenses and other
payables is analysed as follows: (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

The amount represented conditional government
grants received from various government authorities
including Youxian District Finance Bureau and
Mianyang Municipal Government, Sichuan Province,
and the Finance Department, Hunan Province. The
government grants from Youxian District Finance
Bureau are conditional to meeting certain tax payment
thresholds by the Group for the three years ended 31
December 2015. The government grants from the
Mianyang Municipal Government are conditional to
utilising the funds for the designated purpose of
development of scientific knowledge and technology.
The government grants from the Finance Department,
Hunan Province are conditional to utilising the funds
for the designated purpose of procurement of fixed
assets. Should the conditions not be met by the
Group, the government grants are repayable to the
various government authorities within 2016.

Advances from government authorities represents an
advance of RMB17,960,000 received from Finance
Bureau, Miluo City, Hunan Province to the Group. The
amount is interest free and repayable on demand.

Advances from a government controlled entity
represents an advance of RMB22,000,000 received
from Mianyang Fule Investment Limited to the Group
for purchase of property, plant and equipment. The
amount is interest free and repayable on demand.

166 China Metal Resources Utilization Limited o FREl&E & REFIABR A A

26 ESREMENSRIE R

(c)

B REMESRENSD

waR : (8)

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

ZeRIEBE S BB HIBEES
KB GBS/ - BiEn L
1% BB B U )| 4 42 55 T B
B Ea A B ERED o hF Al (& B R
BRBFEBARERRER
201512 A31 B I =@EFE
ENE THBPIEBIRME - &
k5 T BRI RO BUR # B A A & &
FA1EE R BB R s
TE R BIEME o A B BB
RIETf BN A S & & FA1EER B
B BERNEERERGH
i AL B ARREF A 6 - B
FT B B R 2016 F NE & F
FREBATHSE -

ZBUNEBPI R I8 A B ZE
M ERAEEARARE
17,960,0007T - &R A% L
MIREK(EE -

Z T RSB R KR
Mianyang Fule Investment
Limitedm AE BB K AR
22,000,0007C * AEE ¥ -
BN - ZeHERRER

REE -
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27 OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES 27 MMEHETNHWER
At 31 December 2015, the Group had obligations under finance R2015F 128318 XEBHEATE
leases repayable as follows: EERMBEHEETHEME :

2015 2014
2015 & 20145
Present value Present value
of the Total of the Total
minimum minimum minimum minimum

lease lease lease lease
payments payments payments payments
BIEEENE BEHE SEEEFE HEHE
WERE NIELE HRE FIBEE
RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARET ARET ARETT ARBTTL

Within 1 year 1ER 15,192 15986 16471 777777777 17676 7
After 1 year but within 2 years 1E&B2FR 12,462 13,956 14,309 15,986
After 2 years but within 5 years 2EBBSER 10,628 12,679 21,718 26,635
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, 23,090 R 00T 4262
38,282 42,621 52,498 60,297
Less: total future interest expenses 5 : RRFI BRI %8 (4,339) (7,799
Present value of finance BERERAMNRE
lease obligations 38,282 52,498
Pledged deposit of RMB5,320,000 (2014: RMB5,320,000) was MN2015% 12 318 - DHEHFERARE
placed as security for the obligations under finance leases as at 5,320,0007C (2014 4F = A K % 5,320,000
31 December 2015. T EFREARMERE THETLAMEIF -
On 27 December 2013, the Group entered into an agreement with R2013F 12 A278  AEEE—HHEE
a leasing company to sell certain of the Group’s plant and NAEF — M ABEREFNERHELRE
equipment to the leasing company at RMB60,000,000 and LA R 60,000,000 TlAIZ A E AR HE
leaseback the plant and equipment for a five-year period. The REEE T HE K& E% BB ZER
Group has the option to purchase the plant and equipment at a BERiEE NHEERR  AEEEEERE
nominal price of RMB10,000 at the end of the lease period. LA % EZBARKI000THEEZERE
=i e
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27 OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES 27 MEHEETHEE®
(Continued)
On 23 January 2014 and 27 February 2014, the Group entered into R2014F1H238 &2014%2RH278 -
agreements with a leasing company to sell certain of Group’s AEEE-—HEEAREIN AR =K
plant and equipment to the leasing company at a total of E&MEEHE - LAS £ AR 5,500,000
RMB5,500,000 and leaseback the plant and equipment for a three- TRZEEARNERNERSE THE &
year period. The Group has the option to purchase the plant and RBEBHEZERE &G - REEH
equipment at a nominal price of nil at the end of the leasing N AEEBEEEUNTERERBEZSE
period. R fE K o
At 31 December 2015, the net book value of plant and equipment MR2015F12 A31 8 @ REMEREERE
under finance leases included in property, plant and equipment MY - BERXEREEFEBEARE
amounted to RMB55,575,000 (2014: RMB61,655,000). 55,575,000 7C(20144F : AR¥ 61,655,000

TO)EVE - R R e

28 BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS 28 MITERRHMERK
(@) At 31 December 2015, the analysis of the (@ M2015%F12A318: BRW
carrying amount of borrowings is as follows: FREESHAT :

2015 2014
2015 F 2014 5

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T ARETT

Bank loans RITER

— secured — BER 312,050 313,970

— unsecured — IR = 20,000
312,050 333,970

Entrusted loans EEX

— secured — BER 300,000 300,000

— unsecured — E\ER 49,460 56,700

777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777 349,460 356,700

661,510 690,670

Represented by: BN :

Current BNER 661,510 390,670

Non-current JEBNER - 300,000
661,510 690,670
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28 BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS
(Continued)
(b) The amounts of banking facilities and the
utilisation at 31 December 2015 are set out as
follows:

Expres%ed ’f Renm/nb/ Wess

B

ﬂa‘iﬁﬁ'
Ny Gsgev

28 RITERRHEMER 2
(b) N2015F12A31HMWETE

BEEREARRER T :

2015 2014
2015 % 2014 4

RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARBTT

Banking facilities available AIARITEERE

— secured —B#ER 369,640 351,270

— unsecured — EER = 20,000
369,640 371,270

Amounts utilised BB A RIE

— bills payable — ENEE 45,800 25,800

— bank loans —RITER 312,050 333,970
357,850 359,770

There are cross default provisions in certain banking
facilities, the default on a loan by the Group would then
cause a default on other loans which have cross default
provisions.

%?ﬁﬂhﬁ%%ﬁxXL%M
CAEEER—EERESEM
L&Wﬁ XX B KNG EME K -
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28 BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS

(Continued)

(b) The amounts of banking facilities and the
utilisation at 31 December 2015 are set out as
follows: (Continued)

The banking facilities were secured by the following assets:

Property, plant and equipment (note 13(a)) #1% - W& &5

8 ’ ) /’-""‘ W

N =1, K77/
< [ oy %
- | . v L Vi
el ‘ Vit a <y

28 RITERRHEMER 2

(b) M2015512831BMERTE
BERFEABRBEATX : (&)
BRI TR SRR A N EEER ¢

2015
2015 &

2014
2014 4F
RMB'000
AREFIT

RMB’000
AR®T T

(BF5E13(a)) 214,270 176,328

Lease prepayments (note 14) FAETE R (FEE14) 53,390 38,269
Inventories (note 22) 78 (fzE22) 53,063 57,011
Government grants receivable (note 23)  FEU BT A B (Ft3E 23) 8,550 35,015
Pledged deposits (note 19)* BEHEAER (MiEE19) * 53,800 40,000
Bills receivable Y =B = 4,000
383,073 350,623

At 31 December 2015, bank loans of RMB10,000,000 (2014:
nil) was secured by property, plant and equipment of
Sichuan Gushan Vegetable Fat Chemical Co., Ltd. (“Gushan
Vegetable”), a private company controlled by Mr. Yu Jiangiu.

At 31 December 2015, bank loans of RMB35,000,000 (2014:
nil) were secured by prepayment for land use right of Baohe
Fushan.

e Pledged deposits included RMB22,900,000 (2014: RMB19,600,000)
paid to a third party. At 31 December 2015, bank loans of
RMB70,000,000 (2014: RMB70,000,000) were secured by property,
plant and equipment of this third party; also included was
RMB8,000,000 (2014: RMB7,500,000) paid to independent guarantee
companies. At 31 December 2015, bank loans of RMB41,000,000
(2014: RMB30,000,000) were guaranteed by these independent
guarantee companies to which the Group was charged a total of non-
recoverable guarantee fees of RMB1,639,000 (2014: RMB1,170,000)
during the year ended 31 December 2015.
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MN20155 128310 @8 A AR
10,000,000 7T (2014 £ = &) B9 6R
TERBAOEMEEEFIHLAR
A EAZmE EEERAR([H
ImPE BV - R MR o

R2015F 128318 A R #
35,000,000 7T (2014 45 = &) 7 $R 17
BEFHEME L8 E BEEN
IR B -

& CEBRERBEECNE=ZTNARYE
22,900,0007T (2014 4F = A R %5 19,600,000
JC) o R2015F 124318  IRITERA
R ¥700000007C(2014F : A R #
70,0000007T) Ty AL E = )W 3 - R
BEREEAER BEERHAERIAEED
98 3B R 2 A1 #9 A R #8,000,0007T
(20145 + AR #7,5000007T ) ° 42015
FRANA REFBEAEARE
41,000,0007T (2014 4F = A IR % 30,000,000
T0) RRI TE SR S B R IR A Bl
IR MALEREZ 20154128318
I FEHZEARIA T RA R EER
BAHARE6390007T(2014F - AR
#1,170,0007T) °
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28 BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS 28 BITERREMER @)
(Continued)
(c) At the end of reporting date, bank loans were (c) REER |BRITERNERE
repayable as follows: SR

2015 2014
2015 % 2014 %5

RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTF T ARBTT

Within 1 year or on demand 1FAHRIRERK 312,050 333,970
After 1 year but within 2 years 1FZE2FN - -
312,050 333,970

(d) significant terms and repayment schedule of (d) ZEXERME ARG KR ERE

entrusted loans
At 31 December 2015, entrusted loans are repayable as R2015F12A31H ° ZEERH
follows: BRERAT

2015 2014
2015 % 2014 5

RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARBTT

Within 1 year or on demand 1FRHIZERK 349,460 56,700
After 1 year but within 2 years 1F&8EB2FK - 300,000
349,460 356,700

At 31 December 2015, the entrusted loans were interest-
bearing at 10.0% to 12.0% per annum. Among the entrusted
loans, RMB300,000,000 were secured by 413,522,200 and
200,000,000 ordinary shares in the Company held by Mr.
Huang Weiping, key management personnel of the Group,
and Mr. Yu Jiangiu, respectively. The aggregate amount of
shares charged in respect of this loan represents 29.1% of
the issued share capital of the Company.

R2015F 12 A31H  ZFREERIK
F R E10.0%E12.0%5F B o H
A B #300,000,000 7T 2 ZFEE A
REBETEEBABRETEAER
BRI SE & 5 BB # 413,522,200
fi% Kz 200,000,000 A% A 2 B & 38 A% 1
BEH - RZEEFEFORGOE
BEEARAREEITARAN29.1% ©
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29 CONVERTIBLE BONDS
The movements of the components of the convertible bonds
during current period are set out below:

29 WBRRES
AEE WA ES 2 BB H 2 B8
]}HT

Liability
component Derivative
(at amortised component
cost) (at fair value)
a8E8Hs TEIAERS
(R 88 B <) (RAFE)
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T AR® T
At issue date REITH 137,164 50,767
Interest charge — MERZ 35,114 -
Interest paid — ZIFE (14,657) =
Changes in fair value — NFEEE) - 77,091
Exchange realignment — BRI 8,867 3,131
At 31 December 2015 7201512 A31H 166,488 130,989

On 13 April 2015, the Company issued convertible bonds with a
principal amount of USD32,610,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB200,208,000). The Company incurred transactions cost of
approximately HK$15,497,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB12,277,000) for the issue of the convertible bonds. Major
terms of the convertible bonds are as below:

(@  The convertible bonds carry 10% coupon interest per annum
payable in arrears quarterly. Unless previously converted,
the convertible bonds will be fully redeemed by the
Company at its principal amount upon maturity at the
second anniversary from the date of issuance. If the
convertible bonds is not fully redeemed or converted before
the first anniversary from the date of issuance, the Company
has to pay additional 3% of the outstanding or unconverted
principal amount to the bondholder. If the average closing
share price of the Company during any six consecutive
months within the period commencing from issuance date
on 13 April 2015 to the maturity date has never, at any point
of time, reached or exceeded the conversion price, the
Company shall, upon redemption of the convertible bonds,
compensate the bondholder in cash so that the bondholder
is guaranteed an annualised return of 13% for the period
commencing from issuance date to the first anniversary of
issuance date and an annualised return of 16% for the
period commencing from the day following the first
anniversary of issuance date to the date of redemption.
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M2015F4 8138 » AR A EITAL
& 32,610,000 L(HE RO AR
200,208,0007C) K AT A IR E % - A BT
BIRES - AN EEEEE15,497,000(48
BN AR 12,277,000) 32 B AR o
AR ESREBIERAT ¢

(@)

A EFRENEI0%E -
FEXN o BRIFAT R E SN E ]
BRI REEA(AN#ETAH
“EAFER)ARARAAEERED
EEABERES - MR BRREFR
BTEMBEFNREMLRYE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

29 CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued)

(b)  From issuance date to the first anniversary, the Company
may with the consent from the bondholder, at sole
discretion, request for early redemption of all, but not in
part, the outstanding convertible bonds.

(c)  The convertible bonds are secured by 362,000,000 ordinary
shares of the Company held by Epoch Keen Limited, a
company wholly owned by Mr. Yu Jiangiu. If the aggregate
shareholding of the senior management of the Company
and their associates in Company is less than 50% of the
entire share capital of the Company or the collateral ratio of
the security falls below the specific ratio prescribed in the
agreement and the Company has failed to provide additional
collateral, the bondholder may request early redemption.

(d) The bondholder has the right to convert the principal
amount of the convertible bonds into ordinary shares of
HK$0.1 each of the Company at an initial conversion price of
HK$1.4 per share but subject to adjustments at any time
during the term of the convertible bonds, subject to the
minimum public float requirement. At the date of
conversion, the exchange rate between the principal
amount of the convertible bonds and the conversion price is
fixed at USD0.18. Aggregate amount of principal converted
into shares should not exceed USD16,300.000.

The convertible bonds contained two components, liability and
derivative component. The initial fair value of the both
components combined was determined based on gross proceeds
at issuance. The initial fair value of the derivative component was
estimated to be approximately RMB50,767,000 as at the issuance
date of using the Monte Carlo Model and Binomial Option Pricing
Model, taking into account the terms and conditions of the
convertible bonds. In subsequent periods, derivative component
is measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognized in
profit or loss. The residual amount, representing the value of the
liability component at approximately RMB137,164,000, was
subsequently measured at amortized cost using effective interest
rate method. The effective interest rate of the liability component
of the convertible bonds is 34.35% per annum.

A 355 80 RO GE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(B Saat HEI LN EHESIE)

29 TRRESR(#)

b) WBETEHREBTEH—FAFL -
ARRABAEEESFFHEAZENIGS
Rl &~ Z K AE Al 8 B 2= &F (18 IF &6
)RR IRE AR A S

© FAIMREFUSEERAREED
362,000,000 A 78 22 =] B £ 1 A5 1 7
m KREERAREMERELDN
2ERARA - EREMREAR
AMEEEABREZENBEA
ITRHENBRMN A RERRRBERA
KA 50% » S H) R L RER
R0 thh k1R TE MV EL I M AN R B R BE
RHUBEINEAR - BEFHAARTER
IRRIAEE -

d) RABEEFERHA - BFFE
ABREANZ A BESR1.40/8TT
(AT FHARB) KRR ESNAE N
BARARNARERAEEO0IOETHE
B ERRFERETATERRE
B3R REH]A - ATHREREFAR
THEEMERNEXREERE01S
X IMEREFNASEREZR
A]171%16,300,0005 7T AR A7 ©

ARBRESEEAERITETAMIS -
BEFASRITETLAEDB 2EHETBA
REEIVRETHOMSIIEREET -
PTETASD 2B AR BAETINET
HHERESERETERAR-HEER
BRI E A4 AR 50,767,000 BEEE
RN B BB IRE 2 GG - REEH
M TTETABLZRAAEENE IR
BaERAREBEED - FHBRSEREE
EE D 2 EE - 49 AR137,164,000
BE1B IR A BN A R IRE SR AR - 7]
B ES C BERFIE BT F34.35% °
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29 CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued)
The fair value of the derivative component was determined using
the Monte Carlo Model and Binomial Option Pricing Model and
the major inputs into the model are as follows:

Stock price IR EH%
Exercise price IfEE
Expected volatility TEHR K i
Dividend yield FEHZE B &
Option life Tﬁ:%%ﬁ‘ﬁﬁ%ﬁ
Risk free rate @b B

29 ABKRES @)
TTETEBD 2R AREETINET
FHMRESSRECEEAR —BER
BAGE - RAANETRRAZRENT

s
31 December
At issue date 2015

M 2015 F
RE1TH 12A31H

HK$1.64%87C = HK$2.86 7% T
HK$1.40%%7C = HK$1.407E T

42% 55%

3% 3%

24 months = 15.5 months
& A @A
0.46% 0.15%

Up to 31 December 2015, no conversion of the convertible bonds
have taken place since the issuance date.

30 DEFERRED GOVERNMENT GRANTS
In August 2012, the Provincial Finance Bureau, Hunan Province
provided government grants of RMB4,000,000 to the Group. Such
government grants are assets-related and are amortized over ten
years since July 2014.
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2831 N S Cgger T Pk
31 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDEND 31 EX - REERRE
(@) Movement in components of equity () EZIZDEH
The reconciliation between the opening and closing REBIFAEERANS B2 H ) K H
balances of each component of the Group’s consolidated A BEGHEERE NG ERSE
equity is set out in the consolidated statement of changes in Bk o NN ERIHEZE IO N EF)
equity. Details of the changes in the Company’s individual REXRNEEHEHSWOT :

components of equity between the beginning and the end
of the year are set out below:

The Company KA F]

Share-
based
Share  Exchange  Capital  payment  Warrant
Share  premium  reserve  reseve  reseve reserve
capital (Note (Note (Note (Note (Note
(Note 31(c)) ~ 31(d)(ii)) 31(d)(i) 3(d)i) ) 3(d)vi)) losses

NRHAEE  RRER
Bx  BRfEE  EXBE  BARE  NARER B ZER
(31 (ME31  (MEE31 (W31 (MRE31  (H&E3
(©) (@) @) @) dv)  (dvi)
Note  RMB00  RMB000  RMBO00  RMB000  RMB000  RWB000  RMB000  RMB'00
e ARBTR ARMTZ ARMTR ARMTR ARMT: ARMTR ARETR ARMTR

Balance at 1 January 2015 R20158181R
fER 166,075 294,342 639 289,836 10,365 - (68,431) 693,326

Changes in equity for 2015. 2015 EREREF

Loss for the year ERER = = = = - - (177,086)  (177,086)
Other comprenensive income Ap2ENE - - 10,805 - - - - 10,805
Total comprehensive income FENREE - - 10,805 - - - (177,086)  (166,281)
Issuance of warrants BB 31(0)v) - 186 - - - 12,079 - 12,265
Share-based compensation expenses MR A BERAEER  31d) = = - - 31,874 - - 31,874
Share options vested butlapsed 2 EBREMMERE = = - - (1,539) - 1,539 -
Dividend declared and paid ABEERERREN

in respect of prior year ZRE 31(b) - (49,892) - - - - - (49,892)

Balance at 31 December 2015 R2015%12A318
s 166,075 245,136 11,444 289,836 40,700 12,079 (243,978) 521,292
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31 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDEND (continued) 31 &7 - #ERKRE &)

(@) Movement in components of equity (Continued) (a) #ERILDEE (&)
Share-based
Share Bxchange Capital payment  Accumulated
capital reserve reserve reserve losses Total
A B EiBfE  ERER ES a5t
Note RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMBOOO RMB'000 RMB'000
T ARETn ARETr ARETn ARETR ARETT ARETR  ARETR
Balanceat 1 January 2014 R20UE1R1R
igfed3 907 715719 97) 289.836 - (23823) 338,402
Changes inequity for 2014, 0 EMERES
Loss for the year EREE = = = = = (44,608) (44,608)
Other comprenensive income Efb 2 Elizs - - 73 - - - 73
Total comprenensive income. 2z £ - - 73 - = (44,608) (43,872)
Issue of newsharesunder the  BEE RARRE
initial public offering (PO, (TERDREEE])
net of listing expenses EAFRA
BR300 41414 391,063 - - - - 132477
Capitalisation issue B 31(0)0) 23,215 (123219) - - - = =
IssLie of new shares upon REERARRE
exercise of the over-allotment 17 ERERRIE
option under the IPO BEAHRG 3100 539 5,553 = = = = 6,092
Share-based compensation BRI BEREE
£XDeNses 5 3w - - - - 10,365 - 10,365
Dividend declared in respect ~ BAEEERY
of the current year RE 310) - (50,138) - - - - (50,139)
Balance at 31 December 2014 R2014E 124318
fes 166,075 294,842 639 289.836 10,365 (68.431) 693,326
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31 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDEND (continuved) 31 &7 - ERKRE (@)
(b) Dividend (b) BE
Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the FRAEQAGEZRRELESRKRE
Company attributable to the year

2015 2014
2015 F 2014 €

RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARBTT

Interim dividend declared and paid of nil 2 & JE & /54 #RA% &, ¢

(2014: HK3.0 cents) per ordinary share =T (20144 : 3.0781) = 50,138
Final dividend proposed after the end of A& Ei&E R E
the reporting period of nil BORARAAAR S
(2014: HK3.0 cents) per ordinary share Z (20144 : 3.0781) = 50,008
- 100,146

The board of directors does not recommend the payment of EEeTEZAREEHE2015 i 12
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2015 (2014: HK3.0 A3NBIEFEMARE (20144 :
cents per ordinary share). AR BA% 3.07840) ©
The final dividend proposed after the end of the reporting R EHERE IR AR ER
period has not been recognised as a liability at the end of WEHRT RERLEAME -

the reporting period.

2015 2014
2015 F 2014 €

RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®TF T ARBTT

Dividend in respect of the year of 2014 FAF2014FEZ R E
paid during the year 49,892 50,138
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31 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDEND (continved) 31 &7 - EERKRE (&)
(c) Share capital (c) B
Authorised and issued share capital EERBRITIRA

Par value No. of shares

Authorised:

At 31 December 2014,
1 January 2015 and
31 December 2015

R

HKS
BT

MR2014E12 A318 -
20151 A1 R
2015512 A31H

0.10 100,000,000,000

iy 4=
HK$'000

TET

10,000,000

(equivalent to RMB8,071,000,000)
A& ” AR 8,071,000,000 7T

No. of shares
BRAEE

HK$'000 RMB’000
TAT ARETT

Issued and fully paid: ERTREHZE :
At 1 January 2014 R2014%1 818 11,238,000 1,123 907
Issue of shares under the IPO BIEERNARES
BITRAD 525,001,600 52,500 41,414

Capitalisation issue BEARLEELT 1,562,082,000 156,208 123,215
Issue of shares upon exercise S A= /NN

of the over-allotment option EITEBRER

under the IPO S A B B2 1T AR 1) 6,824,000 683 539
At 31 December 2014 MR2014F12 A31H 2,105,145,600 210,514 166,075
At 1 January 2015 and R2015F 118 K

31 December 2015 201512 A31H 2,105,145,600 210,514 166,075
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31 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDEND (continued)
(c) Share capital (Continued)
Authorised and issued share capital (Continued)

0]

(if)

On 21 February 2014, the Company capitalised an
amount of HK$156,208,000 (equivalent to
RMB123,215,000) standing to the credit of the share
premium account of the Company by applying such
sum in paying up in full at par of 1,562,082,000 shares,
each of which to be allotted and issued to the
shareholders of the Company appearing on the
register of members of the Company on 28 January
2014 in proportion to their respective shareholding.

On 21 February 2014, the shares of the Company
became listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange, pursuant to which 525,001,600 ordinary
shares of HK$0.1 each were issued at a price of
HK$1.13 per share by the Company. The total gross
proceeds from the issue of these shares amounted to
HK$593,252,000 (equivalent to RMB467,954,000).
Proceeds of HK$52,500,000 (equivalent to
RMB41,414,000), representing the par value of the
shares issued, were credited to the Company’s share
capital. The remaining proceeds of HK$495,895,000
(equivalent to RMB391,063,000 after deducting listing
expenses of RMB35,477,000), were credited to the
share premium account.

On 18 March 2014, 6,824,000 ordinary shares of
HK$0.1 each were issued at a price of HK$1.13 per
share by the Company pursuant to the partial exercise
of the over-allotment option by the sole global
coordinator. The total gross proceeds from the issue
of these shares amounted to HK$7,711,000 (equivalent
to RMB6,092,000). Proceeds of HK$683,000 (equivalent
to RMB539,000), representing the par value of the
shares issued, were credited to the Company’s share
capital. The remaining proceeds of HK$7,028,000
(equivalent to RMB5,553,000) were credited to the
share premium account.

A 355 80 RO GE
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(B BEat HEY AN RESIE)

31 EX - RERKRE @)
() Bz (#&)
EERDBRITRA(E)

(i)

(ii)
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31 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDEND (continued)
(d) Nature and purpose of reserves

0}

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign currency
differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of subsidiaries with functional currency
other than Renminbi. The reserve is dealt with in
accordance with the accounting policy set out in note
2(X).

Capital reserve

The capital reserve comprises mainly capital
contributions from shareholder in respect of the
contingent considerations for the acquisition of Jinxin
and Xiangbei in November 2010 and August 2011
amounted to RMB33,226,000 and RMB11,555,000
respectively borne by the shareholder and deemed
capital contribution of RMB77,700,000 amount due to
shareholder waived by the shareholder on 31
December 2012.

Share premium

The application of the share premium account is
governed by the Companies Law of the Cayman
Islands. Under the Companies Law of the Cayman
Islands, the funds in the share premium account of
the Company are distributable to shareholders of the
Company provided that immediately following the
date on which the dividend is proposed to be
distributed, the Company will be in a position to pay
off its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of
the business.

Statutory reserves

According to the PRC rules and regulations, the
Company’s operating subsidiaries are required to
transfer 10% of the net income after tax, as
determined in accordance with general accepted
accounting principle in the PRC, to a general reserve
fund and an enterprise expansion fund until the
reserve balance reaches 50% of the registered capital
of the respective companies. The transfer to the
reserves must be made before distribution of
dividends to shareholders can be made. These
amounts are not available for distribution to
shareholders, except upon liquidation.
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(d) FEENHERAR
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(i)

(iii)

(iv)
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=N
BABEEIZRERERR
201011 A K201148 A I
BB AL ARE (D
Bl A A B 33,226,000 7T K& A
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31 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDEND (continued)
(d) Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

Statutory reserves (Continued)

No transfer to the reserves were made for the year
ended 31 December 2015 (2014: RMB26,736,000) as
all the PRC subsidiaries of the Group were loss making
for the year.

Share-based payment reserve

Share-based payment reserve represents the portion
of the fair value of unexercised share options granted
to employees of the Group at grant date that has been
recognised in accordance with the accounting policy
adopted for share-based payments in note 2(t)(ii).

The amount will either be transferred to the share
premium account when the option is exercised, or be
released directly to retained profits if the option is
lapsed or forfeited.

Warrant reserve

Warrant reserve arises from the issue of warrants less
the expenses incurred pertaining to the warrants
issue, Upon the exercise of the warrants, the warrant
reserve will be transferred to share capital and share
premium.

On 19 January 2015, the Company issued 133,650,000
warrants to 7 subscribers at an issue price of HK$0.001
per warrant. Each warrant will entitle its holder to
subscribe for one share of the Company at a
subscription price of HK$1.30 per share. The warrants
will be vested in phases according to the vesting
conditions. The vesting condition is that the suppliers
shall carry out the transactions under their respective
annual procurement agreements, pursuant to which
the suppliers in aggregate, agree to supply 49,500 tons
of copper scrap raw materials to the Group in 2015 at
a fixed discount of RMB1,000 per ton.

A 355 80 RO GE
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31 B - #ERKRE (#®)
(d) HEENEERBARE)

(iv)

V)

(vi)
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31 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDEND (continued)
(d) Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)
(vi) Warrant reserve (Continued)

On 24 February 2015, the Company issued
102,000,000 warrants to 3 subscribers at an issue
price of HK$0.001 per warrant. Each warrant will
entitle its holder to subscribe for one share of the
Company at a subscription price of HK$1.50 per share.
The warrants will be vested in phases according to the
vesting conditions. The vesting condition is that the
suppliers shall carry out the transactions under their
respective annual procurement agreements, pursuant
to which the suppliers, in aggregate, agree to supply
30,000 tons of copper scrap raw materials to the
Group from 1 February 2015 to 31 January 2016 at a
fixed discount of RMB2,000 per ton.

The total discount on the raw materials purchased for
the year ended 31 December 2015 amounted to
approximately RMB12,079,000 that had been
recognised in warrant reserve.

(e) Distributable reserves
At 31 December 2015, the aggregate amount of reserves
available for distribution to equity shareholders of the
Company amounted to RMB355,217,000 (2014:
RMB527,251,000).
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31 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDEND (continued)

(f)

Capital management

The Group's primary objectives when managing capital are
to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, so that it can continue to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, by pricing
products and services commensurately with the level of risk
and by securing access to financing at a reasonable cost.

The Group manages its capital structure to maintain a
balance between the higher shareholder returns that might
be possible with higher levels of borrowings and the
advantages and security afforded by a sound capital
position, and makes adjustments to the capital structure in
light of changes in economic conditions affecting the Group.

The Group monitors its capital structure on the basis of a
net debt-to-capital ratio. For this purpose, the Group defines
net debt as total interest bearing borrowings less cash and
cash equivalents. The Group defines “capital” as all
components of equity.

The net debt-to-capital ratio was as follows:

31

BXR - - BEERRE @

(f)

BEXREHE
AEEEEEANTER R RER
AEERBELENGEN  REAR
RNREE AR TS EEL R A 2
MR AESRE - ilzitﬁﬂxﬁ)&ﬁi\
L | 25 48 B8 2 7 2R (B 3R AN ) 21

AEEERHEERER  AERR
ROE O H(ATEEEEEK
e E B BRI B AR P 2K Ay
BERRENFE  YREZER
SENRBER RSB HEEARERE -

AEBBFEBEARL R BEEE
BEAGR -BUEME - AKEH
FEBER R EEREERER
e MREFEEARB - Z]KE.H—H_%S
A ERBHAESAKE D

FEEHEARLEMT

2015 2014

2015 £ 2014 5

Note RMB'000 RMB'000

BaE ARET T ARBTT

Bank loans and other borrowings 4847 & 3k & H fth {& 3k 28 661,510 690,670
Loan from a related party ] Hwﬁg%’( 24(b) 83,780 -
Obligations under finance leases gtEHE THIE (T 27 38,282 52,498
Convertible bonds TR ES 29 166,488 =
Less: Cash and cash equivalents ¥ : & MRS HEER 25 (82,559) (145,765)
Net debt BER 867,501 597,403
Total equity HERER 754,183 1,273,303
Net debt-to-capital ratio BEBERLLE 115.0% 46.9%

Except for the banking facilities which require the fulfilment
of certain covenants, neither the Company nor any of the
subsidiaries are subject to externally imposed capital
requirements.

BEZETETZHENRITRE
SN RAF RAEMMH B A RMES
EISNR AN EY B AN R TE FTARBR o
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32 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED 32 URBEEEUROGRERNR

TRANSACTIONS Z

Share option scheme BT

The Company has a share option scheme which was adopted on NATRAEEIRETE - ER2014F1 8

28 January 2014 and has come into effect upon the Company’s 28BFEMRARATR2014F2H218 £

listing on 21 February 2014 whereby the directors of the TRAEN Bt NARESELSERE

Company, are authorised, at their discretion, to invite any director RSB EEERARAAED B HARER

or employee of the Group and any other person who in the sole EE B E =S B AR ARRE -

discretion of the directors has contributed or will contribute to the LAREEAR AR ©

Group to take up options to subscribe for shares of the Company.

(@) The key terms and conditions related to the grants under (@) ERIRIRFEAHESTEIR LA A
the share option scheme are as follows; all options are to be HEEBRIARIEMEWNT - FTEER
settled by the physical delivery of shares. EHBBERRINBROEE -

Number of
Grant date/ instruments Contractual life
employees entitled in thousands  Vesting conditions of options
IA¥E
REAE FEERZES (THh) BEHEH BRESHES
Options granted to
executive directors
RTFHTESNERE
—0n2July 2014 24,000 One third on the first anniversary, one third on the - 10 years
—R2014FTR28 second anniversary, and the remainingonthe 104
third anniversary of the grant respectively
A RENMNE—RE  =H2—
REZBFREBRE=RAF
—0n7May 2015 8,000  Same as above 10years
— R2015F5A78 EiS 10F
Options granted to
employees
BTREEMNERE
—0n2July2014 89,000  Same as above 10 years
—R2014F7R28 EiS 10F
—0n7 May 2015 94,360  Same as above 10years
—R2015F5R78 EiS 10F
Options granted to certain
eligible participants
RFETEERSHEA
HiERE
—0n 23 July 2015 7,600  Onthe first anniversary of the date uponwhich  Six months commencing from the expiry
the share options are accepted subject to the of the first anniversary of the date of
grantees remaining as eligible persons at acceptance and expiring on the last
the date of vesting day of the 6 month-period
— 20157 A 238 REREREANE-BEER - EMPRRAE-BERRRRES
AR ARGEARENASERAL ~NMEABESRE-BALEZ EA
Total share options granted 222,960
ERLEREAY
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32 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED

TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(@) (Continued)
The fair value of services received in return for share
options granted is measured by reference to the fair value
of share options granted. The estimate of the fair value of
the share options granted is measured based on the
Binomial Option Pricing Model. The contractual life of the
share option is used as an input into this model.
Expectations of early exercise are incorporated into the
Binomial Option Pricing Model.

58 i

(b) Fair value of share options and assumptions

2 July 2014
Share options granted to
2014%7H2H
BRERT
Executive
directors
HiTES

Grant date

RHAH

Other
employees
HitfEs

Fair value at measurement RstERHZ AT(E

date (HK9) () 0.44 0.39
Share price (HKS) RECGET) 107 107
Exercise price (HKS) EE(EL) 113 113
Expected volatility HHRRE 45.50% 45.54%
Expected life SEEYRL 10 years 10 years
Expected dividends L 3% 3%
Risk-free interest rate aEpNE

(based on Hong Kong (\BRINEES

Exchange Fund Notes) ZEFIRAEE) 2.059% 2.059%
Exercise multiple Bt 28 22
Post-vesting exit rate FRERAR 0% 5.44%

* On 23 July 2015, the Company granted 10,000,000 share options to
certain eligible participants, in which 7,600,000 share options were
accepted.

The expected volatility is based on the historic volatility
(calculated based on the weighted average remaining life of
the share options), adjusted for any expected changes to
future volatility based on publicly available information.
Expected dividends are determined by the management.
Changes in the subjective input assumptions could
materially affect the fair value estimate.

. HEEE

(Express\ed m Renm/nb/ Wess cateq
# .. @? VN RESIE)

32 URBEGEEUROGAERIR

2 (&)

(@ #&)
AR H 2 B A R R 2 B R AR 75 2
RFEDZECRLBREZAT
BEFfE - CREBREZQATFET
RE-_AAHNREEEAAE-B
Bz 2 BT BIEZREA &
ABE - RETEZAHERAZ
A EEER -

(b) BREZAFERRR

23 July 2015*
Share options
granted to
201557A31A
BRERT
Certain eligible
participants
ETREKSEE

7 May 2015
Share options granted to
2015%5R7H
BRERT
Executive
directors
UITES

Other
employees
HipfEs

0.71 0.58 2.23

1.68 1.68 1.67

1.68 1.68 2.16
46.20% 46.20% 49.43%
10years & 10 years & 15years &
3% 3% 3%

1.745% 1.745% 0.239%
28 2.2 -

0% 16.12% -

i R201567 238 "ARABRAETE
B2 A% H 10,000,00017 BERLAE -
7,600,000 17 BERRE B 45 B 4 o

BEHKERREAE KRB EGR
i B MR 2 D0 R T 19 W BR A BT
) WREARAFERBARIK
ROEREBFE - AHRREHAE
EEJ:T&E TBEABRRINEY
ANFENEFEERNTE -
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32 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED
TRANSACTIONS (continued)
(b) Fair value of share options and assumptions
(Continued)
Share options were granted under a service condition.
There were no market conditions associated with the share
option grants.

Reconciliation of outstanding share options
The number and weighted-average exercise prices of share
options under the share option scheme were as follows.

32 UREGHEURONRBERNR
5 (%)
(b) BREZAFERRBRE)

BREDZRGEA RN - RTHE

RATEM R 2 R
B R T 8178 TP AR A 0 B R R AT
15T

Weighted- Weighted-
average average
Number of  exercise price Number of exercise price
In thousands of options options 2015 2015 options 2014 2014
2015 2015 2014 F 20145
BRETH BREZE MNET9THEE BREZE METHTEE
QOutstanding at 1 January W—A—BRETE 107,390 1.13 = =
Forfeited during the year FARLD (18,550) (1.21) (5,610) (1.13)
Exercised during the year FAIE = = = =
Granted during the year FREH 109,960 1.71 113,000 1.13
Outstanding at 31 December Rt=A=+t-H
i RATE 198,800 1.45 107,390 1.13
Exercisable at 31 December ®“+=-A=+—-H
AT 30,483 1.13 = =

The options outstanding at 31 December 2015 had an exercise
price in the range of HK$1.13 to HK$2.16 (2014: HK$1.13) and a
weighted-average contractual life of 9.68 years (2014: 10 years).

No share options were exercised in 2015 and 2014.
Expense recognised in profit or loss

For details on the related share-based compensation expenses,
see note 7(b).
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33 COMMITMENTS

(a)

Capital commitments outstanding at 31
December 2015 not provided for in the financial
statements were as follows:

Express‘ed m Renmmb/ i unless

‘\\___;‘

§ o3

Ra‘iﬁ!ﬁ'
%ﬂﬁ

33 &g

(@)

R2015F12A31B R EN M
XEREEAMBRERAREN
BAAEMT -

2015 2014
2015 & 20144
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETIT

Contracted for B A4
— property, plant and equipment — E - WENEE 62,010 114,084
— land use rights — T HbfE AAE 13,956 19,326
Authorised but not contracted for EREERETL 71,193 94,783
147,159 228,193

(b) At 31 December 2015, the total future minimum
lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases in respect of staff quarters
and office premises are payable as follows:

(c)

(d)

(b)

M2015F12H831H E@E
IEERBREENTITHHELR
EHEETHARKERAER
HABEEMANT

2015 2014

2015 £ 2014 4

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARB TR ARETTT

Within 1 year 1FR 1,493 858
After 1 year but within 5 years 1F2EB5FK 397 1,138
1,890 1,996

At 31 December 2015, the Group had outstanding purchase
agreements with some of its suppliers and was required to
purchase from the suppliers an aggregate of 30,238 metric
tons (2014: 131,324 metric tons) of scrap copper with the
price to be determined at the time of purchases based on
market price.

At 31 December 2015, the Group had other capital
commitment of approximately RMB3,100,000 in respect of
the proposed acquisition of 70% equity interest in Xinhuan
Aluminium (see note 36).

(c)

(d)

MN20155 12 A31H » "REFEE
ﬁM‘f FEEANRERNEE W
& AREEREEAS 30,2382
ﬂ¢ﬁ<2014¢ © 131,324 AW B EEER
BRENEESLZBHEET

MR2015%F12A31H » "REBE g2
HUESIRIRE 0B BAEN M E
RAEYEL A AR # 3,100,000 7T (7,
MEE36) o
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34 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
In addition to the related party information disclosed elsewhere in
these financial statements, the Group entered into the following
significant related party transactions during the current and prior
years.

(a) Significant related party transactions
() Financing arrangements

34 BEARS
BRAZZHMERE M REN @Y
FERIN  AEBMAREE RBEFET
TUTEABRSRS -

(@) EXBEBLIXS
iy ®MERHE

2015 2014
2015 F 2014 F
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETTT
Interest expense on loan from R B iR S A Pl
Gushan Environment Energy Limited,  B9FLA R R H 2815
a private company controlled by BERB R A AR
Mr. Yu Jiangiu BEREMN SR = 446
Interest expense on loan from REBER L & (RAF]
Silver Harvest Holdings Limited, 5 HET—H

a private company controlled by
Mr. Liu Hanjiu, director of the

=+ B R FESIE
FLARFERIERER

Company until 30 November RNEIMEFHF E R = 12
Interest expense on loan from KB BRI A FTIES]
Epoch Keen Limited, a private MR ARRIREER
company controlled by Mr. Yu Jiangiu A RIEERXH I S5 X 68 -
68 458
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34 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)
(a) Significant related party transactions (Continued)

(ii) Other related parties transactions

TS

=)

. W =
. HBEENE
(Expressed in Renminbi unless ¢ indicatea
o] BspavEh BARESE)

34 BBAERS B
(@) EABBIXS (&2
(i) HeEmIRS

2015 2014
2015 F 2014 4
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARE T ARETTT
Sale of goods $HEEm
Sale of recycled copper products to $HEB AL RE DT EIMN
Guangzhou Taiyue, a private company Z#(BHEEEEAS
which is 40% owned by Mr. Fan BRI ERANF]
Dunxian, a key management ZERVERE
personnel and beneficial minority %A 40% M FLE A AE])
shareholder of the Company - 1,746
Sales of power transmission and SHERALELS TR NBE
distribution cables to Xijiulong 149 -
Others Hit
Guarantee provided by Baohe Fushan  B{RHE L2 AIER
(note 28(h)) (5 28(D)) 35,000 -
Guarantee provided by Gushan M E IR A ER
Vegetable (note 28(b)) (B3 28(b)) 10,000 -
Delivery cost charged by Mianyang Jin  #B[5 ¢ ER el 2
Xunhuan Finance Storage Limited AR A B HUKA
R 656 -
Administrative fee and consultancy fee B {H{FHE IL&IFTIRE
paid to Baohe Fushan* BB 160 150
* In September 2012, each of Tongxin, Baohe Xinshiji and Baohe 3 2012698 - & - RFF

Taiyue had a Management Consultancy Agreement with
Baohe Fushan (collectively the “Management Consultancy
Agreements”), pursuant to which Baohe Fushan agreed to
provide various services to Tongxin, Baohe Xinshiji and Baohe
Taiyue. In return, each of Tongxin, Baohe Xinshiji and Baohe
Taiyue is committed to pay Baohe Fushan an administrative
fee and a consultancy fee which amounts to 20% and 30%,
respectively, of all government grants and subsidies obtained

HREMRNELEEEZRNE
WIRTSZ— 10 E TR FAR ik (e
[ZSEREmGED Bt
RIE LR ZREAE - R
HaE MERMEBIRE SRR
%o (ERRRIGN W& R
FNHT AT AR AN 2 B & B R
ARANE LU NITHRERER

in connection with the facility of each of Tongxin, Baohe B RESHAERNMEE -

Xinshiji and Baohe Taiyue (excluding any government
subsidies received through Baohe Fushan amounted to
RMB18,870,000 (2014: RMB34,091,000) for the year ended 31
December 2015 (Note 6(a)). The Management Consultancy

Agreements expired in September 2015.

RN 40 FOAR TN 2 40 A9 38 B
FAT 15 B8R 476 B % 48 B &9 20% &
30% (T BIEEHZE2015F 12 A
NBLFEEBRNE ILES
A R 18,870,000 7T (2014 4 :
AR#34,091,0007T) 2 (E AT B
Ji 4 Bl (P 3T 6(@)) » 32 %5 B 12
EER 1% T 201559 B @i ©
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34 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b) Key management personnel remuneration
Remuneration for key management personnel of the Group,
including amounts paid to the directors of the Company as
disclosed in note 9 and certain of the highest paid
employees as disclosed in note 10, is as follows:

34 BEARS (#)

(b) EEEEAENTH
AEEISERABNEH (AT
RO RES N TFAATNES
MR - LA R R 105 BRE S
FEFREEHIESHZB) 8

I
2015 2014
2015 £ 2014
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR® TR AREETIT
Short-term employee benefits % HAfE B A& 15,271 15,115
Retirement scheme contributions RORET IR 122 129
Share-based payments PABR (D BETEA K 15,074 5,723
30,467 20,967

Total remuneration was included in “staff costs” (see note
7(0)).

35 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and commodity price
risks arises in the normal course of the Group's business.

The Group's exposure to these risks and the financial risk
management policies and practices used by the Group to manage
these risks are described below.

(@) Creditrisk
The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to trade and

other receivables.

Management has a credit policy in place and the exposure
to these credit risks are monitored on an ongoing basis.
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35 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 35 BHEAKREEREMIAND

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS EEE)
(Continued)
(a) cCredit risk (Continued) (a) EERME)

In respect of trade and other receivables, individual credit
evaluations are performed on all customers requiring credit
over a certain amount. These evaluations focus on the
customers’ past history of making payments when due and
current ability to pay, and take into account information
specific to the customer as well as pertaining to the
economic environment in which the customer operates.
Trade debtors are normally due within 90 days from the
date of transaction. The Group also offers revolving credit to
its customers. The revolving credit, which provides for a
maximum credit limit that may be outstanding at any one
time, is determined based on such factors as current market
conditions and the customers’ credit history and current
ability to pay. Normally, the Group does not obtain collateral
from customers.

The Group's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by
the individual characteristics of each customer rather than
the industry or country in which the customers operate and
therefore significant concentrations of credit risk primarily
arise when the Group has significant exposure to individual
customers. At 31 December 2015, nil (2014: 2.9%) and 71.6%
(2014: 23.9%) of the total trade debtors and bills receivable
was due from the Group’s largest customer and the five
largest customers, respectively.

The maximum exposure to credit risk without taking account
of any collateral held is represented by the carrying amount
of each financial asset in the balance sheet after deducting
any impairment allowance.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group's
exposure to credit risk arising from trade and bills receivable
are set out in note 23.

HREZREMEEFENS @ A&
BEeHRNMARRE T —EE2RBIE
ENEPETEEER G - tE
HEEERTF BRI RERLCE
K BATHERESN X EEEH
REPUAREFEEMERLBRR
MFEEHR - BHER—RERS
BT ORAEIH - KEBEIRA
EPRMHEREE (RRHATNME
fA—XRERNREEER) - IR
BEREMAREPHEELEMA
BERENFRREE —HKM
5 AKEBETEEREFREMEA

o

So o

AEBAZNEERREERREF
(MAREFELEMBITERER)
ZENBIBERNTE  AREKXNE
BEEFRREISEAEEAZEKN
&R = B s = 4 o ;20154 12
A318 BERALEREEBE
AP TR E0 5 (2014 4F : 2.9%) &
H71.6% (20144 : 23.9%) FE R
AEBNZATERAREES T

WAZREMAFERR &R
ERBRBEAABEARKTES
BB ELHBR EMRERFERNKE
HfE -

ERAEERAZEE 5EKKE
T FE L S T 7 e B R M
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35 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 35 BIXEREEREBRITAND

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS FE %)

(Continued)

(b) Liquidity risk (b) REBELREK
The Group's policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity AEENKRRETHERERHE
requirements and its compliance with lending covenants, to SERRETEEZLONENR
ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash and AR B4R R R & FEN AR
readily realisable marketable securities and adequate BERNEBEASANEFTES K
committed lines of funding from major financial institutions BIRETEESRHE  UEMERE
to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and longer HERAREESENK o
term.
The following table shows the remaining contractual TRIRAEBHNIESTE SR AR
maturities at the end of reporting period of the Group’s non- RIBEHRNA TSR BB
derivative financial liabilities, which are based on contractual ZEYETERESRAFTERESR
undiscounted cash flows (including interest payments (BHEFERAERFMZEL (HEBFH))
computed using contractual rates or, if floating, based on REREHIR M R RS E N F 2 30)
rates current at the end of reporting period) and the earliest RAREEFRERNTIOZFEEE :

date the Group can be required to pay.

2015
0155
Contractual undiscounted cash flow
SRAFRELR
More than More than
1year but 2 years hut Balance sheet

Within 1 year or less than less than carrying
on demand 2 years 5 years Total amount
- -EHLE REUL EEARR

FREX MENR BENR @t KafE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBT T ARETT ARBT T ARET T ARBTT

Trade and other payables B REMERE 474,799 = = 474,799 474799
Obligations under finance leases HERETHER 15,986 13,956 12,679 42,621 38,262
Bank loans and other borrowings BT REMER 696,073 - - 696,073 661,510
Loan from arelated party Ka-£BEANER 87,900 5 5 87,900 83,780
Amounts due to related parties B E 6,098 - - 6,098 6,098
Convertible Bonds AR ES 15,352 1117 217,638 254,107 166,488

1,296,208 35,073 230,317 1,561,598 1,430,957
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35 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 35 BIXEREEREBRTAND
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS SE{E oz
(Continued)
(b) Liquidity risk (Continued) (b) REEEREBS(E)

2014
DUE
Contractual undiscounted cash flow
sRATRBLR
More than More than
1 year but 2years but Balance sheet

Within 1 year or less than less than carrying
on demand 2\ears 5Years Total amount
—FRE —EE I BEEER
e D FELAR ERENRA &t WM
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
NS ARETT ARBFT ARETT AEEFT

Trade and otfier payables 85 REMERNFE 39216 - - 339,216 39216
Obligations under finance leases MERETHAL 17616 15,986 2,63 60297 52498
Bank loans and other borrowings ROERRA I 137,378 302,110 = 760,118 690,670
794,270 338,726 26,635 1,159,631 1,082,384
As at 31 December 2015 and 2014, all of the Group's trade MR20154F %2014 124318 » &
and other payables are repayable within one year. SEMEE S REMEMNRIEBER
—FAZF -
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35 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 35 BIXEREEREBRITAND

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS EE®)

(Continued)

(c) Interest rate risk (c) FEEp
The Group's interest rate risk arises primarily from interest NEBBMARER T ZBENE B2
bearing borrowings. Borrowings issued at variable rates and oo LUF B RE BT & &R D B
at fixed rates expose the Group to cash flow interest rate SREFBBEAZHSTENEEK
risk and fair value interest rate risk respectively. The Group’s RAFENERE S - NEEHEE
interest rate profile as monitored by management is set out [EEER BT R A A EH T () °
in (i) below.

(i) REAE
(i) Interest rate profile T%u¥¢$ﬁlﬁ’7i 5T BB
The following table details the interest rate profile of RIREHIR B FIZ B S -

the Group's total interest bearing borrowings at the
end of reporting period:

2015 2014
20155 2014 5
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate Amount rate Amount
ERFIZE Kok | BRI ok |
% RMB’'000 RMB'000
% ARET R ARET
Fixed rate borrowings: EEMER:
Bank loans and other borrowings #8178 2t & E b & 2 9.40 661,510 9.49 690,670
Loan from a related party RE—BBYANER 5.00 83,780 - -
Obligations under finance leases BEFE TS 6.88 38,282 7.06 52,498
Liability component of MRREFNEEDSS
Convertible bonds 34.35 166,488 - -
Total fixed rate borrowings EaEReE 950,060 743,168
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35 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

(c) Interest rate risk (Continued)
(ii)  Sensitivity analysis
At 31 December 2015 and 2014, all of the Group’s
interest bearing borrowings are fixed rate borrowings,
no sensitivity analysis on interest rate risk is
presented.

(d) Currency risk
The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily related to
receivables, payables and cash balances that are
denominated in United States dollars, currencies other than
the functional currency of the operations to which the
transactions relate.

(i) Exposure to currency risk

The following table details the Group's exposure at the
end of reporting period to currency risk arising from
recognised assets or liabilities denominated in United
States dollars (“USD") in connection with entities with
functional currency in Hong Kong dollars (“HKD"). For
presentation purposes, the amounts of the exposure
are shown in Renminbi, translated using the spot rate
at the year end date. Differences resulting from the
translation of the financial statements of the
subsidiaries with functional currency other than RMB
into the Group’s presentation currency are excluded.

BEBEEREBMITARN

\ \.\

!

E{E#)

(c)

(d)

F=@ b (&)

(i) BBEDIT
R2015F % 2014F12 A318 -
AEBRABTEBTEIAE
BIER W & 2 51 B 2K = b2
BURE DT

E¥mEk
AEEAEARETRENET(ZF
?&%*HE@%%%’IH’J% ﬁ%‘ﬁ%tﬁl\ﬂ”}

B®)HENEKRAR F’EH
KRS EHABNEER

(i) FERINEBER
TRANAEERRE IR
AZNEERR  ZEE8BEA
RITARAET(ET B
Dt E¥mMERRET(X
THDAENERRBREEXE
EMEL - REREWME -
EBREBAARBITIR - LA
FHREMNBPERGZE - B8
WINRARE T R/EEEH
MERRFBRRANEEZ
BEMMELENEZRY BTE
EA -

2015 2014
2015 F 2014 5

RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARETT

United States dollars Ep
Cash and cash equivalents BekBEeEEER 684 88
Net exposure arising from ERREERBER

recognised assets and liabilities EERFRER 684 88

(ii)  Sensitivity analysis
As HKD is pegged to the USD, the Group considers the
risk of movements in exchange rates between the
HKD and the USD to be insignificant.

(i) BREIN
mR BT T - ANEE
RRBTHEETT z MEXES
MERTE AKX e
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35 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 35 ﬁi%ﬂﬁﬁ‘“ BErEmIEND

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS NRI=RE )

(Continued)

(e) commodity price risk (e) EmERRER
The major raw material used in the production of the SEASEEMTANEZREMR
Group's products is scrap copper. The Group is exposed to B RS o NEE BRI EE B K
fluctuations in the price of copper which are influenced by & 14 SRR O T B B A R A BHE %
global as well as regional supply and demand conditions. B B [ B o J?E'\M*MET%H@EJ@E
Fluctuations in the prices of raw materials could adversely gﬁ% E A/ B 75 3% 31 # k) 52
affect the Group'’s financial performance. The Group uses o ANEE[E A R Hﬁ‘b/\%’],ﬁw«ﬁ
copper futures contracts to mitigate its exposure against ﬁﬁ%@ﬁﬂﬁﬁﬂ{ T B Y R B
price fluctuations of copper raw materials. The market value HEAAMMERNA %jé%ﬁ
of futures contracts is based on quoted market price at EXBNTERE BEE - K2015
settlement or balance sheet date. As at 31 December 2015, i 12A318 ' AEBEWETEARF
the Group did not have outstanding copper futures EHHHEEAS 4 - N2014F12 A
contracts. At 31 December 2014, the Group had outstanding 318 AEBERFEMIRHAES
copper futures contracts with a notional amount of 2 HEESER AR 62,043,000
RMB62,043,000. JC °

(f) Fair value measurement () 2FEFE
(i) Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair () BRATVEFENZEMEERE

value f§

Fair value hierarchy NFEZERE

The following table presents the fair value of the TREVAEFESRTANA

Group'’s financial instruments measured at the end of HE - ZE T ARNREHRIR

the reporting period on a recurring basis, categorised KEEEEGE - WHEAE

into the three-level fair value hierarchy as defined in B%Eﬁﬁ%iﬁ%gﬁ/ﬁlj%’13g)‘éi\\¥

IFRS 13, Fair value measurement. The level into which BiAEFTEN=4A $f§ 20

a fair value measurement is classified is determined o AT A EOENER

with reference to the observability and significance of %%%%MT%TEE&PJTFH%J

the inputs used in the valuation technigue as follows: ASBNABREREE R

EETE -

— Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using — FBIRHE: BFEAE
only Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted prices o ABUE (BT £ H
in active markets for identical assets or liabilities HRBEEESBENE
at the measurement date. BHISHRECHERE)

FrEMATE-

— Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using — F2RMEHE:ERAE2HR
Level 2 inputs i.e. observable inputs which fail to B A EUE (BRI RBEERISE
meet Level 1, and not using significant 1A R ] B 2R i A BUR)
unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs are BI3EfEAERTAIE
inputs for which market data are not available. REBABBEAENATF

B T B RE ABIE
BEMISEENE AL
% o
—  Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using — F3HHE:FREKR
significant unobservable inputs. AR ABIET=
EO/NS =
There were no transfers between levels 1, 2 and 3 RAFERBEFE - $1
during the current and prior years. 2 K 34 2 Al f e A o
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35 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(Continued)

(f) Fair value measurement (Continued)
(i) Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair

value (Continued)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)
The financial assets and liabilities measured at fair
value in the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2015 are grouped into the
fair value hierarchy as follows.

35

Level 1

1%
RMB'000

ARBTR

TS

B SRR
(Expreéqed in Renminbi unless indicated
KX -{ & Spar 120 AR

BEEREEREMIAN
EE#®)

(f) AFEIFESE)
(i) BRAVPEIENESREERE

&(&)
N EZERE (&)
R2015F 12 A3 BELE B
BEMRRARANRAFEAENS
MEERBEELTFERED
SREAINR o

!

Level 2 Level 3 Total
F24 H3R @t
RMB'000 RMB’'000 RMB'000

ARBTRE  AR®TR  ARETR
(note (@)

At 31 December 2015

R2015%12 8318

(& (@)

Financial liabilities at fair value  1RA (& AB%
through profit or 10 MeBAaR
— Derivative componentof ARk EEMITE
convertible bonds TEEHS - - 130,989 130,989
— Unlisted warrant I ETRRRER - 12,079 - 12,079
- 12,079 130,989 143,068
At 31 December 2014 W2014%12 8311
Derivative financial liabilities 144 @& &
— Copper futures contracts ~ — SHEAE A4 525 - - 525
525 - - 525

(@ Information about level 3 fair value

measurements

Valuation techniques

@ F=MAFEFENE

Significant
unobservable
inputs
BEATAEEN

Derivative component of

convertible bonds

fh{ET %

Monte Carlo Model and

WARE

Expected volatility — 42% to 55%

Binomial Option Pricing Model

ABRRESFNITETRE SEREEERAR
#B “IHRAHIREEEE

TEHRR b8 42% %= 55%
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35 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(Continued)

(f) Fair value measurement (Continued)

)

Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair
value (Continued)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

The fair value of derivative component of the
convertible bonds is determined using Monte Carlo
Model and Binomial Option Pricing Model and the
significant unobservable input used in the fair value
measurement is expected volatility. The fair value
measurement is positively correlated to the expected
volatility.

The movement during the period in the balance of
level 3 fair value measurements is as follows:

35

- 1 —
I =], y Y <~
\ {‘:j Ry T / 7 4 /"

\ S /Y E /

{ .' b ali? > ot 4

BEEREERESMIAND

B @)

(f)

AT EE ()

(i)

RAFEAENESREEREA
1’(,45)
N FESRE (E)

AR ESATETAES S A
FEDERREREEEEN
N _IEX R EHEAERE -
TR AT EMRANEATA
B A BUR THTEADRIE - A
A2 TR R I8 A [ER4E

BERA(R o

AHIfRE =
BRI ¢

BAFEFTENEE

RMB’000
ARBT T

Derivative component of convertible bonds
at the date of issue

Changes in fair value recognised in the
profit or loss during the year

Exchange realignment

At 31 December 2015

REETT B AHRRIESOTAE

TR

FANIBERIER

N EZE
(RIS
R20155F12 831 H

The losses arising from the remeasurement of the
derivative component of the convertible bonds are
presented in “other net loss”.
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35 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

(f) Fair value measurement (Continued)
(ii)  Fair value of financial instruments carried at

other than fair values

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial
instruments carried at cost or amortised cost are not
materially different from their fair values as at 31
December 2015 and 31 December 2014 except as
follows:

Express\ed m Renm/nb/  unless

- HEE=mE
%{@? XAE&l )

35 MEEBEEREMIAND

E{E#)

(H DFEFAEE)

(i)

31 December 2015
2015%12H31H

Carrying
amount Fair Value
REE AVE
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T AR®T T
Liability component of RREFNEESS
convertible bonds 166,488

174,308

BRAFEASDEIEI RN S
IENAFE

R2015F K% 2014F12 8318 -
AN s SR AN B BR A & Bt
TAREEHEAAFELE
BERER - HETRHIIEB BRI

31 December 2014
201412 A318
Carrying
amount Fair Value
REE NEHE
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARBFTL

(g) Estimation of fair values
(i) Interest-bearing loans and borrowings
The fair value is estimated as the present value of
future cash flows, discounted at current market
interest rates for similar financial instruments at the
balance sheet dates.

(ii) Derivatives
Copper futures contracts are measured using quoted
prices in active markets for identical financial
instruments.

(8) L FEWMEE

@

(ii)

‘I'EE YSEEEN

RNHERPIEFTHARIIER SR
EREREBUSBRTARS
BHMBRTH SN TR
) o

fTETA
MPRADFIREERTST
BRASHT AHBEE -

—Z-RFFH 199
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36 ACQUISITION OF ASSETS THROUGH 36 ZRWEHEBARKWBEERE

ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY

Acquisition of 30% equity interest in Xinhuan
Aluminium

On 5 August 2015, Recycling Aluminium, an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Group, entered into an Equity Transfer
Agreement with Sichuan Jin Xunhuan E-commerce Trading Co.,
Ltd. (“JX E-commerce”) (previously known as “JX Electronic”),
pursuant to which Recycling Aluminium agreed to acquire and JX
E-commerce agreed to sell 30% equity interest in Xinhuan
Aluminium, for a cash consideration of RMB1,500,000. Upon
completion on 12 November 2015, Recycling Aluminium legally
and beneficially held 30% equity interest of Xinhuan Aluminium,
with the right to appoint two out of the three members of the
board of directors of Xinhuan Aluminium. Accordingly, Xinhuan
Aluminium became an indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary of
the Company.

JX E-commerce is a company controlled by Ms. Yu Yanyan and
Ms. Yu Jiajia, daughters of Mr. Yu Jiangiu, Chairman and
controlling shareholder of the Company.

This transaction had been accounted for as an acquisition of
assets as the acquisition does not meet the definition of a
business combination.
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R2015F8 A5H » A ARIFEZEEZEN B
RElREERREAR AR ([1ERIAZ])
B¢ RBRERETFHFEERAT (2B
REE]) (A [£ERET IR
EEE B EREEREWEmS
EIREE R E HE SR IE ¥ H30% /% A
i ReREARARE1,5000007T -
R2015F 11 B 12 BER R 5% @ BiRA
EE R AER A EIRIBEN 0% -
WEREIERIEESTT-RKEN
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WEEIEE BB AR
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36 ACQUISITION OF ASSETS THROUGH
ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY (continued)
Acquisition of 30% equity interest in Xinhuan
Aluminium (Continued)

The assets acquired in the transaction were as follows:

‘\\___;‘

Express‘ed m Renmmb/ i unless

%ﬂﬁ

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL ST‘ATE,ME'
Ra‘iﬁ!ﬁ'

§ o3

36 EZBWEMBATIWEBEE#)
U B TR 42 3 19 30% AR ASRE2S (42)

BERXZHYWENEENT

RMB'000
ARETR
Property, plant and equipment Y~ E K& 388
Inventory FE 2
Amount due from related parties i del 4,071
Other receivables HoAth fE IR 236
Other payables HoAth FE T FRIR (35)
Amount due to related parties JE 1<) A BSS 77 SRR (105)
Accrued payroll EETEE 31
Cash at bank RITER 23
Assets acquired EEEEE 4,549
Less: Non-controlling interest R IEIE A R (3,049)
Total consideration satisfied by: BUATHRENERE
— Consideration to be paid during the year ending — BREZE 2016512 A31H
31 December 2016 IFFEZRHRE 1,500
Net cash inflow arising on acquisition during the year ~ A& ZE 2015512 A31 B ILEE
ended 31 December 2015 WIS FTE A MRS R AT
— Cash and bank balances acquired in 2015 — R2015 F R EEIA & RIRTTAA 84 23
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36

37

\:l

ACQUISITION OF ASSETS THROUGH
ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY (continued)
Acquisition of 70% equity interest in Xinhuan
Aluminium

On 31 December 2015, Recycling Aluminium entered into the
Equity Transfer Agreement with JX E-commerce, pursuant to
which Recycling Aluminium agreed to acquire and JX E-commerce
agreed to sell its remaining 70% equity interest in Xinhuan
Aluminium, for a cash consideration of RMB3,100,000.

Upon completion, Recycling Aluminium will legally and beneficially
hold 100% equity interest in Xinhuan Aluminium, with the right to
appoint all members of the board of directors of Xinhuan
Aluminium. Accordingly, Xinhuan Aluminium will become an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.

As of 31 March 2016, the acquisition of 70% equity interest in
Xinhuan Aluminium has not been approved by Ministry of
Commerce of the People’s Republic of China.

COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION

36

37

 —— s

< ’ 1 l\ //‘ } II . '.

¥ =, g :,r =
{ A\ b, /] ».// r< &4
V) NS y =% /4

A ' BY gy

ERWENBATKWRBEE®)
WEBEREIREN70% RAERS

R2015F 12 A31H » BIRIREES AR
BRI R B - (EiRIASE
AEkEmMERRERRELEENS
IRIBEMBR T 70% A - BeREA
AR 3,100,000 7T °

FEARFIE  BREXHAZESFE
BIRIMEMI00% BAERD  WERRE
BERINXEZEMANKE - BiL - BREA
ERXBEARANEZE2ENBAF -

B E2016F3A31H - WIEBRIR X
70% AR H R ARGHEARK
B A5 BB L AE o

REBHEAF BRI R

31 December

31 December

2015 2014
2015 5 20144
128318 12A31H
Note RMB'000 RMB’000
M AR®T T ARETIT

Non-current assets kRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries KRB RRHIRE 15 298,322 298,322
Interest in associates B8~ B s 17 135,957 =
434,279 298,322

Current assets REEE

Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUBT B A 7 M IR 466,808 384,731
Amount due from a related party R — %5 Ba s 5 3R 1B 444 -
Other receivables H fth fE UL R = 228
Cash and cash equivalents BeNIBR&EEER 13,786 16,577
481,038 401,536
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37 COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)

37

wﬁiﬁ

(Express\ed m Renm/nb/ ess
el @q .

;;J

AREBEMNBEMRRE @)

31 December 31 December
2015 2014
2015 & 20144
128 31H 12H31H
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Mo AR®T T AREEFIT
Current liabilities HREBEE
Trade and other payables B 5 N E At e 28 12,762 6,532
Amounts due to a related party FE — %2 B 5 3R I8 6 -
Loan from a related party KB —B R RER 24(b) 83,780 =
777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777 96,548 6532
_Netcurrentassets ~~~ FhB&EE 000000000000 384490 395,004
_Total assets less current liabilites ®EEAABEG 818,769 693,326
Non-current liabilities IEMBEE
Liability component of
convertible bonds AR ESNEESD 29 166,488 -
Derivative component of
convertible bonds AMRESNITET ALY 29 130,989 -
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, 297477 T
NET ASSETS BEE 521,292 693,326
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BRREE
Share capital [ 31 166,075 166,075
Reserves & 31 355,217 527,251
TOTAL EQUITY AR 521,292 693,326

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 31
March 2016.

Yu Jiangiu
WEMK
Directors
EE

R2016F3 A31 BEEF oA M IRE

TiE -

Kwong Wai Sun Wilson

BERE
Directors

EE
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NOTES TO THE E__IINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BTSSR R EE | AN

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated, ) Vi)
(5 S LAFIGIE). A \k = O

38 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW 38 CHEGEN AR E2015F

STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR

ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the IASB has
issued a few amendments and new standards which are not yet
effective for the year ended 31 December 2015 and which have
not been adopted in these financial statements. These include the
following which may be relevant to the Group.

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2012-2014 cycle B[R B 74 5 45 2 BI| 45 [ 2iE 2012

%2 2014 A H8

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28, Sale or
contribution of assets between an investor
and its associate or joint venture

Amendments to IFRS 11, Accounting for
acquisitions of interests in joint operations

Amendments to IAS 1, Disclosure initiative

Amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 38, Clarification s
of acceptable methods of depreciation
and amortisation

IFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers
EFEAHHA

IFRS 9, Financial instruments

IFRS 16, Leases Bl B B S R

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the
impact of these amendments is expected to be in the period of
initial application. So far it is unable to disclose the impact that
adopting the amendments, and new standards and interpretations
will have on its financial position and the results of operations
when such amendments, new standards and interpretations are
adopted.
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R 81 5 s 2
WIER KRR B > B AT

BN ST ERIE 1R 2BR] - KFEZ/

BIPR B A5 3RS R AR 155%

BRM B REENFEIN  2MTA

BRIFE65 - A

12831 BIEFEERBET -
MEARZEUREENTE

BEAMBHRRTIELY - BESER
BEEERMBIAERBZE 201512 A 31
HIEFEMARERBE RSB REK P L&
RMEVER] ¥ ER - HRBENTHE
ERE B A RRERT RATER o

Effective for
accounting
periods
beginning

on or after
RTIBEHBSHz2%
BATA BV 5T HA R 4 XK

1 January 2016
201651 H1H

BB B s s o R R 3R 1057 B & AR
£ 285K 2 ERT -
REPRANEEHELTE

REZHARE 1 January 2016

201651 H1H
FBNRZIERT 1 January 2016
20161 R 1H

1 January 2016
20161818

HERIZE 16 5% K BIFR & 5T 2R
I MER] - TE K #iH
ZRERIEZEE

1 January 2016
20161818

1 January 2017
2017€1 818

1 January 2018
20181 H1H

1 January 2019
2019F1H1H

AREBEEAEFEZFEFTRIRERS
RBEHELNTE - 25 /1L - AEHEH
REESA N E RMLFIER] ~ FEAMR
B RFEA MR MR W HA
B R L E R R E -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

39 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The following significant events took place subsequent to 31
December 2015:

Proposed issue of new shares under general
mandate and disposal of shares by substantial
shareholder

On 22 January 2016, the Company and Jizhong Hongyuan
International Trading Company Limited (E# Riz BB Z 5 AR A
A]) (“the Purchaser”) entered into the subscription agreement,
pursuant to which the Purchaser conditionally agreed to subscribe
for, and the Company conditionally agreed to allot and issue,
73,250,735 subscription shares to the Purchaser. The subscription
price is HK$2.41 per subscription share and the aggregate
consideration for the subscription is approximately
HK$176,534,000. On the same day, the Purchaser also entered
into a share sale agreement with Mr. Huang Weiping, a director
and a substantial shareholder of the Company pursuant to which
Mr. Huang Weiping conditionally agreed to sell and the Purchaser
conditionally agreed to purchase further 82,790,366 ordinary
shares. If both transactions are completed, the Purchaser will hold
approximately 7.16% of the Company’s enlarged share capital.

39

A 355 80 RO GE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(B Bhat HEI LN REESE)

HEHREMN
THEREHN2015F12A31B1E3A -

EERE-RREBRTHROREER
B & R

R20165F 18228 © AAREEAPRR
HRESERAR (BRI LRER
& Bl BAAKMEREREMARR
BIKHRE R E 5 B8 K& ¥17 73,250,735
KRB - REBEATIRABIEMN 2.41
B IRBETENEREABD
176,534,000 7L > A H - EZIMEAR
REERETEREEEFLETLER
ek Bl EEFAEFKGEREHNE
imE 75 B &R E R E 82,790,366 % I 15
f% o MMIBER SH7EK  EABFEAR
A2 SEIERRR AL 7.16% ©
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FIVE YEAR FINI-\NCIAL SUMMARY ~
CEFMBEE 00000 /
o2 S =

il

b1 A5 s

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERESE

At 31 December
M®12831H
2015 2014 2013 2012 2011

2015 F 2014 % 20134 20124 20114
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR ARETRT ARETRT ARETRT ARETT

Total assets BMEE 2,335,311 2,408,196 1,694,092 993,035 598,576

Total liabilities oG =R (1,581,128) (1,134,893)  (1,081,287) (694,713) (476,912)

Net assets FEE 754,183 1,273,303 612,805 298,322 121,664
Notes: MIEE -

1. The financial information of the Group for the years ended 31 December 2011 and 31 1. RNEFBFHEZ201MF12 A31H K2012F12 A31H 1t

December 2012 are extracted from the accountants’ report of the Group as set out FENPRBEER R E RREN R —FENAER
on Appendix | to the Prospectus. EEHANRE -
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Executive Directors

Yu Jiangiu

Liu Hanjiu (resigned on 30 November 2015)
Kwong Wai Sun Wilson

Huang Weiping

Zhu Yufen

Independent Non-executive Directors
Lee Ting Bun Denny

Pan Liansheng

Liu Rong (resigned on 30 November 2015)

Ren Ruxian (appointed on 30 November 2015)

REGISTERED OFFICE

Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive PO Box 2681
Grand Cayman, KY1-1111

Cayman Islands

HEAD OFFICE IN THE PRC

She Nos 1,3 and 8

Shunhe Village Xiaojiangou Town Youxian District Mianyang
Sichuan Province
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COMPANY SECRETARY
Cheung Ying Kwan, FCCA
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
LFEH

AUDIT AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
COMMITTEE

Lee Ting Bun Denny (Chairperson)

Pan Liansheng

Liu Rong (resigned on 30 November 2015)

Ren Ruxian (appointed on 30 November 2015)

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
Pan Liangsheng (Chairperson)

Lee Ting Bun Denny

Liu Rong (resigned on 30 November 2015)
Ren Ruxian (appointed on 30 November 2015)

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Lee Ting Bun Denny

Pan Liansheng

Liu Rong (Chairperson) (resigned on 30 November 2015)
Ren Ruxian (Chairperson) (appointed on 30 November 2015)

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVES PURSUANT TO
THE LISTING RULES

Kwong Wai Sun Wilson

Cheung Ying Kwan, FCCA

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER
OFFICE

Codan Trust Company (Cayman) Limited

Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive

PO Box 2681

Grand Cayman, KY1-1111

Cayman Islands

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited

Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen's Road East, Wanchai

Hong Kong

COMPLIANCE ADVISER

Fortune Financial Capital Limited

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

The Hong Kong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China

Mianyang Commercial Bank

Huarong Xiangjiang Bank

COMPANY WEBSITE

http://www.cmru.com.cn

STOCK CODE
1636
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